
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded 
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Stuart Robinson 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74360 
 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Steven Courtney 
Tel: 24 74707 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH AND WELL-BEING AND ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE) 

 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
P Truswell - Middleton Park; 

G Hussain - Roundhay; 

T Murray - Garforth and Swillington; 

J Walker - Headingley; 

C Fox - Adel and Wharfedale; 

S Armitage - Cross Gates and Whinmoor; 

K Bruce - Rothwell; 

J Illingworth (Chair) - Kirkstall; 

S Varley - Morley South; 

S Bentley - Weetwood; 

M Robinson - Harewood; 
 

Co-optees 
Joy Fisher Alliance of Service Users 

Sally Morgan Equality Issues 
Betty Smithson Leeds LINk 
Paul Truswell Leeds LINk 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting).  
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND THE PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

           No exempt items on this agenda. 
 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
AND OTHER INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-18 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.   Also to declare 
any other significant interests which the Member 
wishes to declare in the public interest, in 
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 26th September 2012. 
 
 

1 - 12 

7   
 

  2012/13 PERFORMANCE REPORT –  
QUARTER 1 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on Quarter 1 of the 
Performance Report for 2012/13. 
 

13 - 
28 



 

 
D 

8   
 

  BALANCING THE COUNCIL'S DUTIES AS A 
PLANNING AUTHORITY WITH ITS FUTURE 
PUBLIC HEALTH RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on proposals for balancing 
the Council's duties as a planning authority with its 
future public health responsibilities. 
 
 

29 - 
118 

9   
 

  BETTER LIVES EXPLAINED - LEEDS DRAFT 
LOCAL ACCOUNT OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
2012/13 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development in relation to ‘Better Lives 
Explained, a Leeds draft Local Account of Adult 
Social Care for 2012/13. 
 
 

119 - 
166 

10   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development setting out a provisional 
work schedule for the Board for consideration. 
 
 

167 - 
206 

11   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 
Wednesday 21st November 2012 at 10.00am in the 
Civic Hall, Leeds. 
(Pre –meeting for Board Members at 9.30am) 
 

 

 
 
 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH AND WELL-BEING AND ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE) 

 
WEDNESDAY, 26TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor J Illingworth in the Chair 

 Councillors P Truswell, G Hussain, 
T Murray, J Walker, C Fox, S Varley, 
M Robinson, B Urry and M Ingham 

 
 CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
 
 Joy Fisher, Sally Morgan and Emma Stewart 
 
 

35 Chair's opening remarks  
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 

36 Late Items  
 

Although there were no formal late items, the Panel was in receipt of the 
following supplementary information: 

• NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds Performance Report (minute 44 
refers). 

• Amended page 139-140 of the agenda, which related to the NHS 
Airedale, Bradford and Leeds Performance Management Report to 
show a minor change on how performance reports would be 
considered with by the CCG Collaborate (minute 44 refers). 

 
 

37 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and other Interests  
 

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made, however the 
declaration of another interest was made later in the meeting (minute 43 
refers). 
 
 

38 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes  
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Armitage; Bentley 
and Bruce.   Councillor Ingham was in attendance as a substitute for 
Councillor Bruce and Councillor Urry was present in place of Councillor 
Armitage. 
 
Apologies were also received from Betty Smithson. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

39 Minutes  
 

The Board considered the minutes from the 27th June 2012 and 25th July 2012 
meetings of Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) and 
also from the Call-In meeting held on 9th August 2012 
 
With reference to minute 24 of the Scrutiny Board meeting held on 25th July 
2012 relating to the review of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Services in 
England, the Chair was asked to update the Board on the current situation 
regarding referring the decision to the Secretary of State for Health 
 
The Chair referred to the length of time it was taking to assemble the case for 
submission, due to the difficultly obtaining information from the Safe and 
Sustainable Review Team, which seemed reluctant to respond to requests for 
information. Of particular concern was the unwillingness to provide basic 
documents, for example, reports and agendas, of various meetings- 
something that for Local Authorities meetings, were routinely published.    
 
The Chair stated that this did not accord with Freedom of Information or open 
government and expressed his view that a decision properly taken should be 
able to be defended. The difficulty in obtaining information to support the  
decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts could lead one to the 
suspicion, that despite considerable public engagement, and a period of 
public consultation on proposals for the future of Children’s Heart Surgery, the 
decision to move service to Newcastle, where a Heart Transplant Unit was 
located, had been made at an early stage. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a) To approve the minutes of the following meetings of Scrutiny Board 

(Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care): 
 

• 27th June 2012 

• 25th July 2012 

• 9th August 2012 
 
(b) To note the verbal update on the Review of Children’s Congenital 

Cardiac Services provided by the Chair 
 

40 Update on Recommendations following deputation to Scrutiny by the 
National federation of the Blind  

 
Further to minute 28 of the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult 
Social Care) meeting held on 28th October 2012, where the Board considered 
a request for Scrutiny in relation to meeting the needs of blind and visually 
impaired people in Leeds and established a working group to consider this 
matter, the Board considered a report of the Director of Adult Social Services 
providing feedback on how the previous Board’s recommendations had been 
progressed.    
 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

It was noted that a visit had been made to the facilities at Fairfax House by 
representatives of the Scrutiny Board, earlier in the week. 
 
Attending for this item to present the report and respond to questions and 
comments from the Board were: 
 

• Tim O’Shea (Head of Adult Social Care Commissioning) – Leeds City 
Council, Adult Social Services; 

• Sinead Cregan (Adult Commissioning Manager) – Leeds City Council, 
Adult Social Services; and, 

• Helena Hughes (Area Operations Manager) – Action for Blind 
People/Leeds Vision Consortium. 

 
The Board was presented with a report that outlined the measures carried out 
immediately following the previous Scrutiny Board’s recommendations about 
improvements to aspects of the service provided.   
 
A brief introduction of te re[port was provided, following which the Board 
raised a number of questions about the services provided for blind and 
visually impaired people in Leeds by Leeds Vision Consortium. 
 
The main points of discussion related to: 
 

• The fundamental shift in service design – moving from a centre based 
service to a community/ outreach based service, focusing on 
individuals needs; 

• the need to provide a range of services for blind and visually impaired 
people across Leeds, to suit all age groups, especially younger people; 

• the referral process to services and the importance of the role of the 
hospital-based eye clinic liaison officer;  

• the importance of assistive technology in helping to maintain service 
users’ independence;  

• the increased number of service users from BME groups;  

• the role of the employment officer; the scale of the challenge in 
securing employment opportunities for people with visual impairments 
in what was currently a difficult labour market ; 

• the outcomes achieved by people being assisted to find employment; 

• the raised expectations for people with disabilities as a result of the 
success and legacy of the Paralympics; 

• the importance of stakeholder involvement in shaping services.  
 
Whilst welcoming the changes that had been made to services and noting the 
positive feedback from the recent visit to Fairfax House, the need to obtain 
direct feedback from service users/ stakeholders was highlighted – particularly 
in cases where an issue had been raised with the Scrutiny Board for 
investigation. 
 
 
 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

RESOLVED -   
a) To note the report and the actions that were undertaken by Adult 

Social Care and Leeds Vision Consortium to address the 
recommendations of the previous Scrutiny Board; 

b) To note the comments made and the information provided; 
c) That a further report be provided in six months time that included 

the following information/ details: 

• The number and age profile of blind and partially sighted 
people across Leeds; 

• The number and age profile of service users accessing/ using  
the various elements of services commissioned by the 
Council and provided by Leeds Vision Consortium; 

• Specific outcomes relating to employment service provided 
and take-up of employment, training and/or volunteering 
placements; 

• The number and age profile of service users from BME 
groups; 

• Direct responses from service users to the actions taken to 
address the concerns raised at Scrutiny Board (Health and 
Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) in October 2011. 

 
41 Mental Health Needs Assessment  
 

Further to minute 6 of the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult 
Social Care) meeting held on 27th June 2012 where mental health issues 
were identified as an area for consideration by the Board, Members received 
a report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development providing 
information on issues around the provision of mental health services together 
with details on the Leeds Mental Health Needs Assessment (MHNA), May 
2011. 
 
Attending for this item to present the report and respond to the Board’s 
questions and comments were: 
 

• Victoria Eaton (Consultant in Public Health) – NHS Airedale Bradford 
and Leeds 

• Nigel Gray (Chief Officer Designate) – NHS Leeds North CCG 

• Michele Tynan (Chief Officer – Learning Disabilities) – Leeds City 
Council, Adult Social Services 

• Richard Wall (Head of Commissioning (Mental Health and Learning 
Disabilities)) – NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds 

• Catherine Ward (Emotional Health and Wellbeing Lead) – NHS 
Airedale Bradford and Leeds 

 
Nigel Gray introduced the report and referred to the data that had been 
obtained through the MHNA and stated the importance of using this data to 
inform decision-making and service commissioning and to link into the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

Reference was made to the recommendations in the MHNA which contained 
a mix of specific examples of work to be undertaken, together with some long-
term, strategic recommendations including how resources could be utilised. 
 
The integration of social care teams with the Leeds and York Partnership 
Trust and the benefits this would bring in providing services was highlighted.  
 
The Board was also informed about proposals for the transformation of mental 
health day services in Leeds, with a three month consultation process being 
embarked upon with service users to consider retaining two of the three 
mental health day care centres and looking at the future of The Vale, in 
Hunslet.   The Board was assured that nothing would change at The Vale until 
alternative services had been put in place.   The Board was informed that 
service users had identified the importance of retaining staff-led and user-led 
recovery groups as well as safe spaces, with Adult Social Care looking to 
develop a number of small community bases to help fulfil these requirements.  
 
Detailed discussion took place, with the following key areas being raised: 
 

• the provision of mental health services and whether having two 
separate NHS providers was a sensible and efficient approach; 

• Welfare reform and the potential implications of 30,000 people in Leeds 
being on Incapacity Benefit, with up to 50% likely to be suffering mental 
health problems;  

• the work being done by Leeds City Council to help support people 
affected by the changes to the benefits system 

• Personalised budgets for people in receipt of Social Care services and 
the potential additional pressure for people with mental health 
problems; 

• the level of need and demand for psychological services, with a focus 
on the importance of preventative work, particularly in poorer 
communities where there was clear correlation between health and 
wellbeing and multi-level deprivation; 

• the recommendations in the MHNA and whether these were subject to 
resources being available and the extent of the funding gap between 
demand and provision; 

 
RESOLVED –  
 

(i) To note the report and information presented, as part of the 
Board’s ongoing inquiry into mental health.   

(ii)  That a further report be presented to the Board that details: 
 

•••• The current provision and providers of mental health 
 services across the City – including statutory and non-
 statutory services; 

•••• The current available budget / funding for mental health 
 services across the City; 

•••• An outline of the current demand for primary, secondary 
 and tertiary mental health services across the City; 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

 
42 Leeds Suicide Audit (2008-2010)  
 

With reference to the previous agenda item (Minute 41 refers), the Board 
considered a specific report from the Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development which related to one of the key recommendations identified in 
the Leeds Mental Health Needs Assessment; the requirement to undertake a 
suicide audit for the City.    Appended to the report was a copy of the audit for 
2008-2010, for Members’ consideration. 
 
Attending for this item to present the report and respond to the Board’s 
questions and comments were: 
 

• Victoria Eaton (Consultant in Public Health) – NHS Airedale Bradford 
and Leeds 

• Catherine Ward (Emotional Health and Wellbeing Lead) – NHS 
Airedale Bradford and Leeds 

• Nigel Gray (Chief Officer Designate) – NHS Leeds North CCG 

• Richard Wall (Head of Commissioning (Mental Health and Learning 
Disabilities)) – NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds 

 
Councillor Mulherin, Executive Board Member for Health and Wellbeing – 
Leeds City Council was also in attendance. 
 
The Chair stated that Councillors from the Armley Ward, who had raised 
some concerns around the levels of suicides in the LS12 area of the City, had 
been invited to attend the meeting, however apologies had been received due 
to unavoidable circumstances.  
 
Members were informed that ,nationally, this issue was being given 
prominence, with a National Suicide Prevention Strategy being launched by 
the Government earlier in September 2012.. 
 
A summary of the key findings of the Leeds Suicide Audit were included in the 
report, with the headlines being given as: 
 

• 179 recorded suicides in Leeds between 2008-2010; 

• Suicide rates in Leeds were relatively static (compared to previous 
audits) and broadly comparable with national average and rates within 
Yorkshire and the Humber; 

• the male/female suicide ratio was higher in Leeds, with a higher 
number of men taking their own lives; 

• the majority of those people recorded in the audit were white, locally 
born men in the 30-50 age group; 

• the risk factors driving people to take their own lives were mainly 
around social isolation; relationship problems; unemployment and debt, 
with higher incident rates in deprived areas; 

• the majority of people taking their own lives had not been in touch with 
specialist mental health services before committing suicide but had 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

been in touch with primary care services, although not necessarily in 
connection with a mental health issue. 

 
Councillor Mulherin stated there was a need to target work around white 
males and also in the LS12 area which had been identified in the audit as 
seeing the highest incidences of residents taking their own lives, with 21 of 
the 179 people (approximately 12%) having an LS12 postcode. 
 
Other areas of importance highlighted by Councillor Mulherin were: 

• building up resistance at an early stage and the need to work with 
school clusters and individual schools; 

• the specific risk group in the city of white men aged 30-50 and the need 
to consider how to engage with this group possibly through non-
traditional means; 

• the need to tackle the stigma and discrimination which can surround 
mental health problems and the positive example set by Leeds City 
Council, which had signed up to the Mindful Employer scheme; 

• the need to make it easier for people to discuss mental health issues 
and to encourage better peer support. 

 
Councillor Mulherin also referred to survivor-led crisis support and the lack of 
sufficient out of hours mental health services which she considered might be 
useful for the Board to explore further.   Councillor Mulherin specifically 
commended the work of Dial House in Leeds which provided this type of 
support in a safe, non-clinical setting for people in crisis, suggesting that 
looking at services for people outside the hospital environment could also be 
considered. 
 
In brief summary the main areas of discussion were: 
 

• the importance of flagging up patients in the higher risk groups 
(identified in the audit) who presented regularly at GP surgeries, but 
not necessarily with mental health issues and to carry this through to 
those presenting at A&E, as regular attendees, especially where no 
physical illness could be ascertained;  

• the limitations of the data and the difficulty in assessing the exact 
number of suicides due to how deaths were recorded.  However it was 
noted that as part of the Leeds audit, open verdicts and verdicts of 
misadventure had also considered; 

• ways of engaging large numbers of people to disseminate information 
about mental health issues; 

• the role of the Samaritans and the need for appropriate support to be 
available to those who were bereaved through suicide; 

• the lack of improvement in the suicide figures for the city and whether 
this indicated that previous action plans had not been effective; 

• the need for evidence-based interventions to form the basis of 
identified actions/ recommendations; 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

• the need for appropriate specialist support to be given to military 
personnel returning from the front line experiencing mental health 
problems; 

• access to means to commit suicide was not identified as a significant 
risk factor. 

 
Nigel Gray highlighted that despite some gaps in the available data around 
the specific circumstances associated with each suicide, the audit had 
provided valuable information which would be shared with GPs to enable 
better preventative work to be established.  This could then be measured for 
its effectiveness. 
 
RESOLVED – To note the information around the Leeds Suicide Audit (2008-
2010) and that the Board consider a further report that includes specific 
details / data around: 

• Survivor Led Treatment / provision; 

• Current out of hours provision for mental health services; 

• The level of Out of Area treatments for mental health services users 
across Leeds. 

 
43 Quarterly Performance Report  
 

Prior to consideration of this item, Councillors Ingham and Robinson left the 
meeting. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance) 
submitted a report which presented a summary of the quarter 1 performance 
data relevant to the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social 
Care) 
 
The following information was appended to the report: 
 

• Performance reports relating to the City Priority Plan 

• Adult Social Care Directorate Priorities and Indicators 
 
Attending for this item and to respond to queries and comments raised by the 
Board were: 
 

• Councillor Mulherin (Executive Board Member for Health and 
Wellbeing) – Leeds City Council 

• Councillor Yeadon (Executive Board Member for Adult Social Care) – 
Leeds City Council 

• Stuart Cameron-Strickland (Head of Policy, Performance and 
Improvement) – Leeds City Council, Adult Social Services 

 
The Board was informed that due to the length of discussions on the previous 
items, Brenda Fullard (Consultant in Public Health) – NHS Airedale, Bradford 
and Leeds had needed to leave for another meeting.   The Board decided to 

Page 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

defer consideration of the Q1 performance relating to health but to examine 
issues arising from the data in respect of Adult Social Care. 
 
Stuart Cameron-Strickland presented the report which outlined specific 
matters that related to the provison of Adult Social Care services.  
 
Members discussed the report and focussed on personalised budgets, with 
the following information being provided: 
 

• the introduction of personalised budgets aimed to offer people choice 
about whether they would like to manage the provision of their own 
care needs by buying in the services they required, or whether they 
would prefer to have services delivered in the traditional way; 

• there was no pressure on people to have personalised budgets and 
that the Local Authority would manage budgets if people preferred 

• that support and advice was available for those people dealing with the 
issue of personalised budgets, with the Centre for Integrated Living 
being the key organisation in the city. It has hoped that relationships 
could be developed with other organisations, with close working being 
undertaken in this area with the Neighbourhood Networks. 

 
At this point Joy Fisher declared an interest through her involvement with the 
Centre for Integrated Living. 
 

• checks and monitoring were undertaken to ensure that budgets were 
being used by the person who had the entitlement and for appropriate 
services.   Through these checks it was felt that any possible abuse of 
a vulnerable person by relatives or friends would be detected, although 
Councillor Yeadon stressed that in these situations it was likely that 
safeguarding issues would have been flagged up prior to any mis-use 
of self directed support. 

• pension contributions for those people who employed a personal 
assistant were included in the budget allowances provided 

• that a Board was to be developed comprising cross-party 
representation and relevant stakeholders to consider issues around the 
management of social care budgets on behalf of individuals. 

 
RESOLVED – To note the Q1 performance information provided for Adult 
Social Care and to consider the Health and Wellbeing element of the report at 
the next meeting. 
 

44 NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds - Performance Report  
 

The Board considered a report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development providing: 
 

• Details on the transitional arrangements for three key areas; Corporate 
Performance; Quality and Safety for the three Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs) in Leeds which were due to take up their duties in April 
2012, arising out of the restructure of the NHS; and,  

Page 9



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

• the most recent performance scorecard, dated September 2012, for the 
city as a whole and for the three Leeds CCGs – which was appended 
to the report.  

 
The following representatives attended the meeting to present the report and 
respond to Members’ questions and comments: 
 

• Nigel Gray (Chief Officer Designate) – NHS Leeds North Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

• Graham Brown (Performance Manager) – NHS Airedale, Bradford and 
Leeds 

 
Members were informed that with the move from Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) 
to CCGs, the reporting of performance would be routed to CCGs, rather than 
the PCT Cluster Board.  To facilitate this, the CCGs had formed sub-
committees of the PCT Cluster Board. 
 
In respect of the PCTs, Nigel Gray assured Members that whilst staff had 
been made redundant as part of the changes, there would be sufficient staff to 
carry through the transitional functions.  In terms of the CCG arrangements, 
Nigel Gray advised that further information could be provided in a separate 
session if the Board wished. 
 
The Board then considered the detailed performance information which had 
been circulated as a supplementary document. 
 
The main areas of discussion related to: 
 

• Increasing Access to Psychological Treatment, which citywide was 
shown as being below threshold; 

• levels for MRSA and other Heath Care Aquired Infections (HCAIs) and 
the measures being taken to avoid/ reduce the occurance, with 
concerns raised about the performance of Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
Trust;  

• more detail around urgent and emergency ambulance journeys, with 
exception reports requested to enable the Board to understand areas 
where there may be problems in meeting the standards and targets; 

• Government changes to the present performance regimes with data for 
cancer waits, A&E 4 hours waits and 18 week waits from referral to 
treatment not being required to be reported on.   On this the Board 
welcomed Graham Brown’s assurances that this data would continue 
to be provided and considerdd by local CCGs, even where there was 
no statutory requirement to do so. 

 
RESOLVED -   
 

a) To note the information presented in the NHS Airedale, Bradford 
and Leeds Cluster Board, including the amended information on the 
transitional performance monitoring and assurance processes 
circulated at the meeting. 

Page 10



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 24th October, 2012 

 

b) That consideration be given to setting up a Working Group of the 
Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) to 
consider the arrangements around the formal implementation of the 
three CCGs in Leeds, from April 2013. 

c) That narrative information be provided in a future report to identify 
the root causes of some of the delays around urgent and 
emergency ambulance journeys. 

 
During consideration of this matter, Councillors Murray, Urry and Walker 
left the meeting 

 
45 Work Programme  
 

The Chair referred to the amount of time being taken up with preparing the 
case for the review of the decision on Children’s Congenital Heart Surgery 
and because of this it had not been possible to submit a formal work 
programme for the Board’s consideration.   However, the decisions taken by 
the Board for further reports and scrutiny in relation to: 
 

• the recommendations following the deputation to Scrutiny by the 
National Federation of the Blind 

• the Mental Health Needs Assessment 

• the Leeds Suicide Audit (2008-2010) 

• the Health and Wellbeing element of the Q1 Performance Report 
 
would be entered into the Board’s Work Programme.  
 
 

46 Date and Time of the Next Meeting  
 

Wednesday 24th October 2012 at 10.00am – Pre-meeting for all Board 
Members at 9.30am 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 24 October 2012 

Subject: 2012/13 Performance Report – Quarter 1 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Introduction  

1. At the previous Scrutiny Board meeting (26 September 2012) the Scrutiny Board agreed 
to defer consideration of the Public Health elements of the 2012/13 first quarter 
performance report.    

 
Performance Report 
 
2. The performance report prepared for the previous meeting is attached for consideration 

by the Board – excluding Appendix 2 (Adult Social Care Directorate Priorities and 
Indicators), which has already been considered by the Board. 

 
3. In particular, the Board is asked to consider the Public Health related priorities identified 

in the City Priority Plan relevant to the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult 
Social Care), namely  

 

• HW1 – Help protect people from the harmful effects of tobacco (progress assessed 
as amber); and, 

• HW4 – Make sure that people who are the poorest improve their health the fastest 
(progress assessed as red).  

 
Recommendations 
 
4. The Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

a. Note the first quarter performance information presented and the issues highlighted; 
and, 

b. Consider if any further scrutiny work is necessary at this stage. 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  247 4707 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



 

 

 
Background documents1  
 
5. None. 
  

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 
 

Page 14



 

 

Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance)  

Report to Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board 

Date: 26 September 2012 

Subject: 2012/13 Q1 Performance Report  

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for the 
council relevant to the Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board.   

Recommendations 

2. Members are recommended to: 

• Note the Q1 performance information and the issues which have been 
highlighted and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work to 
support improvement over the coming year in any of these areas. 

 
Report author:  Heather Pinches 

Tel:  274638  

Page 15



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report presents to scrutiny a summary of the quarter one performance data 
for 2012-13 which provides an update on progress in delivering the relevant 
priorities in the Council Business Plan 2011-15 and City Priority Plan 2011-15.   

2 Background information 

2.1 The City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015 is the city-wide partnership plan which sets 
out the key outcomes and priorities to be delivered by the council and its partners.  
There are 21 priorities which are split across the 5 strategic partnerships who are 
responsible for ensuring the delivery of these agreed priorities.  The Council 
Business Plan 2011 to 2015 sets out the priorities for the council - it has two 
elements - five cross council priorities aligned to the council’s values and a set of 
directorate priorities and targets.     

2.2 This report includes 2 appendices: 

•••• Appendix 1 – Performance Reports for the 4 Health and Wellbeing City 
Priority Plan Priorities  

•••• Appendix 2 – Adult Social Care Directorate Priorities and Indicators 

3 Main issues - Quarter 1 Performance Summary 

Council Business Plan 

3.3 Adult Social care Directorate Priorities and Indicators – there are 12 
directorate priorities and 9 are assessed as green, and 3 amber The amber 
priorities are: 

•••• Support adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable to live safe 
and independent lives,  

•••• Help people with poor physical or mental health to learn or relearn skills for 
daily living. 

•••• Extend the use of personal budgets. 

3.4 In terms of performance indicators 2 green, 1 amber and 4 red and 1 has no result 
at Q1.  The red indicators are: 

•••• Increase the number of people successfully completing a programme to 
help them relearn the skills for daily living. 

•••• Increase percentage of service users and carers with control over their 
own care budget 

•••• Increase percentage service users who feel that they have control over 
their daily life. 

•••• Increase percentage of safeguarding referrals which lead to a 
safeguarding investigation 

3.5 Re-ablement service: Joint health and adult social care re-ablement (SkILs) 
teams have been established across the city and are delivering successful 
outcomes.  Pathways are open to receive referrals from the community, on 

Page 16



 

 

existing service users and following hospital discharge. Performance data 
indicates that the service compares very favourably with national high performers, 
with 70% of customers requiring no ongoing package of care once reablement 
complete.  However, the numbers coming through the service at Q1 (187) are 
significantly below target (2000 per annum) with activity limited by a shortage of 
supervisors.  The Directorate are looking to make up this shortfall from 
supervisors currently within the long term home care service or to recruit to 
vacancies where this is not possible.   

3.6 Service users and carers with control over their own care budget: Leeds 
Adult Social Care exceeded it's target in 2011/12 to ensure 45% of people were in 
receipt of self directed support with 52% of eligible service users meeting the 
criteria.  At quarter 1 this indicator has dipped slightly to 42% but it will need a 
further step change forward if Leeds is going to meet the 100% target to ensure 
that self directed social care is available to all.  The major vehicle for the 
development of personalised social care is through the ‘Think Local Act Personal’ 
concordat.  A part of this work is  ‘Making it Real,’ which includes a framework for 
measuring progress in the establishment of personalised, community based 
support.  Leeds Adult Social Care (ASC) has made a commitment to progress the 
delivery of personalisation in co-production with people who use services.  A 
forum of service users has been identified to start identifying priority areas for 
improvement. 

3.7 Service users who feel that they have control over their daily life:    A survey 
about self directed support was undertaken with social care service users during 
April and May 2012.  This showed a drop in performance to 68% from 76% at 
quarter 4 against an ambitious target of 85%.  The results show that the majority 
of people who don’t manage their own support choose council managed support.  
A proportion, however, said that they chose not to manage their own budgets as 
they are concerned about how they will find services, etc.  These results will 
inform further work to increase support for people to use direct payments.  Two 
social workers recruited to work with carers improving access to personalised 
support including personal budgets.  Work includes the development of systems 
for allocation.  A project has been established to develop personal health budgets 
(PHB) and personalised care planning (PCP) for individuals eligible for Continuing 
Health Care (CHC) Funding within NHS Leeds.  This is a two year DH approved 
pathfinder project to develop systems and processes and facilitate a culture shift 
in commissioning behaviours and care planning. 

3.8 The percentage of safeguarding referrals that led to an investigation has 
dropped from 35% to 30% against a target of 45%.  Whilst this does not in itself 
indicate an increased safeguarding risk a higher conversion rate is some measure 
of the success of the implementation of multi agency policies, procedures and 
training which includes guidance on thresholds for investigation and referral.  The 
Safeguarding Adults Board performance sub-group are scrutinising the data on 
cases that were referred but did not go forward to investigation, to quality assure 
the decision making on cases did not meet the threshold for investigation. 

3.9 Delayed discharges from hospital:  Since quarter 4 progress has been made in 
reducing delayed discharges due to ASC and performance is now better than the 
median for local authorities although it remains below target at quarter 1. On the 

Page 17



 

 

1st May 2012 a summit of health and social care partners at which a plan of action 
was agreed to generate improvements in the management of demand for urgent 
hospital care and thereby reduce the pressures on hospital discharge systems. 
Key elements of this include: 

o Reducing the number of people requiring hospital admission through A&E 
with conditions such as blocked catheters by improving training for staff in 
catheter care. 

o Reducing pressure on the urgent care system through the further 
development of Ambulatory Pathways 

o Exploring the potential for more effective use of telecare for patients in care 
homes  

o Improving information systems between key partners 

City Priority Plan 

3.10 There are 4 priorities in the City Priority Plan relevant to Health and Wellbeing and 
Adult Social Care Board and of these 1 is assessed as green, 2 amber and is 1 is 
red.  The red priority is health inequalities: 

3.11 Health Inequalities:  the annual update of the mortality data has been provided 
this quarter and life expectancy is increasing across the whole population of 
Leeds including the most deprived communities.  However life expectancy is 
increasing faster in the most affluent areas compared to the speed of increase in 
the most deprived thereby widening the gap.  Reducing the gap will depend on 
successful outcomes from the current action plans – to ensure children have the 
best start in life; to maximise income and reduce debt; improve housing, transport 
and the environment; increase employment and healthy workplaces; to maximise 
educational attainment; and improve access to services that prevent and treat ill 
health.   

3.12 Smoking:  Tobacco smoking is the biggest lifestyle risk factor contributing to 
inequalities in death rates between the richest and poorest communities. The 
smoking priority is currently assessed as amber - as prevalence rates remain 
static in Leeds.  Evidence from the JSNA is that two thirds of smokers start before 
they are 18 and nearly all smokers have started by the time they are 24.  More 
work is required to prevent younger people in taking up smoking (as recently 
raised by the Board in their recent Scrutiny Enquiry).  Smoking initiation is 
associated with a wide range of risk factors including parental and sibling 
smoking, easy access to cigarettes, smoking by friends, living in more 
disadvantage communities, exposure to tobacco marketing, and depictions of 
smoking in films, television and other media.  A pilot is planned for Belle Isle North 
(the area of the city with the worst smoking rates) in order to identify and develop 
innovative approaches to tackle this important issue as well as to build the 
evidence base.   

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

Page 18



 

 

4.1.1 This is an information report and as such does not need to be consulted on with 
the public.  However all performance information is published on the council’s and 
Leeds Initiative websites and is available to the public.   

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 This is an information report and not a decision so due regard is not relevant.  
However, this report does include an update on equality issues as they relate to 
the various priorities.   

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.2 This report provides an update on progress in delivering the council and city 
priorities in line with the council’s performance management framework.   

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 There are no specific resource implications from this report; however, it includes a 
high level update of the Council’s financial position.  This is in terms of the cross 
council priority within the Business Plan of “spending money wisely”. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 All performance information is publicly available and is published on the council 
and Leeds Initiative websites.  This report is an information update providing 
Scrutiny with a summary of performance for the strategic priorities within its remit 
and as such is not subject to call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.2 The Performance Report Cards include an update of the key risks and challenges 
for each of the priorities.  This is supported by a comprehensive risk management 
process in the Council to monitor and manage key risks.  These processes also 
link closely with performance management. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for 
the council relevant to the Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care Scrutiny 
Board.  

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are recommended to: 

• Note the Q1 performance information and the issues which have been 
highlighted and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work to 
support improvement over the coming year in any of these areas. 

Page 19



 

 

7 Background documents1  

7.2 City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015 

7.3 Council Business Plan 2011 to 2015 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 20



C
IT

Y
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

H
W

1
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 1
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

:
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

a
d

u
lt
s
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

e
 l
o
n

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

ie
r 

liv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

H
e

lp
 p

ro
te

c
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 h
a

rm
fu

l 
e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
f 

to
b

a
c
c
o

.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
T

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

b
le

 d
is

e
a
s
e

 a
n
d
 p

re
m

a
tu

re
 d

e
a
th

. 
It

 i
s
 n

o
t 

o
n
ly

 h
a
rm

fu
l 

to
 s

m
o
k
e
rs

 b
u

t 
a
ls

o
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
m

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 d

a
m

a
g

in
g

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

s
e

c
o

n
d
-h

a
n

d
 s

m
o
k
e

. 
S

m
o

k
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 

a
re

 
m

u
c
h
 
h
ig

h
e
r 

in
 
s
o
m

e
 
s
o

c
ia

l 
g
ro

u
p
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 
th

o
s
e
 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
lo

w
e
s
t 

in
c
o

m
e
s
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 
g

ro
u

p
s
 
s
u

ff
e

r 
th

e
 
h

ig
h
e
s
t 

b
u
rd

e
n

 
o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
-r

e
la

te
d
 i
lln

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
a
th

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 s

in
g

le
 b

ig
g
e
s
t 

c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
in

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 d
e
a
th

 r
a
te

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 r

ic
h
e
s
t 

a
n
d
 p

o
o
re

s
t 

in
 

o
u

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

L
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 h

a
v
e

 f
a

lle
n

 s
in

c
e
 t

h
e

 1
9
6

0
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

2
4

%
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 l

iv
in

g
 i

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 w

h
o

 s
m

o
k
e

a
n

d
 t
h

is
 d

e
c
lin

e
 i
n

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 h

a
s
 s

to
p

p
e
d

 a
n

d
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
v
e

rs
in

g
. 
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
:

A
m

b
e
r

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

 

 
L
e

e
d
s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 a

 p
la

te
a
u
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
, 

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
n
d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 n
o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

s
o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

tr
y
 a

re
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 t
o
 s

e
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 r

a
te

s
; 

th
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 n

o
ti
c
e
a
b
le

 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 a
re

a
s
, 
h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e

 a
ll
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o

 c
o
n

tr
o

l 
if
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 
b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
  
 

 
T

h
e
 4

 w
e
e
k
 q

u
it
 r

a
te

 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
L
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

a
s
 4

4
5
0
 q

u
it
te

rs
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
w

a
s
 4

6
7
2

 (
1

0
4

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t)
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 a
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 l
a

s
t 

y
e
a
r 

b
y
 1

.4
%

.

 
A

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 s

to
p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
p
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 c
it
y
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 (
6
0
%

) 
w

h
o
 q

u
it
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

te
a
m

 o
f 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
  
a
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
  
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 G

P
 r

e
g
is

te
rs

 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

n
 a

 
q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

d
a

ta
 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

to
p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
. 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

t 
b
o
th

 4
 a

n
d
 5

2
 w

e
e

k
s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 q
u
it
 d

a
y
. 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
la

te
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 e

.g
. 
a

d
v
ic

e
 g

iv
e
n
 f
ro

m
 G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
, 
L
T

H
T

 a
n
d

 L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re

. 
  

 
T

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
s
m

o
k
e
rs

 t
o
o
lk

it
 w

h
ic

h
 m

o
n
it
o
rs

 a
tt

it
u
d
e
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

 q
u

it
ti
n
g
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
s
m

o
k
e
rs

 a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 l
e
s
s
 m

o
ti
v
a
te

d
 t
o
 q

u
it
 a

n
d
 l
e
s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 s

e
t 
a
 

q
u
it
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
e
m

s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
n

d
s
 o

f 
p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
.

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 f
o
r 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 a

lw
a
y
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 o

n
e
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
im

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
llo

w
 

u
p

 o
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 a
t 
4

 w
e

e
k
s
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
a

 q
u
it
 d

a
te

 i
.e

. 
if
 a

 q
u

it
 d

a
te

 i
s
 s

e
t 
a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

1
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 t
im

e
 l
a
g
 t
o
 o

b
ta

in
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
it
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 
a
n
d
 

d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 c

o
lla

ti
o
n

.

H
e

a
d

li
n

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r:

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 o

v
e

r 
1

8
 t

h
a

t 
s
m

o
k
e

.

Q
tr
1

Q
tr
2

Q
tr
3

Q
tr
4

Q
tr
1

Q
tr
2

Q
tr
3

Q
tr
4

Q
tr
1

Q
tr
2

Q
tr
3

Q
tr
4

Q
tr
1

Q
tr
2

Q
tr
3

Q
tr
4

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

a
c
tu

a
l

2
3
.3

%
2
2
.9

%
2
3
.1

%
2
3
.0

%
2
2
.9

%
2
2
.9

%
2
2
.7

%
2
2
.6

%
2
2
.6

%
2
2
.4

%
2
2
.8

%
2
2
.8

%
2
2
.8

%
2
2
.7

%
2
2
.8

%
2
2
.7

%

tr
a
je

c
to

ry
2
7
.4

%
2
6
.8

%
2
6
.3

%
2
5
.7

%
2
5
.1

%
2
4
.5

%
2
3
.9

%
2
3
.3

%
2
2
.8

%
2
2
.2

%
2
1
.0

%
2
1
.0

%
2
1
.0

%
2
1
.0

%
2
1
.0

%
2
1
.0

%

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

3
0
%

percentageofsmokers

S
m

o
k
in

g
 P

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 in

 L
e
e
d

s

Page 21



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

  
  

 

 
T

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 c
it
y
w

id
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

to
b
a
c
c
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d

 t
o
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 b
y
 1

3
th
 J

u
ly

. 
T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
p
la

n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 I
n

q
u

ir
y
 R

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 ‘
R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
’ 
(M

a
y
 2

0
1

2
) 

T
h
e

 n
e
w

ly
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 L

if
e

s
ty

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 
to

 b
e
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g

 l
o
w

e
r 

le
v
e
l 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 
is

 c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g

 a
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 r

e
fe

rr
e

rs
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 i
n
fo

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n

ta
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
d
h
e
re

n
c
e
 t
o
 s

m
o
k
e

 f
re

e
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o
n
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o

 t
h
e
 s

m
o
k
e
-f

re
e
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
: 

 
T

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

: 
  
 1

7
 

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

q
u
e
s
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 a

lle
g
e
d
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n
s
id

e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
: 
 1

2
 

 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
a

d
v
ic

e
, 
e

g
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 s

h
e

lt
e

r 
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
: 
 5

 
O

f 
th

e
 1

2
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n

 p
re

m
is

e
s
, 
tw

o
 o

f 
th

e
m

 r
e
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
a
m

e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
m

 r
e
la

te
d
 t
o
 a

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
a
n
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n
 h

is
 v

a
n
. 
 I
n
 

e
a
c
h
 c

a
s
e
, 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 

S
m

o
k
e
-f

re
e

 (
P

re
m

is
e
s
 a

n
d
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t)

 R
e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
 2

0
0
6
, 
w

e
re

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 i
n
 

w
ri
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
m

.

 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
N

IC
E

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

P
H

2
6
 ‘
Q

u
it
ti
n
g

 S
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 C

h
ild

 B
ir
th

’.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

id
w

iv
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 w

it
h

 c
a
rb

o
n
 m

o
n
o

x
id

e
 m

o
n
it
o
rs

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
o
f 
p
re

g
n
a
n
t 

w
o
m

e
n

 f
o

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t
o

 s
to

p
 s

m
o

k
in

g
. 
 

L
e

e
d
s
 L

e
t’
s
 C

h
a

n
g
e

 t
e

a
m

 w
o

rk
e
d

 w
it
h

 C
lin

ic
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
s
 t
o

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 b
e

in
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
B

o
th

 L
e
e
d
s
 S

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 E

a
s
t 
a

n
d

 L
e
e

d
s
 N

o
rt

h
 C

C
G

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
lo

c
a

l 
in

c
e
n

ti
v
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f
o

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

.

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e

d
 l

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

T
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
e

d
 p

a
c
k
a

g
in

g
 f

o
r 

to
b

a
c
c
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

e
v
e
n
t 

w
a
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 l
e

a
rn

 m
o
re

 
a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 c
a
m

p
a

ig
n

 a
n

d
 s

h
a
re

 t
h

e
ir
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir

 l
o
c
a
l 

M
P

. 
2
9
 p

e
o
p
le

 
c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

h
e

ir
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

h
e
ir

 v
ie

w
s
 t

o
 H

ila
ry

 B
e
n
n

. 
 

O
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 u
n
a

b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 i
n
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 

s
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
to

 
h

e
lp

 e
n
g

a
g

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

le
 L

e
e
d

s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 r
e
s
p
o

n
d

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 
L
C

C
 H

R
 H

O
S

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 d

ra
ft

in
g

 a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 L

C
C

 s
m

o
k
e
fr

e
e

 
p
o
lic

y
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
o
b
a

c
c
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

 
L
T

H
T

 h
e
ld

 a
 t
o

b
a
c
c
o

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 i
n
 M

a
y
, 
th

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 l
e
a
d
s
 b

e
in

g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 t
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 
s
m

o
k
e

 f
re

e
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e

 a
w

a
rd

, 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 p
ri

o
ri
ty

 c
lin

ic
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 (

c
a
rd

io
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
ir
a
to

ry
) 

a
n
d
 p

re
 o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
, 
a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 

 
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o

r 
fu

n
d
in

g
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
: 
 

o
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 n
ic

h
e

 t
o

b
a

c
c
o

 w
o
rk

 i
n

 S
o
u
th

 a
n
d
 E

a
s
t 
N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 

o
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 L

e
e
d

s
 L

e
t’
s
 C

h
a
n
g
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 s
e
lf
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
o

o
l.
 

o
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 L

e
t’
s
 C

h
a
n
g
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
g
re

e
d
 
b
y
 
th

e
 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 
H

u
m

b
e
r 

T
o
b
a

c
c
o
 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 

C
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 
to

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
a
 
T

ra
d

in
g
 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 
c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 r

o
le

 
u
p
 
u
n
ti
l,
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 k

e
y
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

a
t 

ro
le

 a
re

 t
o

 a
d
v
o
c
a
te

 
a
n
d
 i

n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

tr
a
d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

g
io

n
 i

n
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
, 
w

it
h

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
e

m
p
h

a
s
is

 o
n

: 
o

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 
to

b
a

c
c
o
 
re

la
te

d
 
in

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 
in

 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
b
y
 
p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 
w

o
rk

 
w

h
ic

h
 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
D

H
 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
p
ri
o

ri
ty

 
g
ro

u
p
s
 
th

a
t 

re
g
u

la
rl
y
 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 

ill
ic

it
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
;

o
 

S
to

p
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o
;

o
 

M
a

k
in

g
 t
o

b
a
c
c
o

 l
e
s
s
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
;

o
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

o
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o
n

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

A
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
p

o
s
tc

o
d
e

 d
a

ta
 o

f 
p

re
g

n
a

n
t 
w

o
m

e
n

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 

s
ta

tu
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
a
t 

L
e

e
d
s
 T

e
a
c
h

in
g

 H
o
s
p

it
a

ls
 T

ru
s
t.

 T
h

is
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 n

e
e
d
. 
 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

a
n
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ri
s
k
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 a

n
d

/o
r 

a
n

y
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e
s
 o

r 
is

s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
la

n
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

la
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

c
a
le

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
. 

Page 22



C
IT

Y
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
P

L
A

N
R

E
P

O
R

T
C

A
R

D
H

W
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

1

M
e

e
ti

n
g

:
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

  
 

 
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

:
A

ll 
a

d
u

lt
s
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
P

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 f

u
ll,

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

:
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 s

a
fe

ly
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 

a
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
liv

e
s
. 

 
 

h
o

m
e

s
.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
:

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
re

g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
a
g
e
, 
w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
to

 b
e
 c

a
re

d
 f
o
r 

a
t 
h
o
m

e
 o

r 
c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 a

v
o
id

in
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

u
n
p
la

n
n
e
d

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
o

r 
n
u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
.

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

 
A

M
B

E
R

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
:

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

 -
 T

h
e

 k
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
 f
ro

m
 s

ta
k
e
h
o

ld
e

rs
: 

H
e
lp

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

n
e

e
d
s
 l
o
c
a

lly
, 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 c

lo
s
e

r 
to

 p
e

o
p

le
s
 h

o
m

e
s
 m

e
a

n
s
 p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

e
y
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 m

o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
P

e
o
p
le

 n
e
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 c

h
o
ic

e
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
h
o
w

 a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 c

a
re

. 
  
 

T
h

e
 S

to
ry

 b
e

h
in

d
 t

h
e

 B
a

s
e

li
n

e

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
d
o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 t

o
 

re
q

u
ir
e
 
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p

p
o
rt

 
b

y
 
th

e
 
L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
fo

r 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 
to

 
c
a
re

 
h
o
m

e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
s
e
v
e
n
 y

e
a
rs

. 

A
n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 b

e
d
 w

e
e
k
s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
h
o
w

 t
h
a
t:

  
  
  

  
  

 
L

e
e

d
s
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 
1
3

8
,9

9
6

 
b
e

d
 

w
e
e

k
s
 

in
 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
’s

 
c
a
re

 
h

o
m

e
s
 

in
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
3
.2

%
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

 
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 

n
u

rs
in

g
 c

a
re

 b
e

d
 w

e
e
k
s
 
fo

r 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 
re

d
u
c
e
d

 f
ro

m
 
4
8

,9
1

5
 t

o
 

4
6
,7

6
4
 (

4
.4

%
) 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

b
e
d
 w

e
e
k
s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 h

o
m

e
s
 f

e
ll 

fr
o
m

 2
7
,2

1
2
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 t
o
 2

2
,9

3
2
 i
n
 2

0
1
1

/1
2
 (

1
5
.7

%
).

 

 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

b
e
d
 w

e
e
k
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 i

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

s
e
c
to

r 
re

m
a
in

e
d
 a

lm
o

s
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

 
A

t 
3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 2

,3
6
8

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

tl
y
 i

n
 

c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
5
.5

%
. 

T
h

e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 s

u
g

g
e
s
t 

th
a

t 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 a

re
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

lo
n

g
e
r 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
 

a
n
d
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 

la
te

r 
s
ta

g
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
ir
 l

iv
e
s
. 

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 l

a
s
t 

fe
w

 
y
e

a
rs

 t
h
e

 c
it
y
 h

a
s
 f

a
c
e

d
 a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 

u
p

o
n

 
th

e
 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
to

 
s
u
p

p
o
rt

 
p

e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
ir
 
c
a
re

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 
ri
s
in

g
 

d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
; 

a
n

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
a

d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 
fu

n
d

e
d

 t
h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d
 n

u
rs

in
g

 c
a

re
 e

x
h

a
u
s
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 r
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
, 

a
n

d
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

to
 

th
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

s
h
o
rt

 
te

rm
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 

o
n

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
s
 

h
o
s
p

it
a

l 
w

a
rd

 
p

la
c
e
s
 

a
re

 
re

d
u
c
e

d
 

a
n
d
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
is

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 i
n
to

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
d

m
is

is
o

n
s

 o
f 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 o

v
e

r
 6

5
 t

o
 

P
e

r
m

a
n

e
n

t 
R

e
s

id
e

n
ti

a
l 

&
 N

u
r
s

in
g

 C
a

r
e

 p
e

r
 1

0
,0

0
0

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1

2
/1

3

Q
te

r 
1

P
H

Q
1

5
: 

U
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 h
o

s
p

it
a

li
s

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
c

h
ro

n
ic

 a
m

b
u

la
to

ry
 c

a
re

 s
e

n
s

it
iv

e
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

 (
a

d
u

lt
s

)

7
0
.0

0

7
5
.0

0

8
0
.0

0

8
5
.0

0

9
0
.0

0

9
5
.0

0

M
7
 -

 O
c
t

2
0
1
1

M
8
 -

 N
o
v

2
0
1
1

M
9
 -

 D
e
c

2
0
1
1

M
1
0
 -

 J
a
n

2
0
1
2

M
1
1
 -

 F
e
b

2
0
1
2

M
1
2
 -

 M
a
r

2
0
1
2

M
1
 -

 A
p
r

2
0
1
2

M
2
 -

 M
a
y

2
0
1
2

M
3
 -

 J
u
n

2
0
1
2

Rate per 100,000 population

Page 23



W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
: 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 H
o

lt
 P

a
rk

 W
e

llb
e

in
g

 c
e
n

tr
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 ‘
tu

rn
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
o

d
’ 

c
e
re

m
o

n
y
 i

n
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 a

n
d

 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e

d
 t

o
 o

p
e

n
 i

n
 A

u
tu

m
n

 2
0
1
3

. 
O

v
e

r 
th

e
 

n
e

x
t 

fe
w

 m
o

n
th

s
 f

o
c
u
s
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 t
o

 s
h

if
t 

fr
o

m
 d

e
s
ig

n
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
is

s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

rt
in

g
 

to
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
d
e
ta

il 
a
b
o
u
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g
, 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e

n
t.

  

R
e
a
b

le
m

e
n
t 

(S
k
IL

s
) 

te
a
m

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
, 

a
n
d
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
a
t 

fu
ll 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

P
a
th

w
a
y
s
 a

re
 o

p
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

o
n
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 
u
s
e
rs

 
a

n
d

 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

d
is

c
h
a

rg
e

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

d
a
ta

 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 

v
e
ry

 
fa

v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 
w

it
h
 

n
a

ti
o
n
a
l 

h
ig

h
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

e
rs

, 
w

it
h

 7
0

%
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

 r
e
q
u

ir
in

g
 n

o
 o

n
g
o

in
g

 p
a
c
k
a

g
e
 o

f 
c
a

re
 o

n
c
e

 
re

a
b
le

m
e
n

t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

A
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 J
S

N
A

 w
it
h
 a

 s
h
a

rp
e
r 

fo
c
u
s
 u

p
o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 n
e

tw
o
rk

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i

n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 a

 j
o
in

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 &

 A
S

C
 i

s
 

b
e

in
g

 a
g

re
e

d
. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 

L
e

e
d
s
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 
a

n
d

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 k

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
: 
 

 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n

 i
n
te

ri
m

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i

n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

T
e
le

h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 B

o
s
c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
  

 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 
H

e
a
lt
h
 
a
n
d
 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
T

e
a
m

 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a

s
: 
C

h
a
p
e
lt
o
w

n
, 

A
rm

le
y
 a

n
d
 H

u
n
s
le

t.
 

 
L
e
e
d
s
 i

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
o
n
ly

 6
 p

ilo
ts

 c
h
o
s
e
n

 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 t

o
 p

ilo
t 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r 

o
f 

C
a
re

. 
T

h
e
 p

ilo
t 

w
ill

 t
e
s
t 

th
e
 p

ro
o

f 
o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
p

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 Y

e
a
r 

o
f 

C
a
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

m
o
d
e
l.

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e

d
 l

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t:

 

M
a
rg

a
re

t’
s
 
s
to

ry
 
–

 
A

ft
e
r 

c
o
lla

p
s
in

g
 
in

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

w
it
h
 
P

n
e
u

m
o
n

ia
 
M

a
rg

a
re

t 
w

a
s
 

ta
k
e

n
 t

o
 S

T
 J

a
m

e
s
’s

 h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 w
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 b

e
in

g
 a

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
la

d
y
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 

h
a

d
 n

o
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n
c
e

. 
 M

a
rg

a
re

t 
a

ls
o

 h
a

d
 o

th
e

r 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 a

s
th

m
a

, 
h
e

a
rt

 
fa

ilu
re

 
a
n
d
 
d
ia

b
e
te

s
. 

“I
 
c
o
u
ld

 
n
o
t 

e
v
e
n

 
m

a
k
e
 
a
 
c
u
p
 
o
f 

te
a
 
le

t 
a
lo

n
e
 
lo

o
k
 
a
ft
e
r 

m
y
s
e
lf
”.

  
T

h
e
 S

k
IL

s
 t

e
a
m

 b
e
c
a
m

e
 i
n

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 M

a
rg

a
re

t 
w

h
e
n

 s
h
e
 c

a
m

e
 

o
u
t 

o
f 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
‘T

h
e
y
 c

h
iv

v
ie

d
 m

e
 a

lo
n
g
 a

n
d
 g

o
t 

m
e
 g

o
in

g
’ 
s
h
e
 a

d
d
s
, 

th
e
y
 g

a
v
e
 m

e
 

s
o

 m
u

c
h

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
y
 h

e
lp

e
d

 m
e

 w
it
h

 m
e

a
ls

 a
n
d

 h
e

lp
e

d
 m

e
 t

o
 w

a
s
h

 a
n
d
  

h
e
lp

e
d
 m

e
 m

a
k
e
 i
t.
  
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 s

o
 k

in
d

 e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 S

u
e
, 
K

a
re

n
 a

n
d
 G

a
il.

  

‘I
t 
w

a
s
 a

 p
le

a
s
u
re

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 M

a
rg

a
re

t 
is

 a
 t
ri
e
r 

e
x
p
la

in
s
 S

u
e
 a

n
d
 K

a
re

n
 a

g
re

e
s
. 

‘I
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

s
p
e
a

k
 h

ig
h

ly
 e

n
o
u
g
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 l

o
v
e
ly

 g
ir
ls

’ 
s
a
y
s
 M

a
rg

a
re

t 
‘ 

lo
n
g
 m

a
y
 t

h
e
y
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
.

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
: 

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
IC

T
 a

n
d
 R

e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

w
a
s
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 o

n
 

2
3

rd
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
. 

A
n

 o
u

tl
in

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

, 
a
n

d
 a

 
v
is

io
n
in

g
 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 
w

a
s
 
h
e

ld
 
in

 
M

a
y
 
to

 
re

v
ie

w
 
re

s
u
lt
s
 
fr

o
m

 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
, 

th
e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
e
tc

. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 
is

 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 

to
 

o
p
e
n
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 

p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 

fo
r 

re
a
b
le

m
e
n

t 
to

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 r
e

a
b

le
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 a
lig

n
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

k
IL

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 b
ro

k
e
ra

g
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 

b
e
in

g
 

e
x
p
lo

re
d
. 

W
o
rk

 
to

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

re
a
b
le

m
e
n

t 
p
la

n
s
 

to
 

b
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 ‘
A

T
 H

u
b
’,
 a

 
o
n
e
 s

to
p
 s

h
o
p

 
fo

r 
a
s
s
is

ti
v
e
 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 
in

 
L
e
e
d
s
. 

A
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o
n
 
e
v
e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
. 

A
 2

 y
e
a
r 

p
a

th
fi
n
d
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 
(P

H
B

) 
a
n
d
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a

lis
e
d
 

c
a
re

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

(P
C

P
) 

fo
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 
e
lig

ib
le

 
fo

r 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

a
re

 (
C

H
C

) 
F

u
n
d

in
g
 w

it
h
in

 N
H

S
 L

e
e
d
s
. 
 

T
h

ro
u

g
h
 t

h
e

 L
e

e
d
s
 H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 k

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
: 
 

 
D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 –

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
a
 c

it
y
-w

id
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
A

 C
Q

U
IN

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
s
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 c
a
re

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
Q

U
IN

 a
im

s
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 a

s
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
d
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l.
  

 
E

n
d
 o

f 
L
if
e
 –

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c

it
y
-w

id
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 l
o
o
k
 

to
 j
o
in

 u
p
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t:
 

W
o
rk

 
to

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
in

te
lli

g
e
n

c
e

 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 
a

n
d

 
s
h

a
ri

n
g
 
a

c
ro

s
s
 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 
a

n
d
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
. 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
re

 l
o
o

k
in

g
 t

o
 p

ro
c
u

re
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 w

h
ic

h
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
lla

te
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
  

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

: 

 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 f

a
il 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

t 
lo

c
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 c

it
y
-w

id
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
le

v
e
l 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
. 
 

 
T

h
e

re
 
is

 
a

 
ri
s
k
 
o

f 
in

a
d

e
q
u

a
te

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 
b
e
in

g
 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
L
e
e
d
s
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 

 
A

d
u
lt
s
’ 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
fa

ils
 
to

 
d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 
w

h
o
le

 
o
f 

it
s
 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 
S

y
s
te

m
s
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

Page 24



C
IT

Y
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 C

A
R

D
H

W
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 1
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

:
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

  
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

:
A

ll 
a

d
u

lt
s
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
P

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
P

ri
o

ri
ty

:
G

iv
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
ir

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 
to

 l
iv

e
 f

u
ll,

 a
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

liv
e

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s
 t

h
is

 a
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
re

g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
a
g
e
, 
w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
to

 b
e
 c

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

a
t 
h
o
m

e
 o

r 
c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

 

G
R

E
E

N

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

: 
L
e
e

d
s
 l
ik

e
 m

a
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

c
it
ie

s
 h

a
s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
 w

h
o
s
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

b
o

th
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
L

o
n
g

 t
e

rm
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 
7

0
%

 
o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 c
o
s
ts

, 
a
n
d
 a

lm
o
s
t 
th

re
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 g

a
p
 i
n
 l
if
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

L
e

e
d
s
 o

v
e

ra
ll.

 

T
h
e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 f
o
llo

w
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
tr

e
n
d
 o

f 
a
 s

lig
h
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
g
a

ti
v
e
 e

x
p
e

ri
e
n
c
e
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

re
 f
e
e

lin
g
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d

it
io

n
. 

‘T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

’ 
L
A

C
 (

D
H

) 
(2

0
0
8
) 

o
u
tl
in

e
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p
o

lic
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
 t
h
e
ir
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 o

r 
c
a
re

 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
b
e
s
t 
s
u
it
s
 t
h
e
ir
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
. 
A

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 1

7
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 h
a
d
 h

a
d
 t
h
is

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 
B

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t
h
is

 h
a
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 2

9
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 (
4
,5

5
0

 p
e
o
p
le

).
 F

in
a
l 

fi
g
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 2

0
1
1

/1
2
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
5
%

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
, 
w

it
h

 5
2
%

 o
f 
e
lig

ib
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

rs
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
s
e

lf
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

P
 s

u
rv

e
y
 d

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 a

 b
i-
a
n
n
u

a
l 
b

a
s
is

. 
 

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

: 
A

 s
u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
s
k
e
d
 (

6
5
%

) 
u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

1
9
%

 c
o
u
ld

n
’t
 r

e
m

e
m

b
e
r 

h
a
v
in

g
 t
h
in

g
s
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 7

%
 s

a
id

 i
t 

w
a
s
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 b

u
t 
th

e
y
 s

tr
u
g
g
le

d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
. 
9
%

 s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 
it
 w

a
s
n
’t
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
. 

W
h

e
n

 a
s
k
e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 r

e
a
s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

o
o
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

if
 t
h
e
y
 d

id
) 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 (
5
5
%

) 
s
a
id

 t
h
a
t 
it
 w

a
s
 t
h
e

ir
 c

h
o
ic

e
. 
O

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
t,

 1
7
%

 l
ik

e
d
 t
h
e
 i
d

e
a
 o

f 
h
a
v
in

g
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
b
u
t 
w

e
re

 w
o
rr

ie
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
fi
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
o
r 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
a
d

v
ic

e
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 n
u

m
b
e
r 

(i
n
 r

o
u
g
h
ly

 e
q
u
a
l 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
s
) 

d
id

n
’t
 r

e
a
lly

 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
, 
d
id

n
’t
 h

a
v
e
 o

th
e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d
 o

r 
th

o
u
g
h
t 
th

a
t 
b
u

y
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
o
u
n
d
e

d
 t
o
o
 h

a
rd

. 

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
In

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 c
o

n
d
it
io

n
s
 

fe
e
lin

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
.

Page 25



W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
: 

T
w

o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 r
e
c
ru

it
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 c
a
re

rs
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
e

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
W

o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 t
h
e

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 f
o
r 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
.

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
&

 D
a
y
 C

a
re

 -
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

 o
f 
th

e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 d

e
-

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

d
a

y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

re
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
, 
w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

tw
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
h
o
m

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

t 
a
 

fu
tu

re
 d

a
te

 p
e
n
d
in

g
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n
ti
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

s
s
e
t 
T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
B

id
 a

t 
D

o
lp

h
in

 M
a
n
o
r 

a
n
d
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

In
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 C

a
re

 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
H

a
rr

y
 B

o
o
th

 H
o
u
s
e
. 

B
e

tt
e

r 
L

iv
e

s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 -
 A

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 o
u

tl
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
o

d
e

l 
to

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
 

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 A

S
C

 D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 
T

e
a
m

 o
n
 7

th
 J

u
n
e

 2
0
1
2
 .
O

v
e
ra

ll,
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

 ‘
m

o
v
e
-

o
n
’ 
p
o
lic

y
, 
w

h
e
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
re

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o

 r
e
c
o

v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o
t 
b

e
c
o

m
e

 
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
N

e
x
t 
s
te

p
s
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 l
ia

is
o
n
 w

it
h
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 J

u
ly

-S
e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
. 
 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 k

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
: 
 

 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 

o
f 

R
is

k
 S

tr
a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
, 

w
it
h
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 

o
f 

4
5
0
 H

e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

e
d

 t
o

 u
s
e
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 s

tr
a
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 

to
o
l 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 

 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
e
a
m

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a

s
: 
C

h
a
p
e
lt
o
w

n
, 

A
rm

le
y
 a

n
d
 H

u
n
s
le

t.
  

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e
d

 l
o

c
a

ll
y
 /
C

a
s

e
 s

tu
d

y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t:

  
T

h
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

ia
b

e
te

s
 S

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 
N

u
rs

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 

T
h
e
 n

u
rs

e
s
 w

e
re

 v
e
ry

 k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 i
t 
h
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 m

e
 w

it
h

 m
y
 d

ie
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 

a
n
d
 h

e
lp

e
d
 m

e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 m

y
 d

ia
b
e
te

s
. 
I 
w

is
h
 I
 h

a
d
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

m
u

c
h

 e
a

rl
ie

r”
 

“T
h
e
 n

u
rs

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
a
lly

 h
e

lp
e
d
 m

e
 a

n
d
 I
 a

m
 f
e
e
lin

g
 b

e
tt
e

r 
in

 m
y
s
e
lf
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e
 

m
y
 d

ia
b

e
te

s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n

d
e

r 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
–

 w
h

ic
h

 I
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
 b

e
fo

re
”

It
 i
s
 a

 s
h

a
m

e
 t
h

is
 c

o
u

rs
e

 h
a

s
n

’t
 b

e
e

n
 a

ro
u

n
d

 l
o
n

g
e
r 

–
 a

s
 I
 f
e

e
l 
m

y
 d

ia
b

e
te

s
 

m
a

y
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
g
o
t 
a
s
 b

a
d
 a

s
 i
t 
h
a
s
. 
T

h
is

 c
o

u
rs

e
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 u
s
e
fu

l 
–
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 w

e
e
k
 

2
 m

y
 G

P
 p

u
t 

m
e

 o
n
 M

e
tf

o
rm

in
 a

n
d
 I
 f
e
e
l 
m

u
c
h
 l
e
s
s
 t
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 I
 f
e
e
l 
m

u
c
h
 b

e
tt

e
r.

 
I 
w

o
u
ld

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 a

n
y
o
n
e
 w

it
h
 d

ia
b

e
te

s
 t
o
 c

o
m

e
 o

n
 a

 c
o
u
rs

e
 l
ik

e
 t
h
is

 –
 m

y
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

in
g
 d

o
w

n
 a

n
d
 s

o
 h

o
p

e
fu

lly
 m

y
 w

e
ig

h
t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 c
o
m

e
 d

o
w

n
.

I 
fe

e
l 
v
e
ry

 g
ra

te
fu

l 
fo

r 
a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 g
iv

e
n
 t
o
 m

e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 

e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
le

a
d
e

rs
 o

n
 t
h

is
 c

o
u

rs
e

 –
 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

w
a
y
 m

y
 f
e
a
r 

o
f 
d
ia

b
e
te

s
. 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
6
 w

e
e
k
s
 w

it
h
 a

 b
ri

lli
a
n
t 
te

a
m

 –
 I
 w

o
u

ld
 h

ig
h

ly
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t
h

is
 c

o
u
rs

e
; 

I 
h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 l
o
s
t 
1
s
to

n
e

 i
n
 w

e
ig

h
t 
w

h
ils

t 
b
e
e
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
: 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
o
d
e
l 
w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e

 t
h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 p

e
o
p

le
 t
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

rs
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 a

im
 i
s
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
. 

‘M
a

k
in

g
 i
t 
R

e
a

l,
’ 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f
o
r 

m
e

a
s
u

ri
n

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
L
e
e
d
s
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 (
A

S
C

) 
h
a

s
 m

a
d
e

 a
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

in
 c

o
-p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 u

s
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
A

 f
o

ru
m

 o
f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e
rs

 h
a

s
 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t.
  

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 m
o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
u
ti
lis

in
g
 d

ir
e
c
t 
p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 c

h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
. 
W

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

b
in

in
g

 P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

m
p
o
w

e
rm

e
n
t 
(C

P
C

E
) 

p
ro

je
c
t 
1
4
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 e

n
a
b

lin
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
-

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 s
o
c
ia

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
ta

s
k
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 m

e
a
l 
p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

..
  

B
e

tt
e

r 
L

iv
e

s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 -
 A

 c
ro

s
s
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 p
ro

je
c
t 
te

a
m

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
 t
h

e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 a

 r
e
p
o

rt
 t
o
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
. 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 k

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
: 
 

 
Y

e
a
r 

o
f 

C
a
re

 
P

ilo
t 

–
 
w

o
rk

 
w

ill
 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 
to

 
ta

k
e
 
th

is
 
fo

rw
a
rd

, 
E

n
s
u
ri
n

g
 c

lo
s
e

 l
in

k
s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
u
rr

e
n

t 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n

 a
g

e
n
d

a
 w

it
h

in
 L

e
e
d

s
. 

T
h
e
 p

ilo
t 
w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 f
o
r 

a
 1

0
 m

o
n
th

 p
e

ri
o
d
. 

D
a
ta

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t:
 

A
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 J
S

N
A

 w
it
h

 a
 s

h
a

rp
e
r 

fo
c
u
s
 u

p
o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 n
e

tw
o
rk

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i

n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
. 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
re

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 p

ro
c
u
re

 s
o
ft

w
a
re

 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 c

o
lla

te
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 C
h

a
ll
e
n

g
e
s
: 

 

 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
fa

ils
 

to
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 

th
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n

a
lis

e
d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
a
n
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

fa
il 

to
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
n
d
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 
a
t 

lo
c
a
lit

y
 
a
n

d
 
c
it
y
-w

id
e
 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
le

v
e
l 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
. 
 

 
T

h
e

re
 
is

 
a

 
ri
s
k
 
o

f 
in

a
d
e

q
u

a
te

 
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 
b
e

in
g
 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
L
e
e
d
s
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 s

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

.

 
A

d
u
lt
s
’ 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
fa

ils
 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

w
h
o
le

 
o
f 

it
s
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

In
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

o
r 

p
o
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 I

n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 a

 d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
.

Page 26



2
0

1
2

/1
3

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

  
 C

IT
Y

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 P
L

A
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 C
A

R
D

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
H

W
4

 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

:
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
: 

A
ll 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
B

e
s
t 

C
it
y
 f

o
r 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

 
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

M
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 t

h
e

 p
o

o
re

s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 h
e

a
lt
h

 t
h

e
 f

a
s
te

s
t.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
. 

2
0

 %
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 1

0
%

 m
o

s
t 

d
e

p
ri

v
e

d
 S

u
p

e
r 

O
u

tp
u

t 
A

re
a
s
 

(S
O

A
s
) 

in
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

5
0

,0
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e

d
s
. 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l,
 e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 t

h
a

t 
a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 a
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

in
g

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 L

e
e

d
s
 f

o
r 

m
e

n
 a

n
d

 w
o

m
e

n
 b

y
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
:  

1
)T

h
e

re
 
is

 
a

 
1

0
.1

 
y
e

a
r 

g
a

p
 
in

 
lif

e
 
e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 
fo

r 
m

e
n

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 
C

it
y
 
&

 
H

u
n

s
le

t 
a

n
d

 
H

a
re

w
o

o
d

 
(7

1
.6

 
y
e

a
rs

:8
1

.7
y
e

a
rs

)  
2

)T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 9
.6

 y
e

a
r 

g
a

p
 i

n
 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 f

o
r 

w
o

m
e

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 &

 H
u

n
s
le

t 
a

n
d

 A
d

e
l/
W

h
a

rf
e

d
a

le
 

(7
6

.1
y
e

a
r:

8
5

.7
y
e

a
rs

)

O
v

e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
:

R
e

d

H
e

a
d

li
n

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r

 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 i
n

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 
th

e
 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 
in

 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 

lif
e

 
e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

S
to

ry
 

b
e

h
in

d
 

th
e

 
b

a
s

e
li

n
e

: 
O

v
e

ra
ll 

lif
e

 
e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 

in
 

L
e

e
d

s
 

is
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
re

 
is

 
a

 
m

u
c
h

 
lo

w
e

r 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
lif

e
 
e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e

 
liv

in
g
 
th

e
 
m

o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri

v
e

d
 
a

re
a

s
 
o

f 
L

e
e
d

s
 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 
a

b
s
o

lu
te

 
g
a

p
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
th

e
s
e

 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 
is

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 
k
e

y
 
c
a

u
s
e

s
 
o

f 
p

re
m

a
tu

re
 

m
o

rt
a

lit
y
 a

re
 c

a
rd

io
v
a

s
c
u

la
r 

d
is

e
a

s
e
, 

c
a

n
c
e

r,
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

ir
a

to
ry

 d
is

e
a

s
e

. 
A

ll 
p

re
m

a
tu

re
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 d
is

e
a

s
e

s
 i

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

o
n

 d
e

p
ri

v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
 

o
f 

L
e

e
d

s
. 

F
o

r 
s
o

m
e

 d
is

e
a

s
e

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 r

e
s
p

ir
a

to
ry

 a
n

d
 s

tr
o

k
e

 m
o

rt
a

lit
y
 

ra
te

s
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e

. 
C

a
u
s
e

s
 o

f 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
s
e

 d
is

e
a
s
e
s
 

a
re

 
m

u
lt
if
a

c
e

te
d

 
a

n
d

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 
th

e
 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
w

id
e

r 
d

e
te

rm
in

a
n

ts
 
o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
u

c
h
 a

s
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
n
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l’s
 l

if
e

s
ty

le
 (

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

m
o

k
in

g
/a

lc
o
h

o
l/
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n

g
) 

, 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

. 
 T

h
e

 V
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
L

e
e

d
s
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
: 

• 
p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 g

e
t 

o
u

t 
o

f 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
; 

• 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

e
lp

s
 m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l;
 •

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

e
e

l 
s
a

fe
; 

• 
a

ll 
h

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 o

f 
a

 d
e

c
e

n
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 a
n

d
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 c
a

n
 a

ff
o

rd
 t

o
 s

ta
y
 w

a
rm

; 
• 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 l
if
e

 c
h

o
ic

e
s
 a

re
 e

a
s
ie

r 
to

 m
a

k
e

; 
• 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 

m
o

ti
v
a

te
d

 t
o

 r
e

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
y
c
le

; 
• 

th
e
re

 a
re

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
-l

e
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
m

e
e

t 
lo

c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
; 

• 
lo

c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
o

p
s
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

c
a

re
, 

a
re

 e
a

s
y
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 m
e

e
t 

p
e

o
p

le
’s

 n
e

e
d

s
; 

• 
lo

c
a

l 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
a

n
d

 s
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll;
 a

n
d

 •
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 

p
la

c
e
s
 

a
n

d
 g

re
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 c
le

a
n

, 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r,
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
th

e
 c

it
y
’s

 h
e
ri

ta
g

e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 

p
a

rk
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 h

is
to

ry
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

  
  
 

Page 27



W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

L
im

it
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 u
n

d
e
r 

5
 y

rs
: 

 

E
a
rl

y
 

S
ta

rt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

A
lig

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

E
a
rl
y
 

S
ta

rt
 

T
e
a
m

s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 
o
f 

c
o
re

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

e
a

c
h
 
E

a
rl
y
 
S

ta
rt

 
T

e
a
m

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
In

te
g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

g
re

e
d

  

F
a
m

il
y
 N

u
rs

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
h

ir
d

 s
e
c
to

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ta
ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e
r 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 F
N

P
 B

o
a
rd

 .
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 f

e
e

d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 D

H
 F

N
P

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
te

a
m

 d
u
ri
n
g

 
la

s
t 
m

o
n
th

’s
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
. 
S

u
b
lic

e
n

s
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 s
ig

n
e
d
 w

it
h
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

F
N

P
 m

o
d
e

l 
in

 L
e
e
d
s
 

C
h

il
d

 D
e
a
th

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 P
a
n

e
l 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

1
-1

2
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 
o
f 
c
a
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 d
e
a
th

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 d

e
b

t 
a
n

d
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 

 
In

tr
o

d
u
c
e

d
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 D

e
b

t 
a

d
v
ic

e
 g

a
te

w
a

y
 w

it
h
 o

n
e
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 p

h
o

n
e

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
fo

r 
u

s
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 n

o
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 t

h
re

e
 d

a
y
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
 (

M
o

n
, 

T
u
e
, 
F

ri
) 

fo
r 

6
 h

o
u
rs

 e
a
c
h
 d

a
y
 

 
F

u
e
l 

p
o
v
e
rt

y
 

m
a
il-

o
u

t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

to
 

9
,5

0
0
 

h
o

u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

lik
e
ly

 
to

 
b
e
 

e
lig

ib
le

 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

W
a
rm

 
F

ro
n

t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 
to

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 
ta

k
e
-u

p
 
o
f 

h
e
a
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
in

s
u
la

ti
o
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
.

 
P

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 ‘
W

ra
p
 u

p
 L

e
e
d
s
’ 
fr

e
e
 l
o
ft
 a

n
d
 c

a
v
it
y
 w

a
ll 

in
s
u

la
ti
o
n

 s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

a
ll,

 a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
lo

w
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
u
it
a

b
le

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 

 
L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 3
9

 h
o

ts
p

o
ts

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 d
u
ri
n

g
 A

p
ri
l,
 2

2
 i
n

 M
a

y
 a

n
d

 1
6

 i
n

 J
u

n
e

  
H

e
a
lt

h
y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
 

 
W

o
rk

in
g
 W

e
ll 

S
te

e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
  

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 L

e
e
d
s
 O

c
c
u

p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
1
4
 

E
n

s
u

re
 e

q
u

it
a
b

le
  
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e
a
lt

h
 

 
A

ll 
G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
, 

p
ri
s
o
n
s
  

a
n
d
 Y

o
rk

 S
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

ll 
n
o
w

 o
ff

e
ri
n
g
 

N
H

S
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
h

e
c
k
  
 

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 
th

ir
d

 
s
e
c
to

r 
to

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 
s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 
c
a
s
e
 
fi
n
d
in

g
 
o
f 

lu
n
g
 
c
a
n
c
e
r 

in
  

In
n
e
r 

E
a
s
t 
/ 
In

n
e
r 

S
o
u
th

 L
e
e
d
s
 b

y
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 l
e
d
 b

y
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
 E

d
u
c
a
to

rs
 

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e
d

 l
o

c
a

ll
y
 /
C

a
s

e
 s

tu
d

y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

 ‘
C

o
m

e
 D

in
e
 w

it
h
 m

e
’ 
–

 l
e
d
 b

y
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

re
d
it
 U

n
io

n
 a

n
d
 Z

e
s
t 
H

e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

L
if
e
 i
n
 

M
e

a
n
w

o
o
d

 h
a

s
 r

e
c
ru

it
e

d
 8

 d
is

e
n
g

a
g
e

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

ro
u
g
h

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
c
lu

s
te

rs
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 B

e
c
k
h
ill

 e
s
ta

te
. 
T

h
e
y
 l
e
a
rn

t 
c
o
o
k
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 e

a
ti
n
g
 o

n
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 A

ll 
o
f 
th

e
m

 
h
a
v
e
 s

ta
y
e
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

r 
h
a

v
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

. 
Z

e
s
t 
is

 
o

n
e

 o
f 
th

e
 t
h

ir
d

 s
e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
im

it
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

p
o

v
e
rt

y
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 u
n

d
e
r 

5
 y

rs
: 

 

E
a
rl

y
 S

ta
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

g
re

e
d

 o
v
e
r 

n
e
x
t 

3
 y

e
a
rs

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 V

is
it
o

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
s
h

b
o

a
rd

 
in

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 c
o
v
e
ra

g
e

 a
n
d
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

1
2
  
 

In
fa

n
t 

M
o

rt
a
li
ty

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 s
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 f
ro

m
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
in

s
ig

h
t 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 P

a
k
is

ta
n
i 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 o

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 o

f 
g
e
n
e
ti
c
 

ri
s
k
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
s
in

 m
a

rr
ia

g
e

  

 
E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

-s
le

e
p

in
g

 s
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 

A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1
2

 
H

e
lp

in
g
 H

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 e
v
e
ry

 t
e
a
m

 f
ro

m
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
  

 
E

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 f
o
r 

G
P

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 b

re
a
s
tf

e
e
d

in
g
 t
o
 b

e
 l
a
u
n

c
h
e
d
  

 
M

o
th

e
rs

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

b
o
u
t 

S
e
c
o
n
d
 H

a
n
d
 S

m
o
k
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
n

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 f
o

c
u
s
 g

ro
u

p
s
  

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 d

e
b

t 
a
n

d
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
e
b
t 
a
d
v
ic

e
  

 
F

u
e
l 

p
o
v
e
rt

y
: 

W
o
rk

 
w

it
h
 
c
it
y
 
re

g
io

n
 
to

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 
G

re
e
n
 
D

e
a
l/
E

C
O

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 
a
s
s
is

ti
n

g
 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 
p

e
o

p
le

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 
liv

in
g

 
in

 
o

ld
e

r,
 

h
a
rd

 t
o
 t
re

a
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
; 
in

v
o
lv

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

. 

 
A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 c
re

d
it
: 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
p
lo

re
d

. 
  

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
 

 
E

x
p

lo
re

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 O

c
c
u
p

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
  

 
W

o
rk

 
w

it
h
 

th
o
s
e
 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
in

to
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

to
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
in

k
s
 t
o
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 

to
o
lk

it
 

to
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 

e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
 s

ta
ff
  

E
n

s
u

re
 e

q
u

it
a
b

le
  
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 p

o
rt

a
l:
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

 a
re

 i
n

 
p
la

c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 l

a
u
n

c
h
e
d
 w

it
h
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

  
  
  

D
a

ta
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 
D

e
ta

ile
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 f
ro

m
 N

H
S

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
  

 
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 f

ro
m

 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
 s

u
rv

e
y
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
 P

a
n
e

l 
a

n
d
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

it
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
lif

e
s
ty

le
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
s
  

 
R

e
d
u

c
e

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 L
e
e
d

s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a

te
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
n
d

 t
a

x
 c

re
d

it
s
 s

y
s
te

m
  

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
 a

n
d
  
s
c
a
le

  
o
f 
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
  
m

e
e
t 
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
 t
h
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
 t
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
  
L
e
e
d
s
  

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 e

n
e
rg

y
 p

ri
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
s
ts

  
liv

in
g
 w

it
h
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
s
 r

is
k
 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
  
a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
m

o
re

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

  

 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
 e

c
o
n
o

m
ic

  
re

c
e
s
s
io

n
  

Page 28



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 24 October 2012 

Subject:  Balancing the Council’s duties as a planning authority with its future public 
health responsibilities 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Introduction  

1. As part of the NHS reforms arising from the Health and Social Care Act 2012, from April 
2013 Public Health responsibilities will transfer from local Primary Care Trusts (which will 
be abolished and replaced by Clinical Commissioning Groups) to local authorities.  This 
shift in responsibility will mean that local authorities will become directly accountable for 
public health services and outcomes from April 2013.   

 
2. In June 2012, the Scrutiny Board identified balancing the duties of a planning authority 

with public health responsibilities (through the Local Development Framework (LDF)) as 
a potential area/ topic for consideration during 2012/13.  Reference to this was again 
made at the September 2012 Board meeting, along with the on-going work of the 
Development Plan Panel in finalising the LDF and the associated Core Strategy to be 
recommended to the Executive Board in November 2012. 

 
3. As such, it was agreed that the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social 

Care) would consider the inclusion and degree of reference to public health issues 
facing the City within the LDF. 

 
The Local Development Framework (LDF) and Core Strategy  
 
4. The Council is preparing the Local Development Framework (LDF) for Leeds. The LDF 

is the name for a number of Development Plan Documents and Supplementary Planning 
Documents, which together make up the overall development plan.  It should be noted 
that the LDF forms part of the Council’s Policy Framework and therefore must be 
adopted by Full Council. 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  247 4707 

Agenda Item 8

Page 29



 

 

 
5. The Core Strategy is the main document setting out the key strategic policies and vision 

of the Local Development Framework (LDF).  The Core Strategy sets out the broad 
framework which will guide the delivery of development and investment for Leeds over 
the coming years.  All other LDF documents are directly guided by the Core Strategy. 

 
6. The policies of the Core Strategy must be supported by evidence.  The evidence base of 

the Core Strategy includes information on housing, employment, the environment and 
many other topics. 

 
7. To date, the Core Strategy has gone through a number of stages and consultation 

events.  Informal consultation for the Core Strategy was held both in 2006 and 2011, and 
formal consultation events were part of the previous publications in 2007 and 2009.  A 
further round of informal consultation was held in summer 2011.  Each stage of 
publication has involved public consultation, with the most recent publication of the Core 
Strategy Draft Publication in February – April 2012.   It is anticipated that the Core 
Strategy will be adopted in 2013. 

 
8. For members information, extracts of the Core Strategy (as it relates to Public Health 

considerations) are appended to this report, alongside the Health Topic paper. 
 
Wider determinants of Health 
 
9. In November 2008, Professor Sir Michael Marmot was asked by the then Secretary of 

State for Health to chair an independent review to propose the most effective evidence-
based strategies for reducing health inequalities in England.  In February 2010, the final 
report ‘Fair Society: Healthy Lives’ was published and concluded that reducing health 
inequalities would require action on the following six policy objectives: 

• Give every child the best start in life; 

• Enable all children, young people and adults to maximise their capabilities and 
have control over their lives; 

• Create fair employment and good work for all; 

• Ensure healthy standard of living for all; 

• Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and communities; 

• Strengthen the role and impact of ill-health prevention. 
 

10. Given the issues associated with the wider determinates of Health and the main purpose 
of the Board’s consideration at the meeting, the Executive Summary of  the report ‘Fair 
Society: Healthy Lives’ is appended to this report for information.   

 
Public Health – the Council’s New Responsibilities 
 
11. In June 2012, the Executive Board considered a report from the Joint Director of Public 

Health that set out the Council’s Public Health responsibilities from April 2013, issues 
associated with the transfer of such responsibilities, alongside ways of working within the 
overall national Public Health landscape.  

 
12. To assist the Scrutiny Board’s general consideration around this topic (i.e. the Council’s 

future public health responsibilities), a copy of the Executive Board report is attached for 
information. 

 

Page 30



 

 

Attendance at the meeting 
 
13. To assist the Board’s consideration of the information presented, it should be noted that 

relevant Development and Public Health officers have been invited to attend the 
meeting. 

 
Recommendations 
 
14. The Scrutiny Board is recommended to consider the information presented and identify: 

a. What, if any, further actions to take; 
b. Any relevant matters that require further and/or more detailed scrutiny. 

 
Background documents1  
 
15. None used. 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 
 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 CHANGES TO CORE STRATEGY TEXT 
 
 Deprivation and Health Inequalities 
2.30 In terms of health, Leeds performs well compared to the other core cities in 

England (Birmingham, Bristol, Liverpool, Manchester, Newcastle, Nottingham 
and Sheffield) and has the lowest mortality rate for males and females of all 
ages. There have been huge improvements to life expectancy in the last 
decade, which has increased by two years for both men and women and over 
the same period, the mortality rate fell by over 18%.  Whilst the health of 
Leeds has improved overall, the City is performing below the England 
average, consequently, the need to tackle health issues and disparities across 
the District is a major challenge for improvement. 

 
2.31 Narrowing the health gap within Leeds is a priority within the Leeds City 

Priority Plan and the Leeds Health and Well Being Strategy.  Despite 
becoming wealthier as a city over the last 20 years, Leeds still has too many 
deprived areas, where there is a poor quality of life, low educational 
performance, too much crime and anti-social behaviour, poor housing, poor 
health, and families where no one has worked for a few generations.  The gap 
in life expectancy between the most disadvantaged parts of Leeds and the 
rest of the city remains at around ten years.  In seeking to address this key 
cross cutting issue through the Development Plan and in reflecting the duty to 
improve Public Health (Health & Social Care Act 2012, Section 12), an 
integral part of the Core Strategy therefore, is to seek to ‘narrow the gap’, 
through the overall approach and policy framework. 

 
2.32 Out of 476 Super Output Areas (SOAs) in Leeds, the 2010 Index of Multiple 

Deprivation shows that there are 92 which fall into the most deprived 10% in 
the country. In 2007, Leeds had 22 SOAs that were ranked in the most 
deprived 3% nationally, this number rose to 25 in 2010. Overall, 154 improved 
their ranking but 322 fell between 2007 and 2010.  Gipton and Harehills is the 
only ward with all of its SOAs ranked in the most deprived 20% nationally.  
There is therefore a clear need to continue to tackle the multiple problems of 
poverty and to improve all parts of Leeds. Improving the health of the city’s 
population is a key objective to be the best city in the UK.  A thriving economy 
where people have access to jobs and a decent income is essential to good 
health.  Within this context also, information provided through the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) for Leeds, highlights the wide range of 
health issues and factors across the District and their associated implications.  
These include population change and key groups within the population 
(including children and an aging population), behaviours and specific health 
conditions.  The plan provides an opportunity to tackle health priorities in 
relation to a number of key social determinants of health (including the 
delivery of high quality housing, the provision of greenspace and in promoting 
opportunities for cycling and walking). 
 
Map 2  Indices of Multiple Deprivation 

 
 

Page 33



 Key Challenges 
2.42 Leeds is a large and diverse city, with a proud heritage, a quality environment 

and home to a wide range of communities and businesses.  As outlined above 
there are major opportunities for growth and regeneration and a desire for this 
to be achieved and managed in a way, which reflects the unique character of 
the district and the principles of sustainable development.  In the preparation 
of the Core Strategy therefore there are a number of key challenges the 
overall spatial vision, development strategy and policy framework is seeking 
to meet.  These include: 

 

• Planning for population growth and the complex needs of a diverse 
population (including opportunities to improve public health), 

• Facilitating local opportunities for urban regeneration and economic 
growth, within the context of major changes and uncertainty in the national 
and international economy, 

• Planning for housing growth in a sustainable way in suitable locations, 
whilst meeting a range of housing needs, 

• Ensuring that opportunities for regeneration and economic growth support 
the aspirations of the community in delivering needed jobs and homes, 

• Ensuring that the physical development and growth of the District, is 
managed in a sustainable way, to respect the local identity, character and 
distinctiveness of communities and delivers high quality design and 
environment enhancement, 

• Opportunities for regeneration and growth are supported with the 
necessary infrastructure, 

• The need to maintain and develop, a longer term partnership approach to 
development and growth within the District, with a range of stakeholders 
including communities, investors and infrastructure providers. 

 
 

Page 34



3.   SPATIAL VISION 
 

Spatial Vision and Objectives 
3.1 Leeds has been successful in recent years in regenerating its older urban 

areas, attracting inward investment, strengthening the role and attractiveness 
of the City Centre and protecting the District’s distinctiveness and character.  
However, much remains to be done, especially given the consequences of the 
economic downturn and the reduction of public finance.  In order for Leeds to 
move forward and to fulfil its potential as a major City and regional capital, a 
clear spatial vision is required to guide decisions on future developments and 
the policies that will help to deliver these.  An integral part of this ‘vision’ is 
that local communities will be fully engaged with the need to bring about the 
sustainable growth of the city and to help the Council to manage investment in 
a way that delivers tangible community benefits.   

 
3.2 The long term vision for the Leeds metropolitan district is that by 2028: 
 

• Leeds will have maintained and strengthened its position at the heart of 
the City Region and has grown a strong diverse and successful urban and 
rural economy, with skilled people and competitive businesses, which are 
sustainable, innovative, creative and entrepreneurial. All communities will 
have equal chances to access jobs and training opportunities through the 
growth of local businesses. 

 

• Leeds City Centre will remain a successful destination for the people of 
Leeds and beyond, with a vibrant commercial, leisure and cultural offer.  
The Trinity and Eastgate centres will be well established and the South 
Bank will be integrated into the City Centre, which includes a new City 
Centre park acting as a gateway to the Aire Valley. 

 

• The spatial management of growth will be planned to balance the use of 
brownfield and greenfield land in a sustainable way, as part of an overall 
framework promoting development in suitable locations as a basis to meet 
identified needs. 

 

• The distinctive settlement pattern within the Leeds district will be 
maintained and their character enhanced, whilst providing for and 
supporting new housing growth opportunities.  The main urban area of 
Leeds will support the diverse and distinctive communities that surround it, 
separated by agricultural land, woodland, valuable green spaces, habitats, 
and amenity areas. 

 

• Town and local centres will remain at the heart of their communities and 
provide a good range of shopping, services and local facilities.  

 

• Aire Valley will become an innovative new living and working community 
which is a national model for sustainable development, accommodating up 
to 9,000 new homes and 35,000 new jobs within a distinctive green 
environment.  An integral part of the urban eco-settlement will be the 

Page 35



establishment of low carbon solutions, and energy requirements in 
established communities will have been significantly reduced by 
retrofitting. 

 

• The Regeneration Priority Areas will have undergone successful 
transformations, in terms of having more attractive environments, 
improved choice and quality of housing, better access to employment 
through improved education and training, and increased connectivity to 
adjoining neighbourhoods, including the City Centre. 

 

• In reflecting the role of Leeds as a strategic transport hub (including Leeds 
City Station and Leeds Bradford Airport), serving existing communities and 
in planning for new growth, sustainable forms of development are 
delivered (which include public transport as an integral part).  Consistent 
with the ambitions to be ‘the best city in the UK’, the Leeds will be better 
connected, by an accessible and integrated transport system, which 
supports communities and economic competitiveness. 

 

• Leeds will have a wide network of multi-functional Green Infrastructure 
(including green space areas) which provides an improved quality of life 
for residents to enjoy healthier lifestyles. This will also be a strong 
incentive in attracting new business to the area. Through new 
development, opportunities will be taken to improve connections between 
Green Infrastructure to enhance its value and achieve a better spatial 
distribution. 

 

• Leeds will be resilient to climate change through the use of innovative 
techniques and efficient use of natural resources. 

 

• Place making will be embedded into the planning process which has led to 
the creation, protection, and enhancement of buildings, places and spaces 
that are valued by people. This will have a positive contribution towards 
better public health and wellbeing, especially in communities where there 
have been clear health disparities and disadvantage.  

 
Objectives 

3.3 In reflecting this Spatial Vision, the following Objectives are set out below: 
 

(i) City Centre:  
In supporting the continued vitality, economic development and distinctiveness of the 
City Centre as the regional centre, the Core Strategy will: 

1. Accommodate first and foremost the needs of offices, shops, hotels, institutions and 
leisure and entertainment uses, accepting that there is a place for residential and 
supporting facilities such as parks, convenience stores, health centres, nurseries and 
schools; 

2. Give priority to the development of land opportunities in the southern half of the City 
Centre. 

3. Strengthen the vibrancy, distinctive character and cultural appeal of the City Centre, 

4. Make the City Centre accessible to all, including improved pedestrian and cycle links 
to adjoining neighbourhoods. 

Page 36



  

(ii) Managing the Needs of a Successful District: 
To manage the needs of a growing City, the Core Strategy needs to: 

5. Plan for population growth and the implications of demographic change (including 
opportunities to improve public health). 

6. Promote a diverse, enterprising and competitive economy supported by a skilled work 
force. 

7. Deliver economic development which makes best use of land and premises across 
the district in sustainable locations, accessible to the community and wider labour 
market. 

8. Deliver housing growth in sustainable locations related to the Settlement Hierarchy, 
by prioritising previously developed land in urban areas and through the phased 
release of greenfield sites to ensure sufficiency of supply and provision of supporting 
infrastructure.   

9. Plan for a sufficient mix, tenure and type of housing to meet a range of community 
needs including affordable and specialist housing. 

  

(iii) Place making 
In supporting distinctive and cohesive places, the Core Strategy will: 

10. Promote the role of town and local centres as the heart of the community which 
provide a focus for shopping, leisure, economic development and community facilities, 
while supporting the role of the City Centre. 

11. Support the provision of community infrastructure that is tailored to meet the needs of 
the community including high quality health, education and training, cultural and 
recreation, and community facilities and spaces. 

12. Support high quality design and the positive use of the historic environment to create 
distinctive and cohesive places that include measures to improve community safety. 

13. Promote the physical, economic, and social regeneration of areas taking into account 
the needs and aspirations of local communities. 

14. Support the improved public health and wellbeing of Leeds’ residents and workforce. 

  

(iv) A Well Connected District : 
In the delivery of an accessible and integrated transport system to support 
communities and economic competitiveness, the Core Strategy aims to: 

15. Increase the use of sustainable forms of transport by facilitating the delivery of new 
infrastructure and the improvement and management of the existing system, transport 
hubs and interchange (including Leeds City Station). 

16. Ensure new development takes place in locations that are or will be accessible by a 
choice of means of transport, including walking, cycling, and public transport. 

  

(v) Managing Environmental Resources : 
In safeguarding the environment of the District, the Core Strategy needs to: 

17. Protect natural habitats and take opportunities to enhance biodiversity through the 
creation of new habitats and by improving and extending wildlife corridors. 

18. Secure development which has regard to its impact on the local environment and is 
resilient to the consequences of climate change, including flood risk. 

19. Promote opportunities for low carbon and energy efficient heat and power, for both 
new and existing development. 

20. Make efficient use of natural resources, including the implementation of sustainable 

Page 37



design and construction techniques, the use of minerals, and the effective 
minimisation and management of waste. 

21. Protect and enhance Green Infrastructure, strategic green corridors, greenspace, and 
areas of important landscape character, taking the opportunity to improve their quality, 
connectivity and accessibility through the development process. 

  

vi) Implementation and Delivery : 
In progressing the proposals of the Core Strategy, the Council will: 

22. Work in partnership with a wide variety of sectors and agencies including the Leeds 
City Region in the delivery of the Core Strategy and as a focus to explore 
opportunities for funding and delivery. 

23. Work with local communities in Leeds to ensure that local people are involved in 
shaping the future growth of the city with appropriate community benefits. 

24. Ensure that new development is served by appropriate levels of infrastructure to 
support the delivery of the Core Strategy. 

 

Page 38



4. SPATIAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
 

4.1 Overview and Location of Development 
 
4.1.1 The Spatial Development Strategy outlines the key strategic policies which 

Leeds City Council will implement to promote and deliver development.  The 
intent of the Strategy is to provide the broad parameters in which 
development will occur, ensuring that future generations are not negatively 
impacted by decisions made today.  The Spatial Development Strategy is 
expressed through strategic policies which will physically shape and transform 
the District.  It identifies which areas of the District play the key roles in 
delivering development and ensuring that the distinct character of Leeds is 
enhanced.  It is complemented by the policies found in the thematic section, 
which provide further detail on how to deliver the Core Strategy.  Integral to 
this approach, the plan reflects the duty to improve public health as a cross 
cutting issue, incorporated within a number of key policy topic areas.  This 
includes housing (improving the supply and quality of new homes in meeting 
housing need), the economy (providing opportunities for local employment 
opportunities and job growth), the role of centres (in proving the facilities and 
services for the community in accessible locations), regeneration (targeting 
specific priority areas across the District), transport and accessibility 
(improving public transport and opportunities for walking and cycling), place 
making (maintaining and enhancing local character and distinctiveness) and 
the environment (the protection and enhancement of environmental resources 
including local greenspace). 

 
4.1.2 The Key Diagram is presented at the end of this section, and compiles these 

Policies to provide a broad illustration of what the Plan will achieve by 2028.  
It highlights how and where development will occur, and those development 
areas which are key to delivering the Core Strategy.  The Key Diagram is 
indicative only, and does not set out site boundaries or define the extent to 
which development is proposed to occur. 

 
4.1.3 The level of housing growth expected to occur by 2028 within Leeds is greater 

than any other authority within England.  A growing and diverse economy 
brings a need for new housing, sustainable and reliable transport systems, 
and services to meet the changing needs of the population.  Bringing this 
future growth and prosperity to all residents remains a key consideration for 
the district. 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Core Strategy
 Leeds Local Development Framework

Health Background Topic Paper  

Publication Draft 

February 2012

Page 41



 

 

If you do not speak English and need help in understanding this document, 
please phone: 0113 247 8092 and state the name of your language.  We will then 
we contact an interpreter.  This is a free service and we can assist with 100+ 
languages.  We can also provide this document in audio or Braille on request.   

 

(Bengali):- 

 
(Chinese):- 

 
(Hindi):- 

 
(Punjabi):- 

 
(Urdu):- 

 
This publication can also be made available in Braille or audio cassette. Please 
call 0113 247 8092. 

 

 

 

0113 247 8092 

0113 247 8092 

0113 247 8092

0113 247 8092

0113 247 8092

Page 42



Health background paper

1. Overview
1.1 Economic and environmental issues all impact on the health and well being of 

the community. The determinants of people’s health and well being are wide 
ranging, they include the built environment, the quality of housing stock, 
employment, the provision of greenspace, access to food and making 
healthier choices, to name but a few. Planning has a leading role in 
determining the character of the environment in which people live, the 
housing available to them, the location of jobs, shops and community 
facilities, all of which influence the choices people make in life and 
consequently their health in terms of mental and physical well being.  

2. National Policy Framework
2.1 There have been a number of reports written nationally on the topic of health 

and well being. It is not the purpose of this Background paper to review them 
all, but instead to ‘set the scene’ and to provide the background evidence 
prior to reviewing how the Core Strategy contributes positively towards health 
and well being at the local level. 

2.2 The National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) has published 
a number of guidance notes on public health. Of most relevance to the Core 
Strategy is NICE public health guidance 8 Promoting and creating built or 
natural environments that encourage and support physical activity (2008). It 
recommends that planners planning together with other policy makers plan 
and provide a comprehensive network of routes for walking, cycling and using 
other modes of transport involving physical activity. It also recommends that 
applications for new development should promote physical active as part of 
people’s daily activity.

2.3 The Foresight Report (2007) considers the issues surrounding obesity and 
recommends that the focus is on promoting children’s health, promoting 
healthy food, to build physical activity into our lives, together with supporting 
health at work and providing effective treatment. These five responses were 
adopted by the previous government in their report, Healthy Weight, Healthy 
Lives: A cross-government strategy for England (2008), which supports 
making healthy choices to reduce obesity.  This report champions a number 
of initiatives that are directed at improving people’s health and well being, 
including investment in cycling infrastructure, encouraging people to walk 
more and take physical exercise and choose healthier food choices.   

2.4 Fair Society, Healthy Lives (2010) also known as ‘The Marmot Review’ was 
an independent review into health inequalities in England. The Marmot 
Review argued that climate change could potentially increase health 
inequalities and that good quality and well designed environments are key to 
improving the health and wellbeing of a community. It encourages greater 
physical activity through the provision of well designed green spaces and 
network of routes which encourage people to walk to shops and services.  
The review made 3 recommendations that are relevant to spatial planning. 
They are to prioritise policies and interventions that both reduce health 

Page 43



inequalities and mitigate climate change; fully integrate the planning, 
transport, housing, environmental and health systems to address the social 
determinants of health in each locality and; support locally developed and 
evidence-based community regeneration programmes. 

2.5 The findings of this report have been embraced by the current government in 
the recently published Healthy Lives, Healthy People White Paper (2010). It 
sets out the government’s strategy on empowering local communities to 
improve the health of their community and reduce health inequalities. Leeds 
City Council Scrutiny Board for City Development resolved to incorporate the 
recommendations from the Marmot Review into the Local Area Agreement.

3. Health and Wellbeing in Leeds
3.1 Health and wellbeing is very much at the forefront of national and local policy 

making. If no action is taken, it is estimated nationally that 60% of adult men, 
50% of adult women, and 25% of children will be obese by 2050, with around 
35% of adults, and 30% of children overweight1. In addition to this, there are 
widespread concerns about the health inequalities between communities with 
the most deprived communities suffering the most from poor health and well 
being (Foresight Report 2007). 

3.2 Leeds had a population of 755,580 in 2010 (strategic housing market 
availability assessment), which is estimated to rise to 950,000 by 2033. The 
demographic make up of the population of Leeds has changed significantly 
over the years. According to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA 
2011) Between 2000/1 -2009/10 the number of births has increased by 35% 
with 10,202 children born in 2009/10. Leeds has a high proportion of 20-29 
year olds living due to Leeds being home to three universities (over 60,000 
students), and since 2001 the number of 85+ year olds has increased by 
20%. Just over 64,000 people claiming out of work benefits (11.8%) and in 
June 2011 22,047 people were claiming job seekers allowance (4.1%). 

3.3 In Leeds, 45 of all the lower super output areas (9.5%) are in the most 
deprived 10% on the national scale for income deprivation. 33,000 children in 
Leeds are living in poverty and this is largely concentrated within the inner city 
areas.

3.4 Life expectancy between 2007-2009 was on average 79.91 years in Leeds, 
but in the deprived communities it was 78.08 years. In Adel and Wharfedale 
the life expectancy is 83.61 years compared to Hunslet where it is 74.08 
years, a difference of 9.53 years across Leeds. This shows there is a 
significant difference between wards, demonstrating that health inequalities 
exist between communities in Leeds.

3.5 The headlines from the qualitative analysis for the 2011 JSNA on healthy 
lifestyles are as follows: 

 Only half of young people do the recommended amount of exercise a 
week. Teenagers do not consider there to be enough services for them 

Page 44



and children in general expect parks and play facilities to be local and 
within walking distance, 

 There has been an increase in older children eating unhealthy snacks, 

 There is a need to improve leisure services, 

 People (in particular older people) prefer to access services locally within 
their neighbourhood, as there is a reluctance to travel, and would like to 
see an increase in leisure facilities and amenities. 

4. Local Policy Framework 
4.1 The Vision for Leeds 2011-2030 is the Sustainable Community Strategy for 

Leeds. The Vision for Leeds has three priorities which all seek to have a 
positive impact on the health and well being of the community. They are: 

 People live longer and healthier lives, 

 People are supported by high quality services to live full, active and 
independent lives; and,

 Inequalities in health are reduced e.g. people will not have poorer health 
because of where they live, what group they belong to or how much 
money they have.

4.2 Underneath the Vision for Leeds is the City Priority Plan which sets out the 
Council’s aims for the next 5 years to assist it in achieving the Vision. This is 
split up into sections, the most important to this paper being Health and 
Wellbeing. The Council is focusing on housing, education, transport, green 
space, work and poverty and what we can do to help everyone have the best 
chance to be healthy, to improve health and wellbeing across the city.

5. The Core Strategy 
5.1 The Core Strategy, part of the Local Development Framework (LDF), takes its 

policy direction from the Vision for Leeds, its supporting documents and 
consequently its lead on supporting improved health and wellbeing in the 
community. The Core Strategy sets out the spatial approach to planning up to 
2028, for the provision of new housing, transport, employment land, green 
infrastructure and green space, the role of the city centre, town and local 
centres, protecting the environment and mitigating against climate change, all 
of which will contribute towards tackling the wider determinants of health. This 
spatial approach to planning provides the opportunity to plan long term for 
changing health service needs, both at strategic and local levels, in response 
to the increasing population and consequently the increasing demand for 
housing, employment and city wide physical and social infrastructure to 
facilitate the increasing population that Leeds is required to support. 

5.2 The Core Strategy has three policy tiers to it, which all link back to the 
Community Strategy.  The Core Strategy Vision (and Objectives) set out the 
aspirations for the city which are linked to the Community Strategy and 
national guidance, the Broad Development Strategy and headline Spatial 
Policies which sets out the direction of the vision for Leeds and the strategic 
themes, which set out Policies based around five interrelated themes.  The 
themed sections relate to, the City Centre, Housing and the Economy, Place 
Making, Transport (Well Connected City) and Managing Environmental 

Page 45



Resources and Green Infrastructure.  Their contribution towards improving 
health and wellbeing is set out below.

5.3 A Sustainability Appraisal (SA) is required to accompany the Core Strategy. 
The SA assesses all the policies within the document against sustainability 
criteria. The most relevant objective for health and wellbeing is SA objective 4  
to ‘Improve conditions and services that engender good health and reduce 
disparities in health across Leeds.’ All the policies within the Core Strategy 
have been assessed against health objectives within the SA. A copy of this 
objective, including the decision making criteria, indicators and targets from 
other plans, policies and programmes is in Appendix A of this report.  

5.4 The Core Strategy Vision is set out in a number of bullet points. It is based on 
supporting Leeds’ role within the city region, delivering development in a 
sustainable way and creating successful communities, all of which make a 
contribution towards health and wellbeing at a local level.

5.5 The Broad Development Strategy outlines the key strategic policies that the 
Core Strategy aims to deliver.  These Spatial Policies focus on the location 
and quantity of housing and employment land; supporting centres, 
regeneration areas; the Aire Valley eco settlement; conducting a selective 
green belt review; transport infrastructure investment priorities; managing the 
growth of Leeds Bradford airport; and strategic green infrastructure.

5.6 The strategic location and amount of housing and employment provision has 
an impact on the health and wellbeing of people.  Both need to accessible. 
Housing should to be well located in relation to shopping and service facilities, 
jobs and green space and employment land should be located in accessible 
locations to enable people to walk, cycle or take public transport and to not 
have to rely on private transport, which in turn helps mitigate against climate 
change. Leeds will have to conduct a selective green belt review to assist 
allocating sufficient land for housing and employment to meet the projected 
household numbers for the plan period. This will have a positive impact 
strategically on the provision, availability and type of housing and employment 
opportunities.

5.7 Regeneration areas and the Aire Valley eco settlement, which is also 
identified as a regeneration area, are two strategic policies that focus on 
improving neighbourhoods that are within the country’s 10% most deprived 
areas. They both focus on the provision of new housing, environmental 
improvements, and in the case of the Aire Valley (an eco-settlement) 
delivering a significant number of new jobs and projects. Regeneration areas 
are areas that have been chosen not only because they are some of the most 
deprived locations in Leeds but also because of the potential they have for 
delivering positive change to housing provision, the environment and job 
opportunities. Access to housing that meets the needs of the user, a good 
quality environment within which to live, useable green space and access to 
jobs, all affect the health and wellbeing of a community as supported by 
national guidance on health.

Page 46



5.8 The strategic transport policy supports the objectives of the West Yorkshire 
Local Transport Plan 3 and the Leeds City Region Transport Strategy (2009). 
Spatial priorities broadly focus on improving public transport, the cycle 
network and accessibility, concepts that are supported by the national 
documentation reviewed earlier in this paper.

5.9 Green Infrastructure is a network of multi-functional green spaces. The Core 
Strategy seeks to maintain and improve the quality and provision of green 
infrastructure which will have a positive impact on health and wellbeing by 
improving access to green space, which helps in promoting physical activity, 
the provision of allotments to encourage people to be resourceful and grow 
their own fruit and vegetables and climate change through increasing the 
amount distribution and accessibility of green infrastructure.

6. Core Strategy Themed Sections

The City Centre
6.1 The city centre is the focus for economic growth and employment, a transport 

hub, and a regional destination for shopping and cultural facilities.  It also has 
a large residential population following significant flat building between 1995 
and 2010, which is continuing to grow. The purpose of this chapter is to 
support the economic growth of the city centre as the focal centre for the city 
and the region, whilst improving amenities for city centre residents, improving 
connectivity between the city centre and the inner city communities and 
supporting development, including new green space provision and linkages 
between the north and south sides of the city.

6.2 The policies for the city centre have a positive contribution on people’s health 
and wellbeing by supporting the provision of jobs, facilities and services, 
green space, and improving accessibility to them, all of which are supported 
by national guidance. The improvements in connectivity between the city 
centre and the inner city communities, where the majority of Leeds’ deprived 
communities are located, will have a positive impact on these communities 
through better access to jobs, facilities and services.  

Housing
6.3 The housing section seeks to control the release of land for housing 

development to ensure that brown field land is redeveloped first to assist in 
regenerating areas. Housing is be sited in accessible locations, which have 
good access to public transport, jobs and amenities. The chapter also focuses 
on the mix of house types to ensure that development sites provide for a 
range of housing sizes to accommodate the difference in household size and 
specialist housing provision in terms of affordable housing, houses in multiple 
occupation, student accommodation, flat conversions, accommodation for 
gypsies, travellers and travelling show people and housing for independent 
living.

6.4 The Core Strategy plans for a range of housing needs, including those that 
require affordable housing or specialist housing, which will contribute towards 
reducing health inequalities and support improved health and wellbeing.

Page 47



Supporting Economic Opportunities
6.5 The purpose of this section is to ensure that there is a sufficient supply of 

employment land available in accessible locations to meet demand within the 
plan period and beyond. This contributes towards the economy and job 
creation important to the health and wellbeing of people, in particular during a 
time when the number of people on job seekers allowance has increased. 

Place making
6.6 Place making focuses on the provision of accessible shopping, services and 

facilities within town and local centres and neighbourhood parades, the 
provision and accessibility of community facilities, good design, conservation 
and landscape. The JSNA 2011 found that people preferred to access shops, 
services and facilities locally and this chapter supports this. 

6.7 The accessibility of food, in particular healthy food is of key importance to 
promoting healthy lifestyles.  The JSNA 2011 found that there has been a rise 
in teenagers eating unhealthily and nationally obesity is on the rise as cited in 
the Foresight Report.  The Core Strategy seeks to protect allotments from 
redevelopment and supports the provision of new allotments which 
encourages healthy eating. The Core Strategy also acknowledges that the 
over exposure to hot food takeaways and alcohol can have an adverse on 
health, which is now a material planning consideration. 

6.8 Being able to access shops, services and facilities locally is important to 
improving people’s health and wellbeing and this is what the chapter 
promotes. The Marmot Review states that the design of buildings and the 
quality of the environment are key to improving the health and wellbeing of a 
community. It also states that the ability to encourage people to walk to shops 
and services would have a positive impact on health and wellbeing, a concept 
supported in this section through promoting centres, local shopping on 
neighbourhood parades and locating community services within the 
community.

Transport (Well Connected City)
6.9 Transport management and accessibility are the focus of this section.  These 

policies support sustainable transport proposals and development in 
accessible locations, advise on car parking, support the use of transport 
assessments and travel plans; and give guidance on developer contributions 
towards road infrastructure improvements. 

6.10 Locating development in accessible locations encourages walking, cycling 
and the use of public transport which promotes physical activity as 
championed by national guidance, thereby reducing the use of the car and 
mitigating against climate change as acknowledged in the Marmot Review as 
a potential contributor to health inequalities. 

Managing Environmental Resources and Green Infrastructure 
6.11 Access to good quality green infrastructure and green space is considered to 

be an important contributor to improving health and wellbeing. The policies 
relating to this section are focused on standards for green and open space 

Page 48



with detail on protection of existing new provision and redevelopment where 
there is an over supply.  

6.12 The section on managing environmental resources is wide ranging with 
policies on habitat and biodiversity protection and improvements, waste 
management and mineral extraction, and mitigating climate change. The 
Marmot Review recognised that climate change could potentially increase 
health inequalities and that physical activity should be encouraged through 
the provision of well designed green space. This is echoed by the NICE 
guidance and the Foresight Report which promote physical activity and a 
network of routes for walking and cycling. The JSNA 2011 found that 
teenagers were not doing the recommended levels of physical exercise and 
that young people wanted green space and play facilities to be located locally. 
The Core Strategy seeks to improve accessibility, quality and provision of 
green space locally where there is a deficiency and mitigate against climate 
change.

Infrastructure Delivery Plan
6.13 The infrastructure delivery plan accompanies the Core Strategy, setting out 

how and when new infrastructure facilities will be delivered in a coordinated 
approach.

7. Rapid Health Impact Assessment of the Local Delivery Framework Core 
Strategy

7.1 To accompany the SA, the City Council conducted a rapid health impact 
assessment (HIA) in July 2011 facilitated by the Leeds Initiative.  The session 
involved a wide range of stakeholder including representatives from the NHS, 
health professionals City Council officers (including community based health 
and wellbeing officers), and members. 

7.2 A Health Impact Assessment (HIA) is a tool for determining the likely effects 
of a particular policy or programme on people’s health.  This process aims to 
identify the potential health consequences of a proposal on a given population 
in order to maximise the positive health benefits and minimise potential 
adverse effect on health and inequalities. Many kinds of planning and 
decision making influence health and as mentioned previously in this paper, it 
is widely recognised that the economic, physical, social and cultural 
environment affects the health and wellbeing of individuals and populations. A 
whole range of agencies and organisations have an important role to play in 
maintaining and enhancing the health of the population. At a local level these 
include local government, businesses and the voluntary sector, as well as the 
NHS.

7.3 At local level, one of the values of a HIA is that it provides a way of thinking 
about both the intended and unintended consequences of actions. A HIA is 
especially useful for developing partnership work because it enables partners 
or people affected to identify any concerns. 

7.4 There are different types of HIA and they can be carried out before, during or 
after a programme or policy has been developed. They can also be carried 

Page 49



out at different levels of detail.  Given that Leeds did not have the resources 
or timescales to deliver a comprehensive HIA, it was proposed that a rapid 
HIA was carried out on the LDF core strategy.

7.5 A workshop was held to bring together a wide range stakeholders to 
participate in a rapid Health Impact Assessment. It also gave the opportunity 
to test out and agree our approach to HIA in Leeds that could be applied to 
future policies or plans and help develop the important links between planning 
and public health. From the workshop following this key messages were 
produced to feed in to the Core Strategy.

8. Key messages from the Rapid Health Impact Assessment 
8.1 Health recommendations for the Core Strategy as a consequence of the HIA 

are in Appendix B.  Many of the recommendations that were made were 
already included within the Core Strategy, which demonstrates that health 
has been an integral consideration in policy making for the Core Strategy 
from the outset. Broadly speaking, the recommendations made focused on 
providing a mix of house types in the city centre, good access to health 
facilities, jobs, education, green space, public transport, healthy food, health 
facilities and shops.  Other key messages included the promotion of 
community cohesion and the development of mixed and diverse communities, 
sustainable design and construction and addressing the needs of people with 
poorer health and long term illness.  

8.2 Changes that have been made to Core Strategy policies as a result of the HIA 
are;

 Promoting a mix of house sizes within the city centre, 

 Improve opportunities for local people to get jobs through S106 
employment agreements, 

 Supporting the development of infrastructure to serve new low carbon 
vehicles,

 Acknowledging that the proliferation of hot food takeaways, restaurants 
and pubs/bars can have an effect on people’s health which is now a 
material planning consideration.

8.3 A number of recommendations were not relevant to planning or could not be 
addressed by planning policy and explanations have been given in the table 
within Appendix B. 

9. Overall Conclusions
9.1 Key health messages have now been incorporated into the Core Strategy and 

closer links built between the planning department at Leeds City Council 
Planning and public health. It is acknowledged that planning does already 
influence health and that there are pockets of good practice for health and 
planning partnership working but it may be that this needs to be more clearly 
articulated for Leeds. A number of proposed LDF documents will facilitate on-
going dialogue to enable health to be considered in planning decisions and 
these should to be utilised in order to work smartly on this agenda. A follow 
on action from the HIA workshop will be to develop a Health and Planning 

Page 50



Reference Group. This group would be consulted on planning policies arising 
from the LDF process and ways to consult health colleagues more widely on 
planning matters will be explored. 

9.2 The move of the Health Improvement function into the Local Authority (as part 
of the NHS Reforms) will help to develop closer working between planning 
and health. The development of Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) 
through the Reforms may also have implications for spatial planning in terms 
of buildings and new services that may be commissioned, possibly 
necessitating dialogue between CCGs and planning. 

9.3 The Health and Wellbeing Partnership Board which will operate from April 
2012 will provide strategic leadership, direction and vision for the city in 
determining, shaping, implementing and monitoring key priorities and 
strategies to improve the wider determinants of health that drive poor health 
outcomes especially in the most deprived areas. 

9.4 The development of a new Health Improvement Board will work in partnership 
to focus on strategic actions that lead to health improvement. Through this 
there is the potential to better link in spatial planning and develop relevant 
work streams to help create healthy communities. 

Page 51



References 

1. ‘Fair Society, Healthy Lives: Strategic Review of Health Inequalities in 
England Post 2011’ Professor Sir Michael Marmot, University College 
London (2011)

2. ‘Healthy lives, healthy people White Paper: Our Strategy for public 
health in England’  Department of Health, 2010 

3. ‘Healthy weight, Healthy lives: A Cross-Government Strategy for 
England’ Department of Health, 2008 

4. ‘Leeds 2030, Our vision to be the best city in the UK, Vision for Leeds, 
2011 to 2030’ the Leeds Initiative, 2011 

5. ‘Promoting and creating built or natural environments that encourage 
and support physical activity, Nice public health guidance 8’ NHS 
National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence, 2008 

6. ‘Tackling Obesities: future choices’ Foresight, Government Office for 
Science, 2nd Edition, 2007 

7. ‘Leeds JSNA 2011, Embedding JSNA In Our Future’ Leeds City Council 
and NHS Leeds: www.slideshare.net/robg/Leeds-joint-strategic-needs-
assessment-presentation, 

Page 52



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

 

S
A

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
 

D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 M
A

K
IN

G
 C

R
IT

E
R

IA
 

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
  

 
T

A
R

G
E

T
S

 F
R

O
M

 O
T

H
E

R
 P

P
P

s
 (

K
e

y
 t

o
 

a
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s

 a
t 

e
n

d
 o

f 
ta

b
le

.)
 

S
O

C
IA

L
 O

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
 

4
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

e
n

g
e

n
d

e
r 

g
o

o
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 d
is

p
a
ri

ti
e

s
 

in
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e

d
s
 

a
. 

W
ill

 i
t 

p
ro

m
o
te

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 l
if
e

-s
ty

le
s
, 

a
n
d

 
h

e
lp

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

ill
-h

e
a

lt
h

?
 

b
. 

W
ill

 i
t 
im

p
ro

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
, 

h
e

a
lt
h

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
?

 
c
. 

W
ill

 i
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e

d
s
?

 

1
. 

L
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 

2
. 

M
o

rt
a

lit
y
 
ra

te
s
 
fr

o
m

 
c
o

ro
n

a
ry

 
h

e
a

rt
 d

is
e

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 c

a
n

c
e
r 

3
. 

%
 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 
o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
a

g
e
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 
lim

it
in

g
 

lo
n

g
-

te
rm

 i
lln

e
s
s
 

4
. 

%
 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

w
h

o
s
e

 
h

e
a

lt
h
 

w
a

s
 n

o
t 

g
o

o
d

 
5

. 
E

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 

o
b

e
s
it
y
 %

 
6

. 
N

o
 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

o
n

 
in

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 
a

n
d

 
s
e

v
e

re
 
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

a
llo

w
a

n
c
e

%
 

o
f 

 
S

O
A

s
 

in
 

th
e

 
2

0
%

 
m

o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri

v
e

d
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 

in
 

th
e

 
IM

D
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 

&
 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
d

o
m

a
in

R
e

d
u

c
e

 m
o

rt
a

lit
y
 f

ro
m

 h
e

a
rt

 d
is

e
a
s
e

 b
y
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

4
0

%
 i

n
 t

h
e

 u
n

d
e

r 
7

5
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
n

c
e

r 
b

y
 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

2
0

%
 b

y
 2

0
1

0
 (

U
K

) 
B

y
 2

0
0

5
, 

re
d

u
c
e

 b
y
 2

0
%

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
th

e
 w

a
rd

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
C

o
ro

n
a

ry
 

H
e

a
rt

 D
is

e
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 w

a
rd

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

(b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 3
 y

e
a

r 
a

g
g

re
g

a
te

),
 a

n
d

 b
y
 5

0
%

 
b

y
 2

0
1

0
. 

(L
N

R
S

 &
 L

H
S

))
 

H
a

lt
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

ri
s
e

 i
n

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 a

m
o

n
g

 
c
h

ild
re

n
 u

n
d
e

r 
1

1
 b

y
 2

0
1

0
. 

(U
K

) 

Page 53



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 w
a

s
 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
d

. 
N

o
w

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

in
to

 C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

N
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 

b
e

c
a

u
s

e
…

.
S

ig
n

p
o

s
te

d
 t

o
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

o
th

e
r 

fo
ru

m
C

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

A
 
m

a
jo

r 
is

s
u
e
 
re

la
te

s
 
to

 
th

e
 
in

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
p
e
o
p
le

 
liv

in
g
 

in
 

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 

c
it
y
 

a
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 

th
o
s
e
 

in
 

th
e
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
, 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 

u
rb

a
n
 

a
re

a
s
. 

A
 

ra
n
g
e
 

o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

h
o
w

 t
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 
a
n

d
 

h
o
w

 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
o
h

e
s
io

n
 

c
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
. 
 

T
h

e
s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
: 

h
a

v
in

g
 m

o
re

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u
s
in

g
; 

b
re

a
k
in

g
 

d
o
w

n
 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

 
b
e

tw
e
e
n
 
c
it
y
 
c
e

n
tr

e
 
a
n

d
 
in

n
e
r 

c
it
y
 

n
e

ig
h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

s
; 

h
a

v
in

g
 

a
 

m
ix

 
o

f 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 

s
iz

e
s
 

a
n

d
 

c
o
m

m
u

n
a
l 

a
re

a
s
 (

g
a
rd

e
n
s
, 

s
e
a

ti
n
g
, 

c
a
r 

fr
e
e
 z

o
n
e
s
 e

tc
.)

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

o
 l

iv
e
 i

n
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
; 

h
a
v
in

g
 

n
a
tu

ra
l 

s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
; 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 m

o
re

 
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

in
 

c
e
n
tr

e
; 

a
n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 g

e
t 
jo

b
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

1
0
6
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
o
rm

 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
: 

i)
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
s
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

u
n

d
e
r 

P
o

lic
y
 H

5
 

ii)
 c

o
n
n

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

it
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
n
e
r 

c
it
y
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 S

P
3
 

a
n
d
 C

C
3
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t
o
 o

v
e
rc

o
m

e
 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

;
iii

) 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 C

C
1
, 
G

5
 a

n
d
 G

6
 w

ill
 

h
e
lp

 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
a
g
e
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 

s
e

e
k
in

g
 n

e
w

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
n
g
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

iv
) 

P
o
lic

y
 P

1
0
 p

ro
m

o
te

s
 t
h
e
 

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
a

fe
 a

n
d

 s
e
c
u

re
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
; 
 

P
o
lic

y
 H

3
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
a
g
e
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 c

it
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

iz
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 
d
ra

ft
e
d
 n

o
t 
to

 a
p
p
ly

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

A
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 P

o
lic

y
 S

P
9
 

w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 g

e
t 

jo
b
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

1
0
6
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 

B
e

tt
e

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 t
o

g
e

th
e
r 

to
 m

a
k
e

 s
u
re

 h
e

a
lt
h

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
n
e

w
 a

n
d

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
c
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
T

h
is

 
w

o
u

ld
 m

e
a

n
 b

e
tt

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 c

lo
s
e

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
b
e

tw
e
e
n

 L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 a
n
d
 G

P
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 
a
ls

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 d

e
n
ti
s
ts

, 
o
p
to

m
e
tr

is
ts

 a
n
d
 

p
h
a
rm

a
c
is

ts
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 c
u
t 

d
o
w

n
 i
n
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
e
 o

f 
A

&
E

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l.
 

P
o
lic

y
 C

C
1
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 b
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

to
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a

te
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
“s

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
” 

th
a

t 
a

re
 

n
e

e
d
e

d
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

in
 
re

la
ti
o
n
 
to

: 
e
n
h
a
n
c
in

g
 
p
u
b
lic

 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
g
re

e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

o
o

f 
g

a
rd

e
n
s
; 

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 w
a

lk
in

g
; 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 s
e

t 
o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 
in

 
n
e
w

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(e
.g

. 
p
ra

m
 
a
n
d
 
b
ik

e
 
s
to

ra
g
e
 

s
p
a
c
e
);

 
c
le

a
re

r 
lin

k
s
 
to

 
a
c
ti
v
e
 
tr

a
v
e
l 

a
n
d

 
p

u
b

lic
 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

; 
s
h

o
p

s
 

a
n
d

 
m

a
rk

e
ts

 
s
e

lli
n

g
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 

fo
o

d
 

a
n

d
 

lim
it
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ta
k
e
a
w

a
y
s
; 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

u
s
e

 
in

 
n

e
w

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 
(i

n
d

o
o
r 

p
la

y
 

a
re

a
s
 

a
s
 

w
e

ll 
a
s
 

o
u
td

o
o
r)

; 
s
p
o
rt

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 
th

a
t 

a
re

 
fr

e
e
 
o
r 

lo
w

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 b

y
  

i)
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 C

C
1
, 
G

5
 a

n
d
 G

6
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

o
f 
p

u
b

lic
 s

p
a
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 u

s
e
, 
 

ii)
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 S

P
3
, 
S

P
1
1
, 
C

C
3
 a

n
d
 

T
2
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 r

o
u
te

s
 a

n
d
 

P
o
lic

y
 P

3
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 c

o
n

tr
o
l 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
t 
fo

o
d
 

ta
k
e

a
w

a
y
s
 (

h
ft
a

s
)o

n
 

n
e

ig
h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 p

a
ra

d
e
s
. 

T
e
x
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 P

la
c
e
 

m
a

k
in

g
 c

h
a

p
te

r 
a

ls
o

 
re

fe
rs

 t
o
 h

ft
a
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

p
ro

lif
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 c
a
n

 
u

n
d

e
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 s

h
o
p

p
in

g
 

It
 i
s
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 

o
f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

th
e

 p
ri
c
e

 a
n
d

 
h
e
a
lt
h
in

e
s
s
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 

s
o
ld

 b
y
 o

u
tl
e
ts

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 p

ri
c
e
 o

f 
s
p
o
rt

s
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s

C
le

a
re

r 
lin

k
s
 t
o

 
a
c
ti
v
e
 t
ra

v
e
l 
a
n
d
 

p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 –

 w
ill

 
b
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 L

e
g
ib

ili
ty

 
P

ro
je

c
t 

Page 54



c
o
s
t.
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 w

a
lk

in
g
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
;

iii
) 

P
o
lic

y
 P

1
0
 e

x
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 s

to
ra

g
e
 

s
p

a
c
e

 f
o

r 
c
y
c
le

s
  

iv
) 

P
o
lic

y
 C

C
1
 e

x
p
e
c
ti
n
g

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
h

o
p

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

rk
e

ts
 a

n
d

 s
p
o

rt
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

g
y
m

s
).

 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
o

v
e

re
x
p

o
s
u
re

 c
a

n
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 
p
o
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 
 

A
 k

e
y
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 i
s
 a

lc
o
h
o

l.
 T

h
e
re

 n
e
e
d
s
 

to
 b

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

lia
is

o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

: 
p
la

n
n
e
rs

, 
lic

e
n
s
in

g
, 

p
o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
a
fe

ty
, 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 

a
d
v
is

o
ry

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

p
u
b

lic
 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 

B
e
tt
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
f 

b
a
rs

, 
s
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 t

a
k
a
w

a
y
s
. 

M
a
k
e
 

c
it
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 

m
o
re

 
fa

m
ily

 
fr

ie
n
d
ly

 
a
n
d
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

b
ro

a
d
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

d
ri
n
k
in

g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

 

T
e
x
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 r

e
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
n
o
n
 

re
ta

il 
u
s
e
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

d
o

m
in

a
te

 s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 

p
a

ra
d

e
s
 o

r 
s
h
o

p
p

in
g

 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
s
. 
In

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
to

 
p
re

v
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
lif

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
u
s
e

 c
la

s
s
e
s
 A

3
, 
A

4
 a

n
d
 

A
5
, 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

o
v
e

re
x
p

o
s
u
re

 t
o

 c
o

u
ld

 
re

s
u
lt
 i
n
 p

o
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 m

o
re

 
d
e
ta

il 
in

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
L
D

F
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 m
o

re
 

p
o
lic

y
 o

n
 r

e
ta

il 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
 

re
ta

il 
u
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
t 
o
u
t.
 

It
 i
s
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 

o
f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

th
e
 s

a
le

 o
f 
a
lc

o
h
o

l.
  

A
ls

o
, 
th

e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

is
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 f
o
r 

p
u
b
s
, 
b
a
rs

, 
c
a
fe

s
 a

n
d
 

n
ig

h
t-

c
lu

b
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
ll 

a
lc

o
h
o

l.
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y

T
h
e

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 i

n
 t

h
is

 t
h

e
m

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 

n
e

e
d

s
, 

lo
n

g
e
r 

te
rm

 
g

ro
w

th
, 

re
ta

in
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

jo
b
 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 

to
 

p
la

n
 

fo
r 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
re

c
o

v
e
ry

 
a

n
d
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
g
ro

w
th

. 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
, 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

th
e
 

b
ro

a
d
 

lo
c
a

ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 
th

e
 

ro
le

 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
it
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 

&
 

th
e
 

p
a
tt

e
rn

 
o
f 

s
e

tt
le

m
e
n

ts
 
a
c
ro

s
s
 
th

e
 
L
e

e
d
s
 
D

is
tr

ic
t)

, 
a
 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 
fo

r 
th

e
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 p
h
a
s
in

g
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

g
y
p
s
ie

s
, 

tr
a
v
e
lle

rs
, 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 
a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
m

ix
 o

f 
d
w

e
lli

n
g
 t
y
p
e
s
. 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
, 
th

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 r

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 A

ir
e
 V

a
lle

y
 L

e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

lo
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 j
o
b
 

g
ro

w
th

, 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 j
o
b
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
, 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 b

ro
a
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

 
 

Page 55



o
ff
ic

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 

ru
ra

l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
. 

T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
: 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
jo

b
s
, 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
h
o
p

s
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

(G
P

s
).

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h

y
, 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 f
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 g

ro
w

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 

P
O

L
IC

Y
 G

4
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 P

O
L
IC

Y
 G

5
 

e
n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
g

re
e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

 a
n

d
 c

iv
ic

 s
p
a
c
e

. 
 

P
O

L
IC

Y
 P

9
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
s
o
c
ia

l,
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 t
h

e
m

. 
 

A
llo

tm
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

g
ro

w
in

g
 f
o
o
d
 a

re
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 P

O
L
IC

IE
S

 G
3
, 

G
4
 a

n
d
 G

6
. 
 W

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 l
o
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
, 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 a
llo

tm
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 s
p
a
c
e
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 i
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 n
e

w
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

. 
P

O
L
IC

Y
  
S

P
1
 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e
s
 t
h
e

 r
o

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
n
e

w
 a

n
d

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

g
re

e
n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 c

a
n
 b

ri
n
g
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 

p
ro

m
o

te
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 n
e

ig
h

b
o
u

rs
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
B

u
ild

 i
n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 c

o
m

e
 t
o
g
e

th
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
h
e
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
m

ix
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

T
h

e
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 “

S
o

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
” 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

e
s
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

 o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 h
e
lp

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 

P
O

L
IC

Y
 P

8
 e

x
p
e
c
ts

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
d

 i
f 
th

e
y
 a

re
 l
o
s
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
 

 

Page 56



E
n

s
u
re

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
b
u

ild
in

g
s
 –

 n
e

e
d
 f
o
r 

c
h
o
ic

e
, 
g
o
o

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 
re

m
o
v
e
 

o
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
; 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 –

 f
re

e
d
o

m
 o

f 
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t,

 
m

a
k
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h

ie
r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
ie

r 
o
n
e
, 
‘v

ill
a
g
e
 g

re
e

n
 s

ty
le

’ 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
s
a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

P
O

L
IC

Y
 P

1
0
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

ta
k
e
s
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

, 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e

rg
y
. 
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
S

P
A

T
IA

L
 P

O
L
IC

IE
S

 6
 &

 7
  

to
 

m
e

e
t 
L

e
e

d
s
’ 
fu

tu
re

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 

w
ill

 h
e
lp

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 f
o

r 
o
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 
 

P
O

L
IC

Y
 C

C
3
 i
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 
 P

O
L
IC

Y
 G

4
 w

ill
 o

ff
e
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
n
e

w
 g

re
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e

 i
n

 
n
e
w

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

 r
o
u

te
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

n
e
c
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

p
e

d
e
s
tr

ia
n
s
. 

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
c
o
p
e

 f
o
r 

jo
b
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 d

ia
lo

g
u
e
 

w
it
h
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r.
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 l
if
e
lo

n
g
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 S

P
9
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 j
o
b
 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

re
a

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
a

 s
k
ill

e
d

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 k
e
y
 d

ri
v
e
r 

to
 

h
e

lp
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t
o

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 S

P
1

0
 a

n
d

 E
C

1
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n

t 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
e
c
to

rs
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l,
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

b
a
s
e
, 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

. 
 I
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 
jo

b
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 p
e

o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 w
h

o
le

 d
is

tr
ic

t 
it
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n

t 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 i
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

s
. 

 

Page 57



A
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d
s
 o

f 
s
p
e

c
if
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 p
o
o

re
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 e

.g
. 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 
g
y
p
s
y
 a

n
d
 t
ra

v
e
lle

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d

it
io

n
s
, 
e
tc

. 
 

P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 H
5
, 
H

7
 a

n
d
 H

8
 m

a
k
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
s
p
e

c
if
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 l
e
s
s
 m

o
n
e
y
 

(a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
),

 G
y
p
s
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
T

ra
v
e
lle

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 e

ld
e
rl
y
. 
 

P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 P
9
 a

n
d
 T

2
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
n
e
w

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 b
e

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 a

s
 m

o
d
e

s
 o

f 
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t.

 
P

O
L
IC

Y
 T

2
 e

x
p
e
c
ts

 n
e

w
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

c
y
c
lis

ts
 a

n
d

 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

y
c
le

 
p
a
rk

in
g
. 
 P

O
L
IC

Y
 C

C
3
 i
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

c
o
n
n

e
c
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n

 a
n
d
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 

 

P
la

c
e
 m

a
k
in

g
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
: 
th

is
 w

o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

h
o
p
s
, 
h
e
a

lt
h
 

a
n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
W

it
h
in

 w
a
lk

in
g
 d

is
ta

n
c
e
?
 

C
o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

o
lic

y
 S

P
2
 s

e
e
k
s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
 a

t 
fo

u
r 

le
v
e
ls

, 

c
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 
to

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 
P

o
lic

y
 P

1
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
w

n
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 P

o
lic

y
 P

2
 

d
ir
e
c
ts

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 u

s
e
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 
P

o
lic

y
 P

3
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 t
h
e
 

c
o

rn
e
r 

s
h
o

p
s
/n

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

 

p
a
ra

d
e
, 
lo

c
a
l 
c
e
n
tr

e
, 
to

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

a
n
d
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 
P

o
lic

y
 P

9
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
. 
G

re
e
n

s
p

a
c
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

is
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 G

3
 –

 G
6
, 

w
h
ic

h
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
, 
th

e
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
g

re
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e

 a
s
 

a
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 

p
ro

te
c
ts

 g
re

e
n
s
p
a

c
e
 f
ro

m
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

h
e
re

 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
in

 

 

Page 58



s
u

rp
lu

s
. 
  

T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 e

a
ti
n
g
, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

s
t 
fo

o
d
 

ta
k
e

a
w

a
y
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 l
im

it
e
d

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

ro
u
n

d
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
h
o
p
p

in
g
 a

re
a
s
. 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

h
o
p
s
 s

u
p
p

ly
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h

 f
o

o
d
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
llo

tm
e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 s

p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 

g
ro

w
in

g
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 f
o
o
d
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 p
ri

o
ri
ty

. 

P
o
lic

y
 P

8
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

 s
e
q
u
e
n
ti
a
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 c
a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
to

 
d
ir
e
c
t 
h
ft
a
s
 u

s
e
s
 t
o
 t
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

r 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 
p

a
ra

d
e
s
  

P
o
lic

y
 P

4
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 r

e
ta

in
 

th
e
 s

h
o
p
p
in

g
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

 p
a

ra
d

e
s
 

a
n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
a
 

p
ro

lif
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
ft
a
s
. 
T

e
x
t 

h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 

re
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
n
o
n
 r

e
ta

il 
u
s
e
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
s
. 
In

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
to

 
p
re

v
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
lif

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
u
s
e

 c
la

s
s
e
s
 A

3
, 
A

4
 a

n
d
 

A
5
, 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

o
v
e

re
x
p

o
s
u
re

 t
o

 c
o

u
ld

 
re

s
u
lt
 i
n
 p

o
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 m

o
re

 
d
e
ta

il 
in

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
L
D

F
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 m
o

re
 

p
o
lic

y
 o

n
 r

e
ta

il 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
 

re
ta

il 
u
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
t 
o
u
t.
  

P
la

n
n

in
g
 c

a
n
n
o

t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
w

h
a
t 
re

ta
il 

s
h

o
p

s
 (

c
la

s
s
 A

1
) 

s
e
ll.

A
 k

e
y
 f
a
c
to

r 
in

 p
e
o
p
le

 s
ta

y
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 

a
n
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
. 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

b
u

ild
in

g
 i
n

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o
n

 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 i
s
o
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
S

p
a
c
e
s
 

s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e
a
b
le

 b
y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 m

u
lt
i-
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
a
l.
 

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

to
 u

s
e
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

s
h
o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 r

o
o
m

s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 u

s
e
. 
L
o
c
a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
m

. 

P
o

lic
y
 P

8
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

T
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

fo
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 a

n
d
 P

F
I 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 m
a
d
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 u

s
e
 

w
h
e
n

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
is

 n
o
t 

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
m

. 
E

x
is

ti
n
g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

d
o

 h
a

v
e

 r
o
o

m
s
 f
o

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 u

s
e
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
s
iz

e
d

 r
o

o
m

s
 

w
h
ic

h
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
iz

e
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e
ir
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
. 

Page 59



S
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 f
e
e
lin

g
 s

a
fe

 a
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 p
e
o
p
le

’s
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

G
o

o
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
m

in
im

is
e
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 o
p
e
n

 u
p

 a
re

a
s
 t
o
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

. 

P
o
lic

y
 P

1
0
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 o

u
t 
c
ri
m

e
. 

 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
t 
g
re

e
n
e
r 

a
n
d
 

o
p
e
n
in

g
 u

p
 m

o
re

 r
o
u
te

s
 t
o
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
. 
C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 g

re
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 

s
tr

e
e

ts
c
a

p
e
s
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
re

e
s
 a

n
d

 v
e

rg
e

s
, 
s
e

a
ti
n

g
 a

re
a
s
, 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
, 
p
la

y
 a

re
a
s
, 
e
tc

. 

P
o
lic

y
 S

P
4
 a

n
d
 S

P
5
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 
re

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d

 s
m

a
lle

r 
lo

c
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

P
o

lic
y
 G

4
 a

n
d

 G
5

 s
e
e

k
s
 g

re
e

n
 

s
p

a
c
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 b

o
th

 o
n
 s

it
e
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

a
n

d
 a

s
 a

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 g

re
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

P
o
lic

y
 G

2
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
re

e
 

c
o
v
e
r 

b
o

th
 w

o
o
d
la

n
d
 c

o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 u

rb
a
n
 c

it
y
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

  

P
o
lic

y
 G

1
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e

 a
n
d

 
e
x
te

n
d
 L

e
e
d
s
’ 
g
re

e
n
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 

n
e

ig
h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 l
e

a
d

 o
n

 
re

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
C

o
u
ld

 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
e
m

 
a
b
o
u
t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
re

e
 

c
o

v
e

r 
in

 h
a

rd
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

. 
L

e
is

u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
fo

r 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 g

re
e
n
 

s
p

a
c
e
s
. 

M
a
n
y
 v

e
rg

e
s
 a

re
 

o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 h

ig
h

w
a
y
s
. 
 

P
ro

b
a
b
ly

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 
th

a
t 
n
e
w

 v
e
rg

e
s
 c

a
n
 

b
e
 c

re
a
te

d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

tr
e
e
t 

p
a
tt
e
rn

.

P
la

n
n
in

g
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 h

e
lp

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
, 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 l
o
c
a

l 
a

re
a
s
. 

T
h

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 
in

 a
n
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
, 
w

it
h
 c

le
a
r 

m
e

s
s
a
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
, 
a
n
d
 b

e
 

a
n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
m

a
s
te

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
P

ro
te

c
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty

 a
n
d
 m

in
im

is
e
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
a
le

s
c
e
n
c
e
 o

f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

P
o
lic

y
 S

P
1
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
te

 t
h
e
 

m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h

in
 

u
rb

a
n
 a

re
a
s
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 

b
ro

w
n
fi
e
ld

 l
a
n
d
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 i
n
fi
ll 

s
it
e
s
 

o
r 

k
e
y
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
. 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
a

n
d
 

e
n

h
a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
a

n
d

 
id

e
n
ti
ty

 o
f 
p
la

c
e
s
 a

n
d
 

n
e

ig
h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

s
 a

s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 P

1
0
, 
P

1
1
 a

n
d

 P
1

2
. 
 

T
h
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

h
o
w

 a
n
d
 w

h
e
n

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

M
a
s
te

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
s
 a

 
b
ig

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
lis

m
 B

ill
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

s
 t
o

 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
e

 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
o

n
tr

o
l.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 d

o
n
e
 i
n
 

A
re

a
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

m
ig

h
t 
b
e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
la

c
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
 

Page 60



c
o
n
fo

rm
it
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

re
fu

s
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

c
o
n
fo

rm
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 m

a
p

. 
T

h
e

 
a

im
 o

f 
n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
s
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
n
o
t 

d
is

c
o
u
ra

g
e

 i
t.
  

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt

A
c
ti
v
e
 t
ra

v
e
l 
is

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 h
e

a
lt
h
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
–

 b
o
th

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l.
 E

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h

a
t 

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 w
a
lk

in
g

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 
E

x
p
a

n
d
 

th
e

 c
y
c
le

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 a

n
d

 r
e
a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
ro

a
d
 s

p
a
c
e
. 

S
P

1
1
 -

 E
x
p
a

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 

C
o
re

 C
y
c
le

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o

n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

T
1
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p

a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

y
c
le

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 

a
n

d
 t
o

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d

 
c
y
c
lin

g
. 

 

R
o
a
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

m
o
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 u

s
e
 o

f 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 ‘
h

o
m

e
 z

o
n
e

s
’ 
a
n

d
 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
a

lm
in

g
. 

S
P

1
1
 -

 M
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
a
fe

r 
ro

a
d
s
. 

 

A
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

ff
e
c
ts

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o

 
re

d
u
c
e

 c
a
r 

u
s
a

g
e

 a
n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 u

s
e

 a
lo

n
g

 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

w
it
c
h
 t
o
 l
o
w

 e
m

is
s
io

n
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
. 
S

im
ila

r 
is

s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 

n
o
is

e
 p

o
llu

ti
o
n

. 

A
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
s
 

d
o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 

fr
o
m

 r
o
a
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
In

 
re

c
e

n
t 
d

e
c
a

d
e

s
 a

ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
 

d
u
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
le

a
n

e
r 

fu
e

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 
o
f 
e
x
h
a
u
s
t 
a
ft
e
r 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
ts

1
. 

S
in

c
e
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
0
, 
a
ir
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 

re
m

a
in

e
d

 s
ta

ti
c
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

n
o

w
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 
p

o
llu

ta
n

ts
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

 i
n

 

Page 61



L
e

e
d
s
 a

re
 n

it
ro

g
e

n
 

d
io

x
id

e
 (

N
O

2
) 

a
n
d
 f
in

e
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

te
 m

a
tt
e
r 

(P
m

1
0
).

 P
o
o
r 

a
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
s
 

g
e

n
e
ra

lly
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 

h
ig

h
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 

c
o

n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
tr

a
ff
ic

 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
, 
o
r 

c
lo

s
e
 t
o
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
 h

o
ts

p
o
ts

, 
a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 h
e
a
v
ily

 
tr

a
ff
ic

k
e
d
 r

o
a
d
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
c
c
o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 D
E

F
R

A
, 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
u
rb

a
n
 

a
ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 c

a
u

s
e

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
la

te
d
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 l
if
e

 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
. 
A

t 
p
re

s
e
n

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 6
 d

e
c
la

re
d

 
A

Q
M

A
’s

 a
n
d
 u

p
 t
o
 3

5
 

A
re

a
s
 o

f 
C

o
n
c
e

rn
 (

A
o
C

),
 

w
h

e
re

 h
e
a

lt
h

 r
e

la
te

d
 a

ir
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

re
 

b
re

a
c
h
e

d
, 
o

r 
in

 d
a

n
g
e

r 
o

f 
e
x
c
e
e
d

in
g
 a

ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 l
im

it
 

v
a
lu

e
s
.

1
 R

e
tr

o
fi
tt
in

g
 o

f 
v
e
h
ic

le
s
 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e

 h
a
rm

fu
l 

e
x
h

a
u
s
t 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 b

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 

S
P

1
1
’S

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
o
 s

e
rv

e
 

n
e

w
 l
o
w

 c
a

rb
o

n
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
’ 

Page 62



R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 t
ra

v
e
l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 b

y
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 o

n
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 P

1
 t
o
 P

9
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
te

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 l
o
c
a
lly

 –
 

s
h
o
p
p
in

g
, 
le

is
u
re

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

c
u
lt
u
re

, 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
P

o
lic

y
 S

P
2
 d

ir
e
c
ts

 t
o
w

n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 u

s
e
s
 t
o

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
le

v
e
l 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 h

ie
ra

rc
h
y
. 
 

 

A
d

d
re

s
s
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
d
is

a
b

le
d
 p

e
o

p
le

 
P

o
lic

y
 P

1
0

 a
d
d

re
s
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 

o
f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n

 n
e
w

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

. 
P

o
lic

y
 T

2
 o

n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 n

e
w

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 b
e
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 
im

p
a
ir
e
d
 m

o
b
ili

ty
. 

B
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 
 

R
e
c
o
g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t 
o
f 
in

te
re

s
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 –

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

ir
p
o
rt

. 
N

e
e
d

 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
w

a
y
s
 t
o
 m

in
im

is
e
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 a

ir
p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 p

o
lic

y
 

S
P

1
2
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 i
s
 

g
ro

w
th

 a
s
 a

 r
e
g
io

n
a
l 
a
ir
p
o
rt

 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

…
..

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
d

 p
la

n
s
 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
e
ff

e
c
ts

; 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

 a
n

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
im

p
a

c
ts

 a
n

d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
a
s
te

 
d
p
d
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h
a
t 

u
n

le
s
s
 a

ir
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g
e

r 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 g
ro

w
 f
ro

m
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 3

m
ill

io
n
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 t
o
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 5

 
m

ill
io

n
, 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 a

ir
p
o
rt

 o
n
 a

ir
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 

tr
a

ff
ic

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 d

u
e

 
to

 l
im

it
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

. 
 

Page 63



E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h
 

a
n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T

h
e
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 

g
re

e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

 n
e

e
d
s
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
a
s
 w

it
h

 p
o
o

re
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 

h
a
v
e
 e

q
u
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 d

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d

 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

0
6

/C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

L
e
v
y
 f
ro

m
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h

in
 o

r 
n
e
a
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 

P
o
lic

y
 G

3
, 
G

4
, 
G

5
 a

n
d
 G

6
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 g

re
e

n
 

s
p

a
c
e

. 
G

3
 s

e
ts

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f
o

r 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

u
p
p
ly

 a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
n
e

w
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e
. 
G

4
 

a
n

d
 G

5
 s

e
t 
th

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f
o

r 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
n
e

w
 g

re
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e

 a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

. 
G

6
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

g
re

e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

 u
n

le
s
s
 i
t 
c
a
n

 b
e

 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
s
u

rp
lu

s
 o

f 
a

ll 
g

re
e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

 t
y
p

e
s
 

o
r 

th
e

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 

re
lo

c
a
te

d
. 
 

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 a
d

e
q
u

a
te

 g
re

e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

 f
o

r 
p

la
y
 a

n
d

 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 
A

ls
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 g

re
e
n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

ro
u
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

y
c
lin

g
. 
 T

ra
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
 f
o

r 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 

s
h
o
u

ld
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 t
o
 s

c
h
o

o
l.
  

P
o
lic

y
 T

1
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
tr

a
v
e
l 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 s
ta

ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
tr

a
v
e
l 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
ra

v
e
l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 
w

it
h
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

il 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n
 S

P
D

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
N

e
w

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

th
a
t 
a

re
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t
o
 

s
u
b
m

it
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

n
 w

a
lk

in
g

 a
n

d
 

c
y
c
lin

g
 t
o
 s

c
h
o

o
l.
 

P
o
lic

y
 G

3
 o

n
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a

c
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 f
o

r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

y
in

g
 p

it
c
h
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 
 

 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
w

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 g
re

e
n

 
s
p

a
c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

s
c
h
o

o
l 
s
it
e

s
.

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 
p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 L

e
e

d
s
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 

fr
a

m
e
w

o
rk

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 

a
n
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 s

e
lf
-

re
v
ie

w
 t
o
o
lk

it
 t
h
a
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 t
o

 
e

q
u

ip
 c

h
ild

re
n

 f
o

r 
a

 
lif

e
ti
m

e
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 l
iv

in
g
. 

H
a
rn

e
s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 g
re

e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 
N

e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

n
e

e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ly

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 

w
ill

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

b
a
ti
n
g
 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

P
o
lic

y
 G

5
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l/
m

ix
e
d
 

u
s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 o

n
 

s
it
e
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
. 
P

o
lic

y
 E

N
2
 

s
ta

te
s
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
 

1
,0

0
0
 s

q
m

 o
r 

1
0
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 a
re

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

B
R

E
E

A
M

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
o
r 

C
o

d
e

 f
o

r 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 H
o

m
e

s
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 l
e
v
e

l 
6
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
. 
 

 

Page 64



H
e
a
lt
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a

v
e
 a

n
 i
n
p
u
t 
to

 p
o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
t 

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 o

n
 a

ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 w
a
s
te

. 

T
h

e
 N

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 

a
n
d
 w

a
s
te

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
s
e

ts
 l
o
c
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 f
o

r 
w

a
s
te

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
e
re

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
. 
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

w
a
s
te

 
a
re

 s
e
t 
a
t 
th

e
 E

U
 

le
v
e
l,
 a

t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 

a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 a

t 
lo

c
a
l 
le

v
e
l 

(i
n
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

W
a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
),

 t
h
e
 

N
R

W
D

P
D

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

e
n

o
u
g

h
 s

it
e
s
 t
o

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 c

a
n
 

m
e
e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

. 
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

a
ir
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

re
 s

e
t 
a
t 
th

e
 

E
U

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l,
 w

e
 

d
o
n
’t
 g

o
 a

n
y
 t
o
u
g
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

E
U

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
th

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

re
 q

u
it
e
 

to
u
g
h
. 
W

e
 d

o
n
’t
 h

a
v
e
 

a
n
y
 s

a
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
W

e
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
ir
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
f 
w

e
 

e
x
c
e

e
d

 t
h

e
 l
im

it
s
 w

e
 

h
a
v
e
 t
o
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 
d
e
c
la

re
 a

n
 A

ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
A

re
a
 –

 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
re

g
u
la

rl
y
 t
o
 D

E
F

R
A

 
o

n
 w

h
a

t 
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 w

e
 

a
re

 t
a

k
in

g
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 

a
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
.

A
c
c
o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 o
u

r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
 l
is

t 
w

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t
h
e
 

D
e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
, 

L
e
e

d
s
 P

C
T

, 
th

e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 

E
a
s
t 
P

C
T

, 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 

W
e
s
t 
P

C
T

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 a
n
d

 

Page 65



H
u

m
b
e

r 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

.

E
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 
h
o
m

e
s
 w

o
u

ld
 p

la
y
 a

 b
ig

 r
o
le

 i
n

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h
e

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

b
le

 w
in

te
r 

d
e
a
th

s
. 
P

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 

lo
o
k
 a

t 
o

ld
e
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 m
o
re

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 p

e
o
p

le
 

liv
e
.

P
o
lic

y
 E

N
2
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
1
0
 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
C

o
d
e

 f
o
r 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
H

o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 l
e

v
e

l 
6

 b
y
 2

0
1

6
, 

w
it
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 p
ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e
n
. 

 

Page 66



Core Strategy
 Leeds Local Development Framework

Health Background Topic Paper 

Publication Draft 

February 2012

Contact Details

Write to:  

LDF Consultation (Core Strategy)

City Development

Leeds City Council

2 Rossington Street

LEEDS LS2 8HD

Telephone: 0113 247 8092

Email: ldf@leeds.gov.uk

Web:  www.leeds.gov.uk/ldf

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Fair Society, 
Healthy Lives

The Marmot Review
Executive Summary 

Page 69



Fair Society, 
Healthy Lives

The Marmot Review 
Executive Summary

Page 70



 —        

Rise up with me against  

the organisation of misery

Pablo Neruda

Page 71



People with higher socioeconomic position in soci-

ety have a greater array of life chances and more 

opportunities to lead a flourishing life. They also 

have better health. The two are linked: the more 

favoured people are, socially and economically,  

the better their health. This link between social 

conditions and health is not a footnote to the ‘real’ 

concerns with health – health care and unhealthy 

behaviours – it should become the main focus. 

Consider one measure of social position: education. 

People with university degrees have better health 

and longer lives than those without. For people aged 

30 and above, if everyone without a degree had their 

death rate reduced to that of people with degrees, 

there would be 202,000 fewer premature deaths each 

year. Surely this is a goal worth striving for. 

 It is the view of all of us associated with this Review 

that we could go a long way to achieving that remark-

able improvement by giving more people the life 

chances currently enjoyed by the few. The benefits of 

such efforts would be wider than lives saved. People 

in society would be better off in many ways: in the 

circumstances in which they are born, grow, live, 

work, and age. People would see improved well-being, 

better mental health and less disability, their children 

would flourish, and they would live in sustainable, 

cohesive communities.

 I chaired the World Heath Organisation’s 

Commission on Social Determinants of Health. One 

critic labelled the Commission’s report ‘ideology with 

evidence’. The same charge could be levelled at the 

present Review and we accept it gladly. We do have an 

ideological position: health inequalities that could be 

avoided by reasonable means are unfair. Putting them 

right is a matter of social justice. But the evidence 

matters. Good intentions are not enough. 

 The major task of this Review was to assemble the 

evidence and advise on the development of a health 

inequalities strategy in England. We were helped by 

nine task groups who worked quickly and thoroughly 

to bring together the evidence on what was likely to 

work. Their reports are available at www.ucl.ac.uk/

gheg/marmotreview/Documents. These reports 

provided the basis for the evidence summarised in 

Chapter 2 of this report and the policy recommenda-

tions laid out in Chapter 4.

 Of course, inequalities in health are not a new 

concern. We stand on the shoulders of giants from 

the 19th and 20th centuries in seeking solutions to 

the problem. Learning from more recent experience 

forms the basis for Chapter 3. 

 While we relied heavily on the scientific literature, 

this was not the only type of evidence we considered. 

We engaged widely with stakeholders and attempted 

to learn from their insights and experience. Indeed, an 

exciting feature of the Review process was the level of 

commitment and interest we appear to have engaged 

in central government, political parties across the 

spectrum, local government, the health services, the 

third sector and the private sector. The necessity of 

engaging these partners in making change happen is 

the subject of Chapter 5.

 Knowing the nature and size of the problem and 

understanding what works to make a difference must 

be at the heart of taking action to achieve a fairer 

distribution of health. We therefore propose a moni-

toring framework on the social determinants of health 

and health inequalities in Chapter 5 and Annex 2.

 From the outset it was feared that we were likely 

to make financially costly recommendations. It was 

put to us that economic calculations would be crucial. 

Our approach to this was to look at the costs of doing 

nothing. The numbers, reproduced in Chapter 2, are 

staggering. Doing nothing is not an economic option. 

The human cost is also enormous – 2.5 million years 

of life potentially lost to health inequalities by those 

dying prematurely each year in England.

 We are extremely grateful to two Secretaries of 

State for Health: Alan Johnson for having the vision to 

set up this Review and Andy Burnham for continuing 

to support it enthusiastically. When the report of the 

Commission on Social Determinants of Health was 

published in August 2008, Alan Johnson asked if we 

could apply the results to England. This report is our 

response to his challenge.

 The Review was steered by wise Commissioners 

who gave of their knowledge, experience and commit-

ment. It was served by a secretariat whose knowledge 

and selfless devotion to this task were simply inspir-

ing. I am enormously grateful to both groups. One 

way and another, through excellent colleagues at the 

Department of Health, working committees, task 

groups, consultations and discussions, we involved 

scores of people. I hope they will see their influence 

reflected all through this Review.

 I quoted Pablo Neruda when we began the Global 

Commission, and it seems appropriate to quote him 

still: 

‘Rise up with me against the organisation of misery’ 

Michael Marmot (Chair)

Note from the Chair

    — 

Page 72



 —        

In November 2008, Professor Sir Michael Marmot 

was asked by the Secretary of State for Health to 

chair an independent review to propose the most 

effective evidence-based strategies for reducing 

health inequalities in England from 2010. The 

strategy will include policies and interventions 

that address the social determinants of health 

inequalities. 

The Review had four tasks
 Identify, for the health inequalities chal-

lenge facing England, the evidence most 

relevant to underpinning future policy and 

action 

 Show how this evidence could be translated 

into practice

 Advise on possible objectives and meas-

ures, building on the experience of the cur-

rent PSA target on infant mortality and life 

expectancy

 Publish a report of the Review’s work that 

will contribute to the development of a post-

2010 health inequalities strategy

Disclaimer

This publication contains the collective views of the 

Strategic Review of Health Inequalities in England

post-2010, chaired by Professor Sir Michael Marmot, 

and does not necessarily represent the decisions or

the stated policy of the Department of Health.

 The mention of specific organisations, companies 

or manufacturers’ products does not imply that they 

are endorsed or recommended by the Department 

of Health in preference to others of a similar nature 

that are not mentioned.

 All reasonable precautions have been taken by the 

Strategic Review of Health Inequalities in England 

post-2010 to verify the information contained in 

this publication. However, the published material 

is being distributed without warranty of any kind, 

either expressed or implied. The responsibility for 

the interpretation and use of the material lies with 

the reader. In no event shall the Strategic Review of 

Health Inequalities in England post-2010 be liable 

for damages arising from its use.

Terms of Reference

Page 73



The work of the Review was championed, informed, 

and guided by the Chair of the Commission and the 

Commissioners.

Report writing team: Michael Marmot, Jessica Allen, 

Peter Goldblatt, Tammy Boyce, Di McNeish, Mike 

Grady, Ilaria Geddes. 

The Marmot Review team was led by Jessica Allen. 

Team members included Peter Goldblatt, Tammy 

Boyce, Di McNeish, Mike Grady, Jason Strelitz, 

Ilaria Geddes, Sharon Friel, Felicity Porritt, Elaine 

Reinertsen, Ruth Bell and Matilda Allen.

The Department of Health supported the 

Commission in many ways. In particular we thank 

Una O’Brien, Mark Davies, David Buck, Ray 

Earwicker, Geoff Raison, Maggie Davies, Steve 

Feast, Martin Gibbs, Chris Brookes, Anne Griffin  

and Lorna Demming.

 We are indebted to the task groups and work-

ing committees that informed the Review. They 

included: Sharon Friel, Denny Vagero, Alan Dyson, 

Jane Tunstill, Clyde Hertzman, Ziba Vaghri, Helen 

Roberts, Johannes Siegrist, Abigail McKnight, 

Joan Benach, Carles Muntaner, David MacFarlane, 

Monste Vergara Duarte, Hans Weitkowitz, Gry 

Wester, Howard Glennerster, Ruth Lister, Jonathan 

Bradshaw, Olle Lundberg, Kay Withers, Jan 

Flaherty, Anne Power, Jonathan Davis, Paul Plant, 

Tord Kjellstrom, Catalina Turcu, Helen Eveleigh, 

Jonathon Porritt, Anna Coote, Paul Wilkinson, 

David Colin-Thomé, Maria Arnold, Helen Clarkson, 

Sue Dibb, Jane Franklin, Tara Garnett, Jemima 

Jewell, Duncan Kay, Shivani Reddy, Cathryn Tonne, 

Ben Tuxworth, James Woodcock, Peter Smith, 

David Epstein, Marc Suhrcke, John Appleby, Adam 

Coutts, Demetris Pillas, Carmen de Paz Nieves, 

Cristina Otano, Ron Labonté, Margaret Whitehead, 

Mark Exworthy, Sue Richards, Don Matheson, Tim 

Doran, Sue Povall, Anna Peckham, Emma Rowland, 

Helen Vieth, Amy Colori, Louis Coiffait, Matthew 

Andrews, Anna Matheson, John Doyle, Lindsey 

Meyers, Alan Maryon-Davis, Tim Lobstein, Angela 

Greatley, Mark Bellis, Sally Greengross, Martin 

Wiseman, Paul Lincoln, Clare Bambra, Kerry Joyce, 

David Piachaud, James Nazroo, Jennie Popay, Fran 

Bennett, Hillary Graham, Bobbie Jacobson, Paul 

Johnstone, Ken Judge, Mike Kelly, Catherine Law, 

John Newton, John Fox, Rashmi Shukla, Nicky 

Best, Ian Plewis, Sue Atkinson, Tim Allen, Amanda 

Ariss, Antony Morgan, Paul Fryers, Veena Raleigh, 

Gwyn Bevan, Hugh Markowe, Justine Fitzpatrick, 

David Hunter, Gabriel Scally, Ruth Hussey, Tony 

Elson, Steve Weaver, Jacky Chambers, Nick Hicks, 

Paul Dornan, Liam Hughes, Carol Tannahill, Hari 

Sewell, Alison O’Sullivan, Chris Bentley, Caroline 

Briggs, Anne McDonald, John Beer, Jim Hillage, 

Jenny Savage, Daniel Lucy, Klim McPherson, Paul 

Johnson, Damien O’Flaherty and Matthew Bell.

 We are grateful to those who have provided us 

with information, contacts and data. They included: 

Edwina Hughes, Gemma Gosling, Neil Blackshaw, 

Jonathan Campion, Nicola Bent, Duncan Booker, 

Pauline Craig, Neil Pease, Phil Hatcher, Susie Dye, 

Steve Cummins, Andrew Connor, Clive Needle, 

Chris Piper, Pauline Vallance, Angela Mawle, Esther 

Trenchard-Mabere, Keith Williams, Cathie Shaw, 

Todd Campbell, Paul Edmondson-Jones, Tommy 

Gorman, Kerry Townsley, Joseph Dromey, Annette 

Gaskell, Alison Amstutz, Lia Robinson, Karl 

Wilkinshaw, Rachel Carse, John Joseph, Jake Eliot, 

Rob Taylor and Michael Hagen. 

 We thank the members of the Health Inequalities 

Programme Board and the Health Inequalities Cross- 

Government Working Group: Anne Jackson, Bill 

Gunnyeon, Andrew Lawrence, Daron Walker, 

Gareth Davies, Patricia Hayes, Liz Brutus, Elspeth 

Bracken, Rachel Arrundale, Kay Barton, Janice 

Shersby, Simon Medcalf, Jayne Bowman, Savas 

Hadjipavlou, Jaee Samant, Andrew Elliott, Helen 

Bailey, Tom Jeffery, Irene Lucas, Sue Owen, Mike 

Anderson, Stephen Rimmer, Stephen Marston, 

Helen Edwards, Chris Warmald, Andrew Ramsey, 

Steve Gooding, Lionel Jarvis, Jonathan Rees, Harry 

Burns and Chris Tudor-Smith.

 We thank the stakeholders who participated 

in the policy dialogues and open space event and 

responded to the consultation; a list of participants 

and respondents can be found on the Marmot Review 

website at www.ucl.ac.uk/gheg/marmotreview. 

 We thank our regional partners including Ruth 

Hussey, Mike Farrar and Danila Armstrong in the 

North West and in London Boris Johnson, Mayor of 

London, Pam Chesters and Helen Davies. 

 The report was copy-edited by Georgina Kyriacou. 

We are grateful to UCL for hosting and supporting 

the Review team and to the thousands of people and 

organisations who have contributed to discussions 

with the team, who have attended presentations, pro-

vided feedback, thought and comment and helped 

shape and inform this Review.

Acknowledgements

 — 

Page 74



 —        

Michael Marmot (Chair)

Tony Atkinson

John Bell

Carol Black

Patricia Broadfoot

Julia Cumberlege

Ian Diamond

Ian Gilmore

Chris Ham

Molly Meacher

Geoff Mulgan

The Commissioners

Page 75



11  Figure 1

   Life expectancy and disability-free life 

expectancy (DFLE) at birth, persons by 

neighbourhood income level, England, 

1999–2003

11  Figure 2

   Age standardised mortality rates by socio-

economic classification (NS-SEC) in the 

North East and South West regions, men 

aged 25–64, 2001–2003

13  Figure 3

   Age standardised percentage of women 

with a General Health Questionnaire 

(GHQ) score of 4 or more by deprivation 

quintile, 2001 and 2006

13  Figure 4

   The conceptual framework

14  Figure 5

   Action across the life course

17  Figure 6

   Inequality in early cognitive development of 

children in the 1970 British Cohort Study, 

at ages 22 months to 10 years

19  Figure 7

   Standardised limiting illness rates in 2001 at  

ages 16–74, by education level recorded in 2001

21  Figure 8

   Mortality of men in England and Wales in 

1981–92, by social class and employment 

status at the 1981 Census

23  Figure 9

   Taxes as a percentage of gross income, by 

quintile, 2007/8

25  Figure 10

   Populations living in areas with, in relative 

terms, the least favourable environmental 

conditions, 2001–6

27  Figure 11

   Prevalence of obesity (>95th centile), by 

region and deprivation quintile, children 

aged 10–11 years, 2007/8

Table of Figures

   — 

Page 76



 —        

Page 77



Key messages of this Review

 Reducing health inequalities is a matter 

of fairness and social justice. In England, 

the many people who are currently dying 

prematurely each year as a result of health 

inequalities would otherwise have enjoyed, 

in total, between 1.3 and 2.5 million extra 

years of life.1

 There is a social gradient in health – the 

lower a person’s social position, the worse 

his or her health. Action should focus on 

reducing the gradient in health.

 Health inequalities result from social 

inequalities. Action on health inequalities 

requires action across all the social deter-

minants of health.

 Focusing solely on the most disadvantaged 

will not reduce health inequalities suffi-

ciently. To reduce the steepness of the social 

gradient in health, actions must be univer-

sal, but with a scale and intensity that is 

proportionate to the level of disadvantage. 

We call this proportionate universalism.

 Action taken to reduce health inequali-

ties will benefit society in many ways. It 

will have economic benefits in reducing 

losses from illness associated with health 

inequalities. These currently account for 

productivity losses, reduced tax revenue, 

higher welfare payments and increased 

treatment costs.

 Economic growth is not the most impor-

tant measure of our country’s success. The 

fair distribution of health, well-being and 

sustainability are important social goals. 

Tackling social inequalities in health and 

tackling climate change must go together.

 Reducing health inequalities will require 

action on six policy objectives:

 Give every child the best start in life —

 Enable all children young people and  —

adults to maximise their capabilities 

and have control over their lives

 Create fair employment and good work  —

for all

 Ensure healthy standard of living for all  —

 Create and develop healthy and sustain- —

able places and communities

 Strengthen the role and impact of ill  —

health prevention

 Delivering these policy objectives will 

require action by central and local gov-

ernment, the NHS, the third and private 

sectors and community groups. National 

policies will not work without effective local 

delivery systems focused on health equity 

in all policies.

 Effective local delivery requires effective 

participatory decision-making at local 

level. This can only happen by empowering 

individuals and local communities.

Executive summary

  — 

Page 78



 —        

Introduction

Reducing health inequalities is a matter of fairness 
and social justice
Inequalities are a matter of life and death, of health 

and sickness, of well-being and misery. The fact that 

in England today people in different social circum-

stances experience avoidable differences in health, 

well-being and length of life is, quite simply, unfair. 

Creating a fairer society is fundamental to improving 

the health of the whole population and ensuring a 

fairer distribution of good health. 

 Inequalities in health arise because of inequalities 

in society – in the conditions in which people are 

born, grow, live, work, and age. So close is the link 

between particular social and economic features 

of society and the distribution of health among the 

population, that the magnitude of health inequalities 

is a good marker of progress towards creating a fairer 

society. Taking action to reduce inequalities in health 

does not require a separate health agenda, but action 

across the whole of society. 

 The WHO Commission on Social Determinants 

of Health which, among other work, was an impe-

tus for the commissioning of this Review by the 

Department of Health, surveyed the world scene and 

concluded that ‘social injustice is killing on a grand 

scale’.2 While within England there are nowhere 

near the extremes of inequalities in mortality and 

morbidity seen globally, inequality is still substantial 

and requires urgent action. In England, people living 

in the poorest neighbourhoods, will, on average, die 

seven years earlier than people living in the richest 

neighbourhoods (the top curve in Figure 1). Even 

more disturbing, the average difference in disability-

free life expectancy is 17 years (the bottom curve in 

Figure 1). So, people in poorer areas not only die 

sooner, but they will also spend more of their shorter 

lives with a disability. To illustrate the importance of 

the gradient: even excluding the poorest five per cent 

and the richest five per cent the gap in life expectancy 

between low and high income is six years, and in 

disability-free life expectancy 13 years.

 Figure 1 also shows the finely graded relation-

ship between the socioeconomic characteristics 

of these neighbourhoods and both life expectancy 

and disability-free life expectancy. Not only are 

there dramatic differences between best-off and 

worst-off in England, but the relationship between 

social circumstances and health is also a graded one. 

This is the social gradient in health. We can draw 

similar graphs to Figure 1 classifying individuals 

not by where they live but by their level of education, 

occupation, housing conditions – and see similar 

gradients. Put simply, the higher one’s social posi-

tion, the better one’s health is likely to be. 

 These serious health inequalities do not arise 

by chance, and they cannot be attributed simply to 

genetic makeup, ‘bad’, unhealthy behaviour, or dif-

ficulties in access to medical care, important as those 

factors may be. Social and economic differences in 

health status reflect, and are caused by, social and 

economic inequalities in society. 

 The starting point for this Review is that health 

inequalities that are preventable by reasonable means 

are unfair. Putting them right is a matter of social 

justice. A debate about how to close the health gap 

has to be a debate about what sort of society people 

want. 

Action is needed to tackle the social gradient in 

health

The implications of the social gradient in health are 

profound. It is tempting to focus limited resources on 

those in most need. But, as Figure 1 illustrates, we are 

all in need – all of us beneath the very best-off. If the 

focus were on the very bottom and social action were 

successful in improving the plight of the worst-off, 

what would happen to those just above the bottom, 

or at the median, who have worse health than those 

above them? All must be included in actions to create 

a fairer society. 

 We are unlikely to be able to eliminate the social 

gradient in health completely, but it is possible to 

have a shallower social gradient in health and well-

being than is currently the case for England. This 

is evidenced by the fact that there is a steeper socio-

economic gradient in health in some regions than in 

others, as shown in Figure 2. 

 To reduce the steepness of the social gradient in 

health, actions must be universal, but with a scale 

and intensity that is proportionate to the level of dis-

advantage. We call this proportionate universalism. 

Greater intensity of action is likely to be needed for 

those with greater social and economic disadvantage, 

but focusing solely on the most disadvantaged will 

not reduce the health gradient, and will only tackle a 

small part of the problem.

Action on health inequalities requires action 

across all  the social determinants of health

The Commission on Social Determinants of Health 

concluded that social inequalities in health arise 

because of inequalities in the conditions of daily life 

and the fundamental drivers that give rise to them: 

inequities in power, money and resources.3

 These social and economic inequalities underpin 

the determinants of health: the range of interact-

ing factors that shape health and well-being. These 

include: material circumstances, the social environ-

ment, psychosocial factors, behaviours, and biologi-

cal factors. In turn, these factors are influenced by 

social position, itself shaped by education, occupa-

tion, income, gender, ethnicity and race. All these 

influences are affected by the socio-political and 

cultural and social context in which they sit.4 

 When we consider these social determinants of 

health, it is no mystery why there should continue to 

be health inequalities. Persisting inequalities across 

key domains provide ample explanation: inequalities 

in early child development and education, employ-

ment and working conditions, housing and neigh-

bourhood conditions, standards of living, and, more 

generally, the freedom to participate equally in the 

Page 79



Figure 2 Age standardised mortality rates by socioeconomic classification (NS-SEC) in the North East 
and South West regions, men aged 25–64, 2001–2003

Figure 1 Life expectancy and disability-free life expectancy (DFLE) at birth, persons by neighbourhood 
income level, England, 1999–2003

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 100

Neighbourhood Income Deprivation
(Population Percentiles)    

Least deprivedMost deprived

Age

Life expectancy

DFLE

Pension age increase 2026–2046 Source: Office for National Statistics5

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Mortality rate 

per 100,000

Higher 
managerial,
professional

Lower 
managerial,
professional

Intermediate Small 
employers,
own account
workers

Lower
supervisory
and technical

Semi-routine Routine

North East

South West

Notes: NS-SEC = National Statistics 

Socio-economic Classification 

Source: Office for National Statistics6

  — 

Page 80



 —        

benefits of society. A central message of this Review, 

therefore, is that action is required across all these 

social determinants of health and needs to involve 

all central and local government departments as well 

as the third and private sectors. Action taken by the 

Department of Health and the NHS alone will not 

reduce health inequalities.

 The unfair distribution of health and length of life 

provides compelling enough reason for action across 

all social determinants. However, there are other 

important reasons for taking action too. Addressing 

continued inequalities in early child development, in 

young people’s educational achievement and acquisi-

tion of skills, in sustainable and healthy communities, 

in social and health services, and in employment and 

working conditions will have multiple benefits that 

extend beyond reductions in health inequalities. 

Reducing health inequalities is vital for the 

economy

The benefits of reducing health inequalities are eco-

nomic as well as social. The cost of health inequalities 

can be measured in human terms, years of life lost 

and years of active life lost; and in economic terms, 

by the cost to the economy of additional illness. If 

everyone in England had the same death rates as the 

most advantaged, people who are currently dying 

prematurely as a result of health inequalities would, 

in total, have enjoyed between 1.3 and 2.5 million 

extra years of life.7 They would, in addition, have 

had a further 2.8 million years free of limiting illness 

or disability.8 It is estimated that inequality in illness 

accounts for productivity losses of £31-33 billion 

per year, lost taxes and higher welfare payments in 

the range of £20-32 billion per year9, and additional 

NHS healthcare costs associated with inequality are 

well in excess of £5.5 billion per year.10 If no action 

is taken, the cost of treating the various illnesses that 

result from inequalities in the level of obesity alone 

will rise from £2 billion per year to nearly £5 billion 

per year in 2025.11

 As further illustration, we have drawn on Figure 

1 a line at 68 years – the pensionable age to which 

England is moving. With the levels of disability 

shown, more than three-quarters of the population 

do not have disability-free life expectancy as far 

as the age of 68. If society wishes to have a healthy 

population, working until 68 years, it is essential to 

take action to both raise the general level of health 

and flatten the social gradient.

 This report is published in an adverse economic 

climate. We join our voice to those who say that a cri-

sis is an opportunity: it is a time to plan to do things 

differently. Austerity need not lead to retrenchment 

in the welfare state. Indeed, the opposite may be nec-

essary: the welfare state in England, the NHS itself, 

was born in the most austere post-war conditions. 

This required both courage and imagination. Today 

we call for courage and imagination again, to ensure 

equal health and well-being for future generations.

Beyond economic growth to well-being of 

society: sustainability and the fair distribution 

of health

It is time to move beyond economic growth as the 

sole measure of social success. Not a new idea, it was 

given new emphasis by the recent Commission on the 

Measurement of Economic Performance and Social 

Progress, set up by President Sarkozy and chaired 

by Joseph Stiglitz, with Amartya Sen and Jean-Paul 

Fitoussi.12 Well-being should be a more important 

societal goal than simply more economic growth. 

Prominent among the measures of well-being should 

be levels of inequalities in health. 

 Environmental sustainability, too, should be a 

more important societal goal than simply more eco-

nomic growth. Economic growth without attending 

to its environmental impact, maintaining the status 

quo, is not an option for the country or for the planet. 

Globally, climate change and attempts to combat 

it have the worst effects on the poorest and most 

vulnerable. The need for mitigation of, and adapta-

tion to, climate change means that we must do things 

differently. Creating a sustainable future is entirely 

compatible with action to reduce health inequalities: 

sustainable local communities, active transport, sus-

tainable food production, and zero-carbon houses 

will have health benefits across society. We set out 

measures that will aid mitigation of climate change 

and also reduce health inequalities.

 Simply restoring economic growth, trying to 

return to the status quo, while cutting public spend-

ing, should not be an option. Economic growth 

without reducing relative inequality will not reduce 

health inequalities. The economic growth of the last 

30 years has not narrowed income inequalities. And 

although there is far more to inequality than just 

income, income is linked to life chances in a number 

of salient ways. As Amartya Sen has argued, income 

inequalities affect the lives people are able to lead.13 

A fair society would give people more equal freedom 

to lead flourishing lives. 

 The central ambition of this Review is to cre-

ate the conditions for people to take control over 

their own lives. If the conditions in which people are 

born, grow, live, work, and age are favourable, and 

more equitably distributed, then they will have more 

control over their lives in ways that will influence 

their own health and health behaviours, and those 

of their families. However, the freedom to flourish is 

graded. As an example, Figure 3 shows how answers 

to the General Health Questionnaire are related 

to deprivation for women in the Health Survey for 

England in 2001 and 2006 – a score of 4 or more 

indicates symptoms of mental disturbance. 

Page 81



Figure 4 The Conceptual framework 

Figure 3 Age standardised percentage of women with a General Health Questionnaire (GHQ) score of 
4 or more by deprivation quintile, 2001 and 2006

0

5

10

15

20

25

              1          2 3 4  5

Deprivation quintiles           Least deprived Most deprived

Percent

2001

2006 Source: Health Survey for England14

Policy mechanisms

Reduce health inequalities and improve health and well-being for all.

Equality and health equity in all policies.

Effective evidence-based delivery systems.

Policy objectives

Create an enabling society

that maximises individual and 

community potential.

Ensure social justice,

health and sustainability are 

at heart of policies.

B. 

Enable all children, 

young people and 

adults to maximise their 

capabilities and have 

control over their lives.

A. 

Give every child the 

best start in life.

C. 

Create fair employment 

and good work for all.

E. 

Create and develop 

healthy and sustainable 

places and 

communities.

D. 

Ensure healthy

standard of living 

for all.

F. 

Strengthen the role 

and impact of ill health 

prevention.

  — 

Page 82



 —        

Six policy recommendations to reduce health 

inequalities

A framework for action 
This Review has twin aims: to improve health and 

well-being for all and to reduce health inequalities. 

To achieve this, we have two policy goals: 

 To create an enabling society that maximises  —

individual and community potential

 To ensure social justice, health and sustainability  —

are at the heart of all policies.

Based on the evidence we have assembled, our rec-

ommendations are grouped into six policy objectives, 

as shown in Figure 4.

 Our recommendations in these six policy objec-

tives are underpinned by two policy mechanisms:

 Considering equality and health equity in all  —

policies, across the whole of government, not just 

the health sector

 Effective evidence-based interventions and  —

delivery systems.

Action across the life course
Central to the Review is a life course perspective. 

Disadvantage starts before birth and accumulates 

throughout life, as shown in Figure 5. Action to 

reduce health inequalities must start before birth 

and be followed through the life of the child. Only 

then can the close links between early disadvantage 

and poor outcomes throughout life be broken. That 

is our ambition for children born in 2010. For this 

reason, giving every child the best start in life 

(Policy Objective A) is our highest priority 

recommendation. 

 Meanwhile, there is much that can be done to 

improve the lives and health of people who have 

already reached school, working age and beyond, 

as demonstrateed by the evidence presented in the 

following sections. Services that promote the health, 

well being and independence of older people  and, in 

so doing, prevent or delay the need for more intensive 

or institutional care, make a significant contribution 

to ameliorating health inequalities. For example, the 

Partnerships for Older People projects have been 

shown to be cost effective in  improving life quality.

Areas of action

Skills Development Employment and Work
Prevention

Early Years

Life course stages

Prenatal Pre-School School Training Employment Retirement

Family Building

Life Course

Accumulation of positive and negative 

effects on health and wellbeing

Sustainable communities and places

Healthy Standard of Living

Figure 5 Action across the life course  

Page 83



Photo: Anthony Strack/Getty Images

Page 84



 —        

If you are a single parent you don’t get to go out that 

much, you don’t really see anybody.

Quote from participant in qualitative work undertaken for the Review, 

which explored barriers to healthy lives among specific groups living 

in Hackney (London), Birmingham and Manchester. See Annex 1 

and www.ucl.ac.uk/gheg/marmotreview. The remaining quotes in 

this summary also come from this work.

Inequalities in early child development
Giving every child the best start in life is crucial to 

reducing health inequalities across the life course. 

The foundations for virtually every aspect of human 

development – physical, intellectual and emotional 

– are laid in early childhood. What happens during 

these early years (starting in the womb) has lifelong 

effects on many aspects of health and well-being– 

from obesity, heart disease and mental health, to 

educational achievement and economic status.15 

To have an impact on health inequalities we need 

to address the social gradient in children’s access 

to positive early experiences. Later interventions, 

although important, are considerably less effective 

where good early foundations are lacking.16

 As Figure  6 shows, children who have low cogni-

tive scores at 22 months of age but who grow up in 

families of high socioeconomic position improve 

their relative scores as they approach the age of 10. 

The relative position of children with high scores 

at 22 months, but who grow up in families of low 

socioeconomic position, worsens as they approach 

age 10.

What can be done to reduce inequalities in early 
child development?
There has been a strong government commitment 

to the early years, enacted through a wide range 

of policy initiatives, including Sure Start and the 

Healthy Child Programme. It is vital that this is 

sustained over the long term. Even greater priority 

must be given to ensuring expenditure early in the 

developmental life cycle (that is, on children below 

the age of 5) and that more is invested in interven-

tions that have been proved to be effective. 

 We are therefore calling for a ‘second revolu-

tion in the early years’, to increase the proportion of 

overall expenditure allocated there. This expendi-

ture should be focused proportionately across the 

social gradient to ensure effective support to parents 

(starting in pregnancy and continuing through the 

transition of the child into primary school), includ-

ing quality early education and childcare.

Policy Objective A 

Give every child the best start in life

 Reduce inequalities in the early develop-

ment of physical and emotional health, and 

cognitive, linguistic, and social skills.

 Ensure high quality maternity services, 

parenting programmes, childcare and early 

years education to meet need across the 

social gradient. 

 Build the resilience and well-being of young 

children across the social gradient.

 Increase the proportion of overall expendi-

ture allocated to the early years and ensure 

expenditure on early years development 

is focused progressively across the social 

gradient.

 Support families to achieve progressive 

improvements in early child development, 

including:

 Giving priority to pre- and post-natal inter- —

ventions that reduce adverse outcomes of 

pregnancy and infancy 

 Providing paid parental leave in the first  —

year of life with a minimum income for 

healthy living

 Providing routine support to families  —

through parenting programmes, children’s 

centres and key workers, delivered to meet 

social need via outreach to families 

 Developing programmes for the transition  —

to school. 

 Provide good quality early years education 

and childcare proportionately across the 

gradient. This provision should be:

 Combined with outreach to increase the  —

take-up by children from disadvantaged 

families

 Provided on the basis of evaluated models  —

and to meet quality standards.

Priority objectives

Policy recommendations

Page 85



Low Q at 22m

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

22 26 30 34 38 42 46 50 54 58 62 66 70 74 78 82 86 90 94 98 102 106 110 114 118

Months

Average position 

in distribution

High Q at 22m

Note: Q = cognitive score  

Source: 1970 British Cohort Study17

Figure 6 Inequality in early cognitive development of children in the 1970 British Cohort Study, at ages 
22 months to 10 years

  — 

photo: Bromley by Bow Centre

High socioeconomic status

Low socioeconomic status

Page 86



 —        

If there is no education there are no jobs these days, 

so it is really worrying. If your children don’t get 

a good education then what’s going to happen to 

them?

(Focus group participant)

Inequalities in education and skills
Inequalities in educational outcomes affect physical 

and mental health, as well as income, employment 

and quality of life. The graded relationship between 

socioeconomic position and educational outcome has 

significant implications for subsequent employment, 

income, living standards, behaviours, and mental 

and physical health (Figure 7).

 To achieve equity from the start, investment 

in the early years is crucial. However, maintain-

ing the reduction of inequalities across the gradient 

also requires a sustained commitment to children 

and young people through the years of education. 

Central to this is the acquisition of cognitive and 

non-cognitive skills, which are strongly associated 

with educational achievement and with a whole range 

of other outcomes including better employment, 

income and physical and mental health. 

 Success in education brings many advantages. If 

we are serious about reducing both social and health 

inequalities, we must maintain our focus on improv-

ing educational outcomes across the gradient.

What can be done to reduce inequalities in 
education and skills?
Inequalities in educational outcomes are as persistent 

as those for health and are subject to a similar social 

gradient. Despite many decades of policies aimed at 

equalising educational opportunities, the attainment 

gap remains. As with health inequalities, reducing 

educational inequalities involves understanding 

the interaction between the social determinants of 

educational outcomes, including family background, 

neighbourhood and relationships with peers, as well 

as what goes on in schools. Indeed, evidence on 

the most important factors influencing educational 

attainment suggests that it is families, rather than 

schools, that have the most influence. Closer links 

between schools, the family, and the local commu-

nity are needed.

 Investing in the early years, thereby improving 

early cognitive and non-cognitive development and 

children’s readiness for school, is vital for later educa-

tional outcomes. Once at school, it is important that 

children and young people are able to develop skills 

for life and for work as well as attain qualifications. 

Policy Objective B 

Enable all children, young people and adults to 
maximise their capabilities and have control over 
their lives

 Reduce the social gradient in skills and 

qualifications. 

 Ensure that schools, families and commu-

nities work in partnership to reduce the 

gradient in health, well-being and resilience 

of children and young people. 

 Improve the access and use of quality life-

long learning across the social gradient.

 Ensure that reducing social inequalities in 

pupils’ educational outcomes is a sustained 

priority.  

 Prioritise reducing social inequalities in life 

skills, by: 

 Extending the role of schools in support- —

ing families and communities and taking a 

‘whole child’ approach to education

 Consistently implementing ‘full service’  —

extended school approaches

 Developing the school-based workforce to  —

build their skills in working across school–

home boundaries and addressing social 

and emotional development, physical and 

mental health and well-being.

 Increase access and use of quality lifelong 

learning opportunities across the social 

gradient, by:

 Providing easily accessible support and  —

advice for 16–25 year olds on life skills, 

training and employment opportunities 

 Providing work-based learning, including  —

apprenticeships, for young people and those 

changing jobs/careers 

 Increasing availability of non-vocational  —

lifelong learning across the life course.

Policy recommendations

Priority objectives

Page 87



0

10

20

30

3rd level 2+As 5+Os GCSE Other Qual No

Qualifications

Qualifications 

Percent ill

s 

Males

Females

Note: Vertical bars (I) represent  

confidence intervals  

Source: Office for National Statistics 

Longitudinal Study18

Figure 7 Standardised limiting illness rates in 2001 at ages 16–74, by education level recorded in 2001

Closer links between schools, the family, and the 

local community are important steps to this achieve-

ment. The development of extended services in and 

around schools is important, but more is needed to 

develop the skills of teaching and non-teaching staff 

to work across home–school boundaries and develop 

the broader life skills of children and young people. 

 For those who leave school at 16, further support 

is vital in the form of skills development for work and 

training, management of relationships, and advice 

on substance misuse, debt, continuing education, 

housing concerns and pregnancy and parenting. 

Such training and support should be developed and 

located in every community, designed specifically 

for this age group.

 Central to our vision is the full development 

of people’s capabilities across the social gradient. 

Without life skills and readiness for work, as well as 

educational achievement, young people will not be 

able to fulfil their full potential, to flourish and take 

control over their lives. 

  — 

photo: Image Source

Page 88



 —        

The only [things] I am concerned [about] are the 

future of my children, the lack of opportunities for 

the younger generation and the lack of employment 

– that is very daunting. 

(Focus group participant)

Inequalities in work and employment
Being in good employment is protective of health. 

Conversely, unemployment contributes to poor 

health. Getting people into work is therefore of 

critical importance for reducing health inequalities. 

However, jobs need to be sustainable and offer a 

minimum level of quality, to include not only a decent 

living wage, but also opportunities for in-work devel-

opment, the flexibility to enable people to balance 

work and family life, and protection from adverse 

working conditions that can damage health.

 Patterns of employment both reflect and reinforce 

the social gradient and there are serious inequalities 

of access to labour market opportunities. Rates of 

unemployment are highest among those with no 

or few qualifications and skills, people with dis-

abilities and mental ill-health, those with caring 

responsibilities, lone parents, those from some ethnic 

minority groups, older workers and, in particular, 

young people. When in work, these same groups are 

more likely to be in low-paid, poor quality jobs with 

few opportunities for advancement, often working 

in conditions that are harmful to health. Many are 

trapped in a cycle of low-paid, poor quality work and 

unemployment. 

 The dramatic increase in unemployment in the 

United Kingdom during the early 1980s stimulated 

research on the link between unemployment and 

health. Figure 8 shows the social gradient in the 

subsequent mortality of those that experienced 

unemployment in the early 1980s. For each occupa-

tional class, the unemployed have higher mortality 

than the employed.

 Insecure and poor quality employment is also 

associated with increased risks of poor physical 

and mental health. There is a graded relationship 

between a person’s status at work and how much 

control and support they have there. These factors, 

in turn, have biological effects and are related to 

increased risk of ill-health.

 Work is good – and unemployment bad – for 

physical and mental health, but the quality of work 

matters. Getting people off benefits and into low 

paid, insecure and health-damaging work is not a 

desirable option. 

Policy Objective C

Create fair employment and good work for all

 Improve access to good jobs and reduce 

long-term unemployment across the social 

gradient. 

 Make it easier for people who are disadvan-

taged in the labour market to obtain and 

keep work. 

 Improve quality of jobs across the social 

gradient.

 Prioritise active labour market programmes 

to achieve timely interventions to reduce 

long-term unemployment. 

 Encourage, incentivise and, where appro-

priate, enforce the implementation of meas-

ures to improve the quality of jobs across 

the social gradient, by:

 Ensuring public and private sector  —

employers adhere to equality guidance and 

legislation

 Implementing guidance on stress manage- —

ment and the effective promotion of well-

being and physical and mental health at 

work. 

 Develop greater security and flexibility in 

employment, by:

 Prioritising greater flexibility of retirement  —

age 

 Encouraging and incentivising employers  —

to create or adapt jobs that are suitable for 

lone parents, carers and people with mental 

and physical health problems. 

Policy recommendations

Priority objectives

Page 89



50

70

90

110

130

150

170

190

Standardised 
Mortality Rate

I          II       IIIN     IIIM       IV         V                   I          II   IIIN    IIIM       IV         V 

Social Class

Employed in 1981              Unemployed in 1981

Source: Office for National Statistics 

Longitudinal Study19

Figure 8 Mortality of men in England and Wales in 1981–92, by social class and employment status at 
the 1981 Census 

  — 

photo: NHS South West

Page 90



 —        

Inequalities in income
Having insufficient money to lead a healthy life is a 

highly significant cause of health inequalities.20 

 As a society becomes richer, the levels of income 

and resources that are considered to be adequate 

also rise. The calculation of Minimum Income for 

Healthy Living (MIHL) includes the level of income 

needed for adequate nutrition, physical activity, 

housing, social interactions, transport, medical care 

and hygiene. In England there are gaps between a 

minimum income for healthy living and the level of 

state benefit payments that many groups receive.

 Despite important steps made by the Government 

to tackle child poverty, the proportion of the UK 

population living in poverty remains stubbornly 

high, above the European Union average and worse 

than in France, Germany, the Netherlands and the 

Nordic countries. Employment policy has helped, 

but the UK benefits system remains inadequate. 

 Figure 9 shows that, after taking account of both 

direct and indirect tax, the taxation system in Britain 

disadvantages those on lower incomes. The benefits 

of lower direct tax rates for those on lower incomes 

are cancelled out by the effects of indirect taxation. 

People on low incomes spend a larger proportion of 

their money on commodities that attract indirect 

taxes. As a result, overall tax, as a proportion of dis-

posable income, is highest in the bottom quintile.

What can be done to reduce income inequalities?
State benefits increase the incomes of the worst off. 

Since 1998 tax credits have lifted 500,000 children 

out of poverty. It is imperative that the system of ben-

efits does not act as a disincentive to enter employ-

ment. Over two million workers in Britain stand to 

lose more than half of any increase in earnings to 

taxes and reduced benefits. Some 160,000 would 

keep less than 10p of each extra £1 they earned. 

Lone parents face some of the weakest incentives to 

work and earn more, because many will be, or worry 

they will be, subject to withdrawal of a tax credit or 

means-tested benefit as their earnings rise.

 The current tax and benefit system needs over-

hauling to strengthen incentives to work for people on 

low incomes and increase simplicity and certainty for 

families. The Government could do more to redis-

tribute income and reduce poverty without harming 

the economy by delivering a net tax cut to people 

who currently face weak incentives to enter work or 

to increase their low levels of pay. A more progressive 

tax system is needed, one that includes the direct and 

indirect incomes that make up a person’s income.

Policy Objective D

Ensure a healthy standard of living for all

 Establish a minimum income for healthy 

living for people of all ages.

 

 Reduce the social gradient in the standard 

of living through progressive taxation and 

other fiscal policies.

  

 Reduce the cliff edges faced by people mov-

ing between benefits and work. 

 Develop and implement standards for mini-

mum income for healthy living.

 Remove ‘cliff edges’ for those moving in 

and out of work and improve flexibility of 

employment.

 Review and implement systems of taxation, 

benefits, pensions and tax credits to provide 

a minimum income for healthy living stand-

ards and pathways for moving upwards. 

Policy recommendations

Priority objectives

I’m one person who would be better off not working 

with two kids. I would have more money if I didn’t 

work. 

(Focus group participant)

Page 91



0

10

20

30

40

50

Bottom   2nd   3rd   4th   Top

Quintile of household equivalised disposable income

Percent

All indirect taxes

All direct taxes Source: Office for National Statistics21 

Figure 9 Taxes as a percentage of gross income, by quintile, 2007/8

  — 

photo: NHS South West

Page 92



 —        

Inequalities in neighbourhoods and communities
Communities are important for physical and mental 

health and well-being. The physical and social char-

acteristics of communities, and the degree to which 

they enable and promote healthy behaviours, all 

make a contribution to social inequalities in health. 

However, there is a clear social gradient in ‘healthy’ 

community characteristics (Figure 10).

People want to get involved with that, people will 

want to support that, people will want to volunteer 

for that, people want to get education to fit the role 

so that can grow and I don’t want people from 

outside of the community to do that, I want people 

from inside the community to do that because it’s up 

to us. We care about it. 

(Focus group participant)

What can be done to reduce community 
inequalities?
Social capital describes the links between individu-

als: links that bind and connect people within and 

between communities. It provides a source of resil-

ience, a buffer against risks of poor health, through 

social support which is critical to physical and mental 

well-being, and through the networks that help peo-

ple find work, or get through economic and other 

material difficulties. The extent of people’s partici-

pation in their communities and the added control 

over their lives that this brings has the potential to 

contribute to their psychosocial well-being and, as a 

result, to other health outcomes. 

 It is vital to build social capital at a local level to 

ensure that policies are both owned by those most 

affected and are shaped by their experiences.

 Building healthier and more sustainable com-

munities involves choosing to invest differently. For 

example, the Commission for Architecture and the 

Built Environment estimates that the budget for 

new road building, if used differently, could pro-

vide 1,000 new parks at an initial capital cost of 

£10 million each – two parks in each local authority 

in England. One thousand new parks could save 

approximately 74,000 tonnes of carbon, based on a 

10 hectare park with 200 trees.22 

 Much of what we recommend for reducing health 

inequalities – active travel (for example walking or 

cycling), public transport, energy-efficient houses, 

availability of green space, healthy eating, reduced 

carbon-based pollution – will also benefit the sus-

tainability agenda.

Policy Objective E

Create and develop healthy and sustainable places 
and communities

 Develop common policies to reduce the 

scale and impact of climate change and 

health inequalities. 

 Improve community capital and reduce 

social isolation across the social gradient. 

 Prioritise policies and interventions that 

reduce both health inequalities and mitigate 

climate change, by:

 Improving active travel across the social  —

gradient 

 Improving the availability of good qual- —

ity open and green spaces across the social 

gradient 

 Improving the food environment in local  —

areas across the social gradient 

 Improving energy efficiency of housing  —

across the social gradient.  

 Fully integrate the planning, transport, 

housing, environmental and health systems 

to address the social determinants of health 

in each locality. 

 Support locally developed and evidence-

based community regeneration programmes  

that: 

 Remove barriers to community participa- —

tion and action

 Reduce social isolation.  —

Policy recommendations

Priority objectives

You can see the deprivation. All you have to do 

is look outside. It is in your face every day – litter 

everywhere, rats and rubbish, it is a dump… It feels 

like people around you have no meaning to life. I 

keep my curtains closed at times. It doesn’t give you 

a purpose to do anything. 

(Focus group participant)

Page 93



Figure 10 Populations living in areas with, in relative terms, the least favourable environmental 
conditions, 2001–6

  — 

photo: Gary Sludden/Getty Images

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

Least deprived areas
Level of deprivation

Percentage of 

the population

Most deprived areas

No conditions

No conditions

1 condition

1 condition

2 conditions

2 conditions

3 or more conditions

Environmental conditions: river water quality, air quality, green space, habitat favourable to bio-

diversity, flood risk, litter, detritus, housing conditions, road accidents, regulated sites (e.g. landfill) 

Source: Department for Environment, Food 

and Rural Affairs23

Page 94



 —        

Many of the key health behaviours significant to 

the development of chronic disease follow the social 

gradient: smoking, obesity, lack of physical activity, 

unhealthy nutrition. An example is shown for obes-

ity in Figure 11. Each of the five policy areas of our 

recommendations are targeted at preventing the 

social gradient in incidence of illness. In addition, 

reducing health inequalities requires a focus on these 

health behaviours.

 The importance of investing in the early years is 

key to preventing ill health later in life, as is investing 

in healthy schools and healthy employment as well 

as more traditional forms of ill-health prevention 

such as drug treatment and smoking cessation pro-

grammes. The accumulation of experiences a child 

receives shapes the outcomes and choices they will 

make when they become adults. 

 Prevention of ill health has traditionally been the 

responsibility of the NHS, but we put prevention 

in the context of the social determinants of health. 

Hence, all our recommendations require involve-

ment of a range of stakeholders. Local and national 

decisions made in schools, the workplace, at home, 

and in government services all have the potential to 

help or hinder ill-health prevention. 

 At present only 4 per cent of NHS funding is 

spent on prevention. Yet, the evidence shows that 

partnership working between primary care, local 

authorities and the third sector to deliver effective 

universal and targeted preventive interventions can 

bring important benefits. 

Policy Objective F

Strengthen the role and impact of ill-health 
prevention

 Prioritise prevention and early detection of 

those conditions most strongly related to 

health inequalities. 

 Increase availability of long-term and sus-

tainable funding in ill health prevention 

across the social gradient. 

 Prioritise investment in ill health prevention 

and health promotion across government 

departments to reduce the social gradient. 

 Implement an evidence-based programme 

of ill health preventive interventions that are 

effective across the social gradient by: 

 Increasing and improving the scale  —

and quality of medical drug treatment 

programmes

 Focusing public health interventions such as  —

smoking cessation programmes and alcohol 

reduction on reducing the social gradient 

 Improving programmes to address the caus- —

es of obesity across the social gradient. 

 Focus core efforts of public health depart-

ments on interventions related to the social 

determinants of health proportionately 

across the gradient. 

Policy recommendations

Priority objectives

Page 95



Figure 11 Prevalence of obesity (>95th centile), by region and deprivation quintile, children aged 10–11 
years, 2007/8

Prevalence of obesity

Region of residence

5

0

10

15

20

25

30

England London West
Midlands

North East South East East
Midlands

Yorkshire and
The Humber

East of
England

North
West

South
West

Quintile 2
Quintile 3

Quintile 1 (least deprived)

Quintile 4
Quintile 5 (most deprived)

Source: National Obesity Observatory, 

based on National Child Measurement 

Programme24

  — 

photo: Bromley by Bow Centre

Page 96



 —        

Delivery systems

Even backed by the best evidence and with the most 

carefully designed and well resourced interven-

tions, national policies will not reduce inequalities 

if local delivery systems cannot deliver them. The 

recommendations we make depend both on local 

partnerships and on national cross-cutting govern-

ment policies. 

Central direction, local delivery

Where does responsibility for action lie? There is no 

question that central, regional, and local government 

all have crucial roles to play. As we conducted this 

Review, we formed partnerships with the North 

West region of England, and with London; both 

regions are seeking to put the reduction of health 

inequalities at the centre of their strategy and 

actions.25 They will be joined by several other local 

governments, Primary Care Trusts, and third sector 

organisations. 

 The argument was put to us that local practition-

ers want principles for action rather than detailed, 

specific recommendations. Local areas suggested 

they will exercise the freedom to develop locally 

appropriate plans for reducing health inequali-

ties. The policy proposals made in this Review are 

intended to provide evidence of interventions that 

will reduce health inequalities and to give directions 

of travel without detailed prescription of exactly 

how policies should be developed and implemented. 

Similarly, the Review has proposed a national frame-

work of indicators, within which local areas develop 

those needed for monitoring local performance 

improvement in their own areas.

Individual and community empowerment

Linked to the question of whether action should be 

central or local is the role of individual responsibil-

ity, often juxtaposed against the responsibility of 

government. This Review puts empowerment of 

individuals and communities at the centre of action 

to reduce health inequalities. But achieving indi-

vidual empowerment requires social action. Our 

vision is of creating conditions for individuals to take 

control of their own lives. For some communities this 

will mean removing structural barriers to participa-

tion, for others facilitating and developing capacity 

and capability through personal and community 

development. 

 There needs to be a more systematic approach 

to engaging communities by Local Strategic 

Partnerships at both district and neighbourhood 

levels, moving beyond often routine, brief consulta-

tions to effective participation in which individuals 

and communities define the problems and develop 

community solutions. Without such participation 

and a shift of power towards individuals and com-

munities it will be difficult to achieve the penetra-

tion of interventions needed to impact effectively on 

health inequalities.

 Strategic policy should be underpinned by a lim-

ited number of aspirational targets that support the 

intended strategic direction, to improve and reduce 

inequalities in life and health expectancy and moni-

tor child development and social inclusion across the 

social gradient.

National health outcome targets across the 

social gradient

It is proposed that national targets in the 

immediate future should cover: 

 Life expectancy (to capture years of life) —

 Health expectancy (to capture the qual- —

ity of those years).

Once an indicator of well-being is developed 

that is suitable for large-scale implemen-

tation, this should be included as a third 

national target on health inequality.

National targets for child development across 

the social gradient 

It is proposed that national targets should 

cover: 

 Readiness for school (to capture early  —

years development)

 Young people not in education, employ- —

ment or training (to capture skill devel-

opment during the school years and the 

control that school leavers have over 

their lives).

National target for social inclusion 

It is proposed that there be a national target 

that progressively increases the proportion 

of households that have an income, after tax 

and benefits, that is sufficient for healthy 

living. 

National and regional leadership should promote 

awareness of the underlying social causes of health 

inequalities and build understanding across the 

NHS, local government, third sector and private 

sector services of the need to scale up interventions 

and sustain intensity using mainstream funding. 

Interventions should have an evidenced-based 

evaluation framework and a health equity impact 

assessment. This would help delivery organisations 

shape effective interventions, understand impacts 

of other policies on health distributions and avoid 

drift into small-scale projects focused on individual 

behaviours and lifestyle. 

Conclusion

Social justice is a matter of life and death. It affects 

the way people live, their consequent chances of 

illness and their risk of premature death. 

 This is the opinion of the Commission on Social 

Determinants of Health set up by the World Health 

Organisation. Theirs was a global remit and we can 

all easily recognise the health inequalities experi-

enced by people living in poor countries, people for 

whom absolute poverty is a daily reality. 

Page 97



 It is harder for many people to accept that serious 

health inequalities exist here in England. We have 

a highly valued NHS and the overall health of the 

population in this country has improved greatly 

over the past 50 years. Yet in the wealthiest part of 

London, one ward in Kensington and Chelsea, a man 

can expect to live to 88 years, while a few kilometres 

away in Tottenham Green, one of the capital’s poorer 

wards, male life expectancy is 71. Dramatic health 

inequalities are still a dominant feature of health in 

England across all regions.

 But health inequalities are not inevitable and can 

be significantly reduced. They stem from avoid-

able inequalities in society: of income, education, 

employment and neighbourhood circumstances. 

Inequalities present before birth set the scene for 

poorer health and other outcomes accumulating 

throughout the life course. 

 The central tenet of this Review is that avoidable 

health inequalities are unfair and putting them right 

is a matter of social justice. There will be those who 

say that our recommendations cannot be afforded, 

particularly in the current economic climate. We 

say that it is inaction that cannot be afforded, for 

the human and economic costs are too high. The 

health and well-being of today’s children depend on 

us having the courage and imagination to rise to the 

challenge of doing things differently, to put sustain-

ability and well-being before economic growth and 

bring about a more equal and fair society. 

  — 

Page 98



 —        

DEfRA  Department for Environment, Food 

and Rural Affairs

DFLE   Disability Free Life Expectancy

GCSE   General Certificate of Secondary 

Education

GHQ   General Health Questionnaire

MIHL Minimum Income for Healthy Living

NHS   National Health Service

NS-SEC  National Statistics Socio-economic 

Classification

ONS   Office for National Statistics

List of abbreviations 

Page 99



1   Frontier Economics (2009) Overall costs 

of health inequalities. Submission to the 

Marmot Review. www.ucl.ac.uk/gheg/

marmotreview/Documents; Suhrcke M 

(2009) The economic benefits of reducing 

health inequalities in England Submission 

to the Marmot Review. www.ucl.ac.uk/

gheg/marmotreview/Documents

3   Commission on Social Determinants 

of Health (2008) CSDH Final Report: 

Closing the gap in a generation: Health 

equity through action on the social 

determinants of health. Geneva: World 

Health Organization.

3   Commission on Social Determinants 

of Health (2008) CSDH Final Report: 

Closing the gap in a generation: Health 

equity through action on the social 

determinants of health. Geneva: World 

Health Organization.

4   Commission on Social Determinants 

of Health (2008) CSDH Final Report: 

Closing the gap in a generation: Health 

equity through action on the social 

determinants of health. Geneva: World 

Health Organization; p.43.

5   Office for National Statistics (2009) Health 

expectancy at birth. http://www.statistics.

gov.uk/StatBase/Product.asp?vlnk=12964

6   Siegler V, Langford A and Johnson B 

(2008) Regional differences in male 

mortality inequalities using the National 

Statistics Socio-economic Classification, 

England and Wales, 2001-03. http://www.

statistics.gov.uk/downloads/theme_health/

HSQ40-winter-2008.pdf

7   Frontier Economics (2009) Overall costs 

of health inequalities. Submission to the 

Marmot Review. www.ucl.ac.uk/gheg/

marmotreview/Documents; Suhrcke M 

(2009) The economic benefits of reducing 

health inequalities in England Submission 

to the Marmot Review. www.ucl.ac.uk/

gheg/marmotreview/Documents

8   Frontier Economics (2009) Overall costs 

of health inequalities. Submission to the 

Marmot Review. www.ucl.ac.uk/gheg/

marmotreview/Documents.

9   Frontier Economics (2009) Overall costs 

of health inequalities. Submission to the 

Marmot Review. www.ucl.ac.uk/gheg/

marmotreview/Documents. 

10  Morris S (2009) Private communication. 

11   McPherson K and Brown M (2009) Social 

class and obesity - effects on disease and 

health service treatment costs. Submission 

to the Marmot Review. www.ucl.ac.uk/

gheg/marmotreview/Documents

12    Stiglitz J, Sen A, Fitoussi J (2009) Report 

of the Commission on the Measurement 

of Economic Performance and Social 

Progress, available at http://www.stiglitz-

sen-fitoussi.fr/en/index.htm

13    Sen A (1992) Inequality Reexamined. 

Oxford: Oxford University Press.

14    Unpublished statistics provided by the 

IMPACTsec Research Team, Dept of 

Epidemiology and Public Health, UCL. 

15    Waldfogel J (2004) Social mobility, life 

chances, and the early years, CASE Paper 

88, London: London School of Economics.

16    Waldfogel J (2004) Social mobility, life 

chances, and the early years, CASE Paper 

88, London: London School of Economics.

17    Feinstein L (2003) Inequality in the early 

cognitive development of British Children 

in the 1970 cohort, Economica 70: 3-97.

18    Office for National Statistics Longitudinal 

Study. http://www.ons.gov.uk/about/who-

we-are/our-services/longitudinal-study

19    Bethune A (1997) ‘Unemployment and 

mortality’ in Drever F and Whitehead 

M (Eds.) Health inequalities: Decennial 

supplement, ONS Series DS no. 15. 

London: The Stationery Office: 156-167.

References

   — 

Page 100



 —        

20    Wilkinson R and Pickett K (2009) The 

Spirit Level: Why more equal societies 

almost always do better.  London: Allen 

Lane.

21    Jones F, Annan D and Shah S (2009) The 

redistribution of household income 1977 

to 2006/07. Economic & Labour Market 

Review 3 (1): 31-43. 

22    Bird D (2009) Government advisors 

demand urgent shift in public investment 

to green England’s cities. London: CABE. 

http://www.cabe.org.uk/press-releases/

public-investment-to-green-cities

23    Department for Environment, Food 

and Rural Affairs (2007) Sustainable 

development indicators in your pocket 

2007 - http://www.ltnetwork.org/SITE/

UPLOAD/DOCUMENT/defra_sustain.

pdf pp. 97.

24    The NHS Information Centre (2009) 

National Child Measurement Programme: 

England, 2008/09 school year. DH/DCSF.  

http://www.ic.nhs.uk/statistics-and-data-

collections/health-and-lifestyles/obesity/

national-child-measurement-programme-

england-2008-09-school-year

25    http://www.london.gov.uk/thelondonplan/ 

and http://www.nwregionalstrategy.com/

Page 101



Fair Society, Healthy Lives

The Marmot Review

www.ucl.ac.uk/marmotreview

Published by The Marmot Review

February 2010

© The Marmot Review

ISBN 978–0–9564870–0–1

Page 102



����������	
�������������
���������

���������������
���������

	��������������������

�����������
���������
�� ���!�"
�#�"���
��$�%�&���!���!
�
�
�
�!�

���������	����
�����
������		�������� ������ �����

�	���
��������������	���������
� �

�������������
��������	������
��������������������������������
������������

������ �����

�����������������
��� 
��	���!

"���� ������ �����

#�������������������������	������
�����$�������	��������� ������ �����

�	���
������������������	��������%���������&�
����� ����

�������$���� ����

�''��#����'�
��
!!�!��

'(� )����'�������
�*+',��-�����!����!�����
�.�

��������.����������/������������������
��������������������	�������������������
����	���������
���	�-����(��

*(� �
���������
������-�������������������������������������������

�����
������.������
���������.�����		���������� 
���������
���"�.����������'*�������		����������
�	��
�$��������	�����������������������������		�������	���.�������������������(�

,(� 0������������	����.�1$����������� ���	�����������	�
����	�2�
��������

�3�����
��������������������	�������	����������������.�
�����������
��	�������!�����
(��

4(� 0����
������������.���
����� 
�����
����������� �
���������		�����	�������.�

�����	���
	���������25��������!�����
�

6(� 0���������
��������������.����������!�����
����7		�����	�����#���������	�%� 
���
2�
���.�����.�

�������������� �������/������
�.������		�.��/�������
��
�������
���������

�#��������������!����
����!��������)��������(��0���#���������	�
%� 
���2�
���.�

� �������� 
���������!���	�1$�������(��

8(� 0���������-�����%� 
���2�
���0���������%
���9����
�������� ���25������
���
3��	�������-��������-�����!����!�����
(��0������� ������������� ���25�
�������	�1��
��(�������
�2&���������������

�.����������������	����	���		�	����
�����25��������!�����
(��!
��������	�����������	��������������!�����
���������
	�������� 
�����
��������	��������
�*+',���������$���������������������
�
#���� ���*+'*(��

�&�����������������!������

0�
���,+6:6:4�

Page 103



� *

:(� ��	�

�������������� 
�����
���	���������������!�����
��� ������������������
������

���
��		�������$�������������������	�������!�����
����
�����.������������.������
��/
�������� 
���� 
�����
������ 
������
��
�
���
�������������
��������
������
��������������(�

����''�����
��!�

*(� 1$��������3�����������������������

�� �����������.��� 
�����
����������� �
��������������������!�����
�
	��������
�*+',��������
���	�����2�
������5���
�!�������*+'*�

 �� 1��������������������	�����7		�����	�����#���������	�%� 
���2�
�����
���������
�!����
����!��������)��������.��������#���������	�
%� 
���2�
�����������

�������� 
���������!���	�1$���������

��� 1������������������
��� ����������7��������;���
��	�����7		�����	�
����#���������	�%� 
���2�
���������������������������������������
����	����	��� 
�����
���	������������		������������������!�����
�

��� �������������������������-�����%� 
���2�
���0���������%
�������
�������������������
���
������������25�����������������

��� ����������	��������������.�

��������1$��������3�����������������
.�����.�

�������������/��������������������������� ���/���.����������
<�����2�
��������

�3�����5�����������.�

����������
���
�����
�������������������
������.�

� ���������.�������.������

��
�����(��

�

�� ����!�������
!��������

'('� 0����������� �������������.��� 
�����
����������� �
��������������������
!�����
�	��������
�*+',���������
���	�����2�
������5���
�!�������*+'*(���

'(*� 0����������� ��������������������������������
�������������-�����%� 
���
2�
���0���������%
��.��������9����
�������� ��-�����!����!�����
�����25�
�����
���3��	�������-��������.�������� ����	���

����������� ���25�
�������	�1��
��(���

'(,� 0�����/�������������	���������������������������������7��������;���
�	���
�� 
�����
������-�����!����!�����
(��0��������
������������
��������	�����7		�����	�
����#���������	�%� 
���2�
��������������
�!����
����!��������	��������

��������!������������������%��	��������&������������-��
�5�������(����

�

�

�

Page 104



� ,

�

�� ���()�����
����'��
���

*('� 5���������������
���� �
����%������!���0������.��������������;��*+'+�
��������� ������������ 
��.��/�������/���
��

�������������������
���
��������	����� 
�����
����������������	���������.�%� 
���2�
�������25�
����������(��

*(*� 7��*4�������
�*+'*��-�����!����!�����
�����25������
���3��	�������-�����
���������	���
�������������	�����25��������	�1��
����	�����9����
��������
-�����%� 
���2�
���0���������%
�(��)�������������������/�������������� ��
�25��������	�1��
�������
�����	���<�
���7��� ������#���� ����	���������(���

*(,� 0����������.��/������������������	����	�%� 
���2�
����������� �
���������-�����
!����!�����
���25�!�������������3�������%� 
���2�
���1��
������������
�������%� 
���2�
���0���������%��������3���(�0�������������� ������<�����
#���������	�%� 
���2�
���.����!�����
�����25��������������(��

*(4� �������
���$����������������������.��/���������������	���%� 
���2�
���.������
-�����!����!�����
(��0�������������	��������
��������	���.����	�.��/���� ����
��
���
������������
(��������������	�������%� 
���2�
���0���������%��������
3��������/��������������������
�����������������������
��������.��� 
���
��
�����������������������������������.���������������������.�

���
.���������	��������� 
�����
�����		�.�

� �� ����	�

�.����%!0��
���������,'���
;����*+',(��

*(6� 0������������������ �
�.��������%� 
���2�
���7��������;���
�������������
������������.�
�����������
���	�����!�����
������.��������.���
����� ��
���������� ���	����
��������� 
�����
����������� �
����������	��������������!�����
��
���������
��� ����.���������������
��������������
��������������.�

� �����
�
���	����,'���;����*+',(���

*� +�
��
!!�!�

,�����&�������!�
����������� ���!�"
�#�"���
��

,('� )����'�������
�*+',��-�����!����!�����
�.�

��������.����������/���������������
�����������������������	�������������������
����	���������
���	�-����(��

,(*� ����������������
������.�

 ������	������� 
���.�

� ��������
�����������������
=������	���-�������� ������ ����������������>������?������(�

,(,� �
���������
������-���������������������������������������

�����
������.������
���������.�����		���������� 
���������
������.���������
�����������
���
�������������������(��0��������������'*�������		����������
�	���$��������	�������
������		��������	�����������������	���.����(��-������������������.����������	���
�������	�	���.�����	���.���������������	��������� ��.�������� �������.�����
�	��
�$�������(�

Page 105



� 4

,(4� 0������.�
�����������
��.�

�	�����������������������������������������	���-��������
����!����%����������%
���������	�����������<�����2�
��������

�3�����5������(�
0��������������.�

� �� �����������<�����5�������������������������*+'*(���

,(6� ��������������������������
������.�

� ������	�

�.��
������������������
����	�
������������	������.�

� �������
��������!�����
����.�
�����������
�(��0����.�

�
���������	��������.���/�

������
������@���/
��������
����
�	����
��@���/
����
�����������������
��������������	���
����������������� 
������		�������
��
���������������@��������.�������������������	��
���������������
�(���

,(8� %������������������.�
�����������
��.�

� ��9���������������������
�%� 
���
2�
���7��������)���.��/��
����������
��5���
�!�������25�7��������
)���.��/���������	�����������.��/����!��
����A��2�
���7�������(��

,(:� -�����!����!�����
�
����������������������������
��(��0�����.����������������
!�����
�������������������������	������(��-�����!����!�����
��������
���������.���
�����	
��������������������������������������.��������/
�������� 
���� 
���
��
������ 
���(��0���!�����
�.�

������� ������������������������������
������
������.�

� ������	���������
���	�-�����������

�������
���������������	�
��	
�����(��0����.�

� ��
����������������������������.��/����.������
��
������
�������� ��������(���

,(B� 0������������	����.�1$����������� �������	�
���	���2�
��������

�3���������
�
������������������������������������	�������	��������.�
�����������
��	�������
!�����
(��

,(C� 1
��������� ����.�

�.��������$��������������.�
�����������
�� ���

•� 2�������������� ������������������ ���	�����	� ��������D3����!�����
E�

•� #���
��������.������������������.�
�������������
���������
��
�
���
�
 ���
�������.������� �����(���

•� 3��
������� 
�����
��������������� �
�������
������	�������.�����.��/	�����
.����������!�����
�����
��.�������(���
�������
����������������		�����������
����
�.��/����� ��������
������(��

•� )���������������� ��������������9�����.��/����

•� #���
��������.�.����	�
��/����������������	�����������������!�����
����
.������������
��

����������.�����

•� 1����������
�������������

�������������������������� ����

,('+� 0��������������!�����
����.�
�����������
�������.�����������2�
������5���
�
!�������*+'*�.�

��

�� %�������������������� ����	�����������	����	����� ����	��� 
�����
���
	������������		����	�������	���������25(�

 �� !��������� ����	���.� ��������������������.�������.��� 
�����
���
������(��0����������� �
�������	�.�����.�

������������������
���	�-������(�(�

Page 106



� 6

%� 
���2�
���1��
����!
����
�!�������������F��������25�!�������������
3�����2�
��������

�3�����3�����-��
�2�
���&���
������%�����������
2�
��.���(�

,(''� 0���	�

�.������������������� ��������������
���.��������.���������
���������
����������	��������2�
������5���
�!�������.�

� ������
������!�����
����
��������������.�������� 
�����
�����
���	�����!�����
���������������(��

,���!����������
�����������!���!
�
�
�
�!���� ���!�"
�#�"���
��

	
�������������
���������������

,(C� 0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
���.�

��

•� 3������������9����
��.��������5���������	�5����	���2�
���

•� 2����������� �
����	�������!�����
����.��� 
�����
���	���������

•� 3��������������
�����	�5��������!���	�7		����������������� �����������
������������������� �
������

•� 2�����
����������������������� �
������	���������	�������� 
�����
���
�����	��������#����������	�2�
��������������.�

� �� ���������������
�$����������������������������������������		�������	����������� 
�����
���
�������� �
��������������������!�����
(���

•� 3��������������� ����	�����2�
��������

�3����� ����

•� 2�������������������
�����������������
����	�����
��
�����
�����
.���������!�����
�.�

���������� 
���(�

���
���������-���
��!��

0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
���������������
������ 
�����
���������������
 
��
.�

�������������
�����������
���	�����!�����
�������

���������	�����-�����

Page 107



� 8

%� 
���2�
���;���
(�

�

0����.�

� ��������/���������������	�

�.���� ��������	��������(�

•� !����������������������������������	��� 
�����
������������

•� 2�
��������������
�����������
�����������
������

•� %� 
�����
����������������������-�����!
����
�!�������������F������

•� ��	
���������������������������� 
�����
��������� �������	�!�����
�
#����������G������!����
����!��������	��������(��

•� ����������������������������������� 
�����
�������������������������
	���-��������������� ��%� 
���2�
���1��
�����������25�!�������������
3���(���

%
���

•� %� 
���2�
���.��/	���������
�����������
������!�����
���25���������������
��		��
���	���
��� 
�����
��������
�������������

•� %� 
���2�
�������

������������	��������

%
����

5����������

��
��������� ���������.��/��	�����1$����������� �����
5����������������������������
������������������������� ���������

�����
.��/��	�����!�����
�

•� !����� �����������2�
��������

�3�����3�����!��
����A��0�����3�������
����!����%������������
���������
��
������������(�

�

�������
�������
���

�������

.'�����'����
�������"����

���
��

�������

Page 108



� :

,('+� ;��������
��������	��������������.��������� �
���������������������������$�'(����
�������.�����
�$��������������������

��������� ������������������

��������
����
�������� �
��������������� �
�����(��0�������������
�
�������������
��������������
����������������
��������������
��������������������	�������������
������������
��������������(���������������������
�� ����������������!�����
�.�

�����
�������� �
����	������� ����	�����������������(��

/�#!����&��(
�)�

,(''� �����������
���������
�����������
���	�����!�����
�	���������.��� 
�����
����������
.�

� ����
���� ����������
��������	���.������������G������������������2�
���
���5���
�!�������*+'*(��0���$������������ ���	��������#���������	�%� 
���
2�
��G5����
����5�		�.�

������������
�����.�.����	�.��/����.������.�
�����������(��0��������
�����

/��(
�)�����!!�����"���
��

,('*� 0����������������	����� 
�����
�����		����.��/�������

�#��������������!����
�
���!��������	���������

�(�(����/����.�������
��5���
�!������!��
������5����������� �������������
��� ���������������������������������������
����
������

�(�����/����.����1�������������������� ����������!����#���
����������
 �������������������	���
����������
���������
��������������������������
���
�������

�(�(����/����.����!������������������%��	����������&���������������
�������������
��
����.��/����������������
���������	������������

����������		�
��
��(�

/��(
�)�&
�������%����

,(',� 0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
��G�����
������
�����		�.�

�.��/���� ��
	��	�����
!�����
�.���������25�!�������������3�����!
����
�!�������������F���������
������������.��/�.�����25������������������������������������
�����������
�������
���������
�����������������������������������������.������-����(��

/��(
�)�&
������
�����������)�����

,('4� 0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
���.�

���� 
�����		�������.��/���������������.����
����
��
�%� 
���2�
���1��
���>��������������������������	���
��������������
������������
������������
��/�������������������������

�����������������������
��
��������� ������%� 
���2�
���7 ����������(�

,('6� �������!���	�1$���������	�%� 
���2�
���1��
��������
��9���� �������������������
���
�����.�%� 
���2�
���1��
���.�

�����
��������.�.��/������
����������
.����-�����.�

� �� ������������(���

�

�

Page 109



� B

/��(
�)�&
����������
�0���
��0������'
��������
�����!�����!��

,('8� 0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
���.�

�������������.��/�.����
��
�������
�9�������
�������������������	�����������%�
�������!�����!������������������������	���
�����������(��5��G���.�

�.��/�.������������������������
��
����������������
����������������������������
������.�

� ����������������������������������	�
����
��
������������(����������
��/��.�

� ��������������	�����������
�������.�

� ���/�����������
������������������	�����������������	�����������
����������������(��0���������������������������������������������.�����������
�����������(��-���������������������������� ���	����� 
�����
��������
�����
��������������������	��������������������.������-�����!����!�����
(�

/��(
�)�����!!�/�!��1��(!�
��0���)
�����#�����&
���"����"
�
�!��

�������������������������
���������/��������������	���������������������
�������(��2�.���������������.� �������������	�����
��������������
�����(��
7���������� ������$�
���������$�������$��������������/�

��������������(��
0���������������
������/���������2�� ���#����������	�%� 
���2�
������.��/����
����.�������	�������������������(��5����	��������G����������.��/������ ����
�����.���.����������(�(��� �������
����
���������������������(���

�

��������������!
)���

,(':� )�

�.����������������.����! ��������.����!��������-���������0�������
�����������	�����
�	����� 
�����
���.����������!�����
�����

•� 0����������7		�����	�����#���������	�%� 
���2�
����

•� )����������� �������	�����D!����
����!��������	��������E�
��������
&����������!������������������%��	��������-��
����������

•� 0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
������ �������� 
���������!���	�1$����������� ��
���� ����	�����!��������-���������0���

•� 0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
������ �������� 
��	���������.�%� 
���2�
���
�������� �
�������	�����!�����
�����������	�������� 
�����
���������������
H,+��������
����������������%� 
���2�
���7��������)���.��/��

•� 0�������7		�����	�����#���������	�%� 
���2�
�������� 
�����
�����		�.��/����
��� �������/������
�.���� ����		���� �����.������������������!�����
�
#����������G!��������)��������G
��
�����(���

•� 0������	������
����
��������������	�%2���		��������.��������#%2�

•� 0���������������

�.���������������	����
�������
��	��������7		�����	�����
#���������	�%� 
���2�
�����������.���� ���� 
�����
�����		�������������
��� �
�������
������D���/��E�����
������.��/�.��������������!
����
�!�������������
F������

Page 110



� C

,('B� 0/����������������9������������������
�� �����������!�����
��
�����������������
�����������������
������
���������C6���		(��3������������������������ ��<���
���������!��������-���������0������#���� ������!�����
�
�������G��"

����������������������������������#���������	�%� 
��G%��.�

� �� �������!�����
2

(�0���������������/����������������������������	���		�.��
�� �� ��������
�����
��� �.�����.��������� �������
��
�������#������������������!����
����
!��������	��������(���

2�����������������!�����

,('C� 0���%� 
���2�
���0���������%
��9����
�������� ��.�����25������
���3��	����
���-��������-�����!����!�����
�.���� ������� ���25��������	�1��
������
*8���;���(��0����
����� ���������D�����E��������������	���
�������������
 ������������� ������!�����
�����25�3-(���

,(*+� 0���/��������	���������$������������������������������� �������������	�
1��
������<�
��*+'*��7��� ���*+'*��#���� ���*+'*(�

,(*'� F��������������������	������������������������.��/����������������������
�%� 
���2�
���0���������%��������3���(�0�������������� ������#���������	�
%� 
���2�
�������������� ���%��������;��������
����� ��-�����!����
!�����
������������� 
���������1$��������3�����������25������
���3��	����
���-�����3���(��

,(**� �����
�2&��������������		�����	�����������!�����
�������

�.��������
����������
������������	�����#���������	�%� 
���2�
��(��2�.���������':���;������
#����������	�2�
������������������		�.���������������������25�%�������
5���������,'���;����*+',�.�

�����������������(��)���������	�����������
�����������������������������������.����(�

,(*,� 0���#����������	�2�
���.�

�������/���	�������	�����
������������25�
�$�������������
�������� 
�����
����$���������� �������*+''G'*(��0�������
.�
�������.��	���-����(��<����-.
����!17��25��3-�.�

� �����������
�
.��/������������
��������������.�������(��0����.�

�	�������� �����	����������
	�������� 
�����
��������	���-�����!����!�����
�	����*+',G'4(���

,(*4� ��������	�����	����������������	����	��������� �
���������-�����!����!�����
�.�

� ��
��.������������������.�

� �������(���������:+����������������-�����
0�������2�����
���25�0������-�����������/������%����������)���������
0������-�����!���������2�
������������
������
�����������������������������(��
7��B���;������!��������-���������0������������������ ����	��������(��0���
���������� �������������	���������
������������.��������%�����������>����
 �������������.����������������������$�������(��5�$�
���
��������������
��������������������	�������!�����
���������

���������������
������ ���(��0����
����
���
��	�����
�$���������/���������
��������������������	�������������	�������
��.����������������������(��

,(*6� ���.��/�����������������������		��������������������������25� �����

�,'���
;����*+',(��#���������������/�����
��������"
�����������������(��!�������
�������������������
�
�������	��������9�������	���		�������������	��� 
�����

Page 111



� '+

������
���������������	������������(��0����� �������/������
�������� ������,('B��
.��
�������	������������������������	�����.�����!�����
���
���������������(�

3� "���������"��!
�����
��!�

34�� "��!����
���������)�)�'�����

4('('� !��������������������������������������.��/����������������%� 
���2�
���
0���������%��������3���(�����	��!���������������1����������
�����
 ������ ��������������5��������2�
��������������������	����������
���������
�������(�0�����
��.�

���.� ��	�����������
�����9����
��.����-�����!����!�����
A��
����������������������
����������������������������	�-�����!����!�����
����
	�

���������(�

4('(*� ��������������!���������������1����������
��������������������������
	�

�.���������

•� 1���������25�-������� 
�����
������%!0���		������	������ ���������� 
���
��
���������������������

•� %�����������������������	����25�-������� 
�����
������%!0���		����	��� �/�
���.����������� 
�����
����������������	�������	��� 
�����
������-�����

•� 1�����������		������
���������������.����-�����!����!�����
���		�����
��� ����� ���������
���	�������������������������������
��������������

��
����������

•� 1�����������		������
���������������.������������/�����/���
��������
����������
����������������������������������(�(�!
����
�!�������������
F��������25��������	�1��
����2�
���%������������������&�����
�#��������
�	�%� 
���2�
�����25�!�������������3�������%� 
���2�
���1��
������
���������/�������������������.����%� 
���2�
�����������������
�����������
����	�������	�%� 
���2�
������-�����

•� 1		������
���������������.����/���������������������-�����2�
���
1��������(�(�-�����0�������2�����
��0������-�����%����������)���������
0������-�����!���������2�
�������25�)���������0������=�
������
!���������I�)����5���������������������!����������������������/���������
����������.����%� 
���2�
�����������������
���������������	�������	�%� 
���
2�
������-�����

34�� �5��
�#�����	
���!
�#�6�"���!
�������.���)���
���

4(*('� �25������
���3��	�������-�����
����.�����25�!
����
���?��/
�����
�/�	��
��������������� �����%���
��0���������%�
������������������������	���
�	�%!0��������������������������
������-�����!����!�����
(��0������
�������	�����
.����%� 
���1������#�����������������
��������������(��

34*� "���
�����
�
�!�����"
�#���
��
�
�!�

4(,('� 0�������	����	��� 
�����
����������!�����
�	����������������������
�������	�����
!����%���������(��1������������%� 
���2�
�����		�.��/�.������!�����
���
���������
�/��.
�������������%� 
���2�
���0���������%
�(��

�

Page 112



� ''

343� ��!����!��������������'���#��

4(4('� �
����.������������	����	��������� �
������	���������25�������.�

� ��������	������
�� 
�����
�������(��0����.�

� �� ����������������$����������	������������
�����
��������������		�������������������������$�'(�3������������
���������� ���25�
-��������*+'+G''��$�����������������#����������	�2�
������������ ��-�����
!����!�����
������.��
�����������������H,+�����H,8��������(��)���1��
�����
�.��
������	������.��H4+��������(��0���������������� 
�����������(�(�
5��		��
��H44��;���������H6:��-�������
�H:,��3
�/���
�H''*(��0���-�����	������
��	
�������������
��$������������������������"�		������	�
�.��$���������(��0���
#����������	�2�
������������������������������������������	������	�������
	����
�	��������� 
�����
�������(��0����������� ������ 
�������������
�����
��������	�������
���	�����*+',G'4��� 
�����
�����������#���� ���*+'*(��

0���#����������	�2�
����������������������������
���$������������ 
�����
���
�$�������������*+''G'*������������	�<���(�0���������� ��.�
���������.�

�
�����	����������������������
��������������������*+''G'*(���������$�����������
������������.��
����� �	������������ ��������.����-�����!����!�����
(��0���
�.�

���
��	����������	�����������
��
�����������������
�	�
�
�����	�������!�����
����
�/�������������.��������� �
�����(��

����������������� ������������

����������������������������������������������
���������	������	����	����������������������� �
���������������	��������
�
*+',(��0��������� ���������������������$�����������	������� 
�����
��������
.�

� �����������������

�� ������#����������	�2�
��� ������	��������
������
�����������(���

347�  �)���.'��
���
��!0�8���!!����.����'��
�������"����.��

4(6('� 0��������������������2&�.��/����������������%� 
���2�
���0���������3����
������������.�����.�

�����������
��
���������	���������	��(������������������
��� ���������������.����������-��
�5��������.��/����������	���*+'*G',(��

349� �
!(�+���)�'����

4(8('� 0�������������	��������/�����������.������������	���������
�����.����������
����������������������	�����%� 
���2�
���0���������3���(��&��/�����
��������� �����������!�����
�����25������
���3��	�������-����(���

7� "����!
��!�

6('� 0�����.�
�����������
��	�������!�����
������
������.�

� ����������������
�$���������������������� ��������/
��������
���������������� ����������<�����
5�������������������������*+'*����������
��������
����������������������!����
%����������%
�(���

6(*� 0�������	����	��� 
�����
����������� �
���������		��������������.�

���
����
�����
�������.���
�(�

6(,� 0������������	�����7		�����	�����#���������	�%� 
���2�
��������� �������/��
����
�.�����������
��
����.��/��������������
��/�����

�#����������G!����
����
!��������	���������.�

�������� ����������
�������	�/����� 
�����
������������

Page 113



� '*

 ���
�������������������	���
������.�

� �����������������
���������.��/�����	�
����.��
��!�����
(����

6(4� ���
�����������	�����-�����%� 
���2�
���0���������%
����� ����������������
9����
�� ������!�����
�����25������
���3��	�������-����(��)������������
�
��	�����������2&������������	������������

�.����(��

6(6� 0����������������	���-�����!����!�����
���� ����� 
�����
���������������������
.��/����.����
��
�����
�������������������������������������
������������
�������������
����
�	�(��%��������.�

� ���������������������������.����������������
��
�������	������������������������
��������
�����(�

9� ����''�����
��!�

1$��������3�����������������������

�� �����������.��� 
�����
����������� �
��������������������!�����
�	��������
�
*+',��������
���	�����2�
������5���
�!�������*+'*(���

 �� 1��������������������	�����7		�����	�����#���������	�%� 
���2�
�������
�������
�!����
����!��������	��������.����#���������	�%� 
���2�
���
��������

�������� 
���������!���	�1$���������

��� 1������������������
��� ����������7��������;���
��	�����7		�����	�����#��������
�	�%� 
���2�
�������������������������������������������	����	��� 
�����
���
	������������		���������������������!�����
�

��� �������������������������-�����%� 
���2�
���0���������%
��������������
������������
���
������������25����������������(��

��� ����������	��������������.�

� ���������1$��������3�����������������.�����
.�

���������/��������������������������� ���/���.����������<�����2�
������
��

�3�����5�����������.�

����������
��������
�������������������
������
.�

� �����	���

�����.�������.������
��
�����(��

:� ���()��������'���!���

:('� %� 
���2�
������-��
�F�����������#���� ���*+''��...(��(���(�/G�� 
���������

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

���������������������������������������� ����
'
�0��� �/�����������������
���������������������������
 
��	�������������������������	������������	�	����
�����	�

�.�������������	�������
������������(�����������
�������
����������������
������������������������
�$�����������	������
���	����������������� 
������.��/�(��&���������������������� �/�����������������
����
�� ���� ��������������������������(���

Page 114



� ',

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

8�����
�����

���
���������-���
��!�

'�� !��������������	�%� 
���2�
������������

0���	�

�.��������������� ������#����������	�2�
��(�!�������������
�������� �
���������
�����

;����������������

•� !���������������$�
���
����������������
��������������������������	���
��$�

���������������	�������������������������������	�����F%���������
�����$�
���
�����������������������������������

•� -��
������������
�������
����.������
���������������������������� ��/��
���������������

•� 1���������25����������������������������� 
�����
�������������������

•� �����
�!��
��;����������%��������

•� �25�2�
���!���/�����������
�

#���������������������

•� 0� ����������
�������/����������������������

•� �
����
�������������������������

•� %� 
�����
������������	������
������������������
������6"'C�����
������
2�
����!��
��%��������6"'C�������������
�����������

��� 
�����
���
���������	������
������������������
���

•� �������������������/
��� �����������������������
�	����
�����.������
������������������

Page 115



� '4

•� -��

�"
������������������������

•� ����������
���
���	�������
����������������
��
�����
�����

•� %� 
�������
���
������������

•� #���
��� 
�����
������������

•� ��������
���9���������������

•� %���
�����
���
������������������������������������ �������	�����

•� 3�������
����
�	����
������������������������������
���������
�����������

•� -��
���������������.��/�
�����
���

•� 5����������������.���������

���������
�������	�/����� 
�����
���	������
����25���
������������������������������������������������
����������

•� -��
�����������������������$������������������
���	������
�����
�����

•� %� 
�����
�����������	������������	������������	��������
�����
�����������������������

•� %� 
�����
�����������	�
��
�����������������/
������
��$�
������

•� -��
������������������������� 
�����
�����������	������������
����/��

�

�

-��
������������������������� 
�����
�����������	������������
����/�(�

� ���	�
	�

������������������������������ �
�������� 
�����
���.�

�
����/���
������������.�����������������G�������������������"����������	
�����������
.��/����.������ 
����������������������������������������� ����������(��

*�� 2�
���%����������

-�����!����!�����
���������������������������
���������
��
����������/��
�����������
����������
������������������
��
�����
����(��0���2�
������
5���
�!�������*+'*��$���������������������������������
����������
������
��������������
����	�����
��
�����
�����	������������������	������
����
��
���������������� ��/�����	�

���
���� 
�����
���	������������������
�������������������������������
��	���	��������.�������������
����������������
�� �����������
���������-����(���
��������������������/������-��
�
&���
������)���������
��"�������������������������	����������������	����

��
��� 
��������������������������.�������������-��
�2�
���&���
������
%���������������� ����� 
�����(��0����.�

�	��������������
���������������
���������������������������
�����������������(��0������������#���������	�
%� 
���2�
������������������/�������.�

� ������������!��������������������

���������
���#��������	���������25�!�������������3���(��

,�� %� 
���2�
����������������������-�����!
����
�!�������������F������

� 0��������������������.�

������������
�����������
�����	��������������������
���������������������� �
�������	�����!!FA�(��0����.�

� ��������/������������
;����������	�>������������.��������!
����
�!�������������F������ ����
��������
����������������D!����7		��E(�7������� 
�����
�����������������

Page 116



� '6

!!FA�����-��������
�/�
�����.�����������������������������	�������������
����(�
������".�������������
�������������� 9�������������������������(��

4�� ��	
�������������� 
�����
��������� �������	�!�����
�#����������G������!����
�
���!��������	���������

>�����������.������������.����������!�����
������������������	����������
��		G������������������	
�������������������

������.��������/�����
�����
�������� ��������
����(�(�
���������
��������������������������������������
�����
 �����������������"��������	���
����������
��������������������

��������
�������������

������	���	���������������

�������	�������������������
������

������������������
�������������������������������.���������� 
��(�

6�� ����������������������������������� 
�����
�������������������������	���
-��������������� �������25�!�������������3�������%� 
���2�
���1��
����

0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
���.�

������	���
���
������������������ 
�����
���
���������������������������
��������
��.�����.������������
���������(�0�����
���
�������
����A�����������������6���������������������������������
����������� ���������������(��0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
���.�

�����������

�����
�����������������25�!�������������3�����������������������2�
������
��

�3�����3���(��0���#���������	�%� 
���2�
���.�

�
��� �������������
�����������������������������������
����������.��������������!
����
�
!�������������F���������.����
��
��
�������(��

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 24 October 2012 

Subject:  Better Lives Explained – Leeds draft Local Account of Adult Social Care 
2012/13 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Introduction  

1. In 2011 the Government announced its intention to replace the Care Quality 
Commission’s annual assessment of Adult Social Care from 2011/12 onwards – with 
local authorities becoming required to publish a local account of outcomes in social care 
and priorities for quality.  

 
2. As part of learning process to prepare for the mandatory requirement to produce a Local 

Account of its Adult Social Care from 2012/13 onwards,  Leeds City Council’s first Local 
Account for the citizens of Leeds was presented to Executive Board in February 2012.  
This provided a user friendly description of the Council’s social care activities, alongside  
the quality of adult social care services.  It also provided an explanation of the Council’s 
progress in achieving its objectives and outlined the major plans for Adult Social Care. 

 
3. This report offers members of the Executive Board a highlighted summary of the main 

areas of achievement of Adult Social Care and indicates areas of service identified 
within the Leeds Local Account as requiring further development to sustain or improve 
performance. 

 
Background information 
 
4. In 2011 the Government announced its intention to replace the Care Quality 

Commission’s annual assessment of Adult Social Care from 2011/12 onwards – with 
local authorities becoming required to publish a local account of outcomes in social care 
and priorities for quality. 

 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  247 4707 

Agenda Item 9

Page 119



 

 

5. Previously, until the end of 2009/10, the performance of each Council with Adult Social 
Care responsibilities was annually assessed by the Care Quality Commission.  The final 
assessment of Adult Social Care in Leeds was published by the Care Quality 
Commission on the 25 November 2010 and considered by the Executive Board on 8 
December 2010. 

 
6. The requirement for Local Authorities to produce a Local Account has been established 

by Central Government policy and has replaced the Care Quality Commission’s annual 
performance assessment of Adult Social Care. 

 
7. Local accounts are intended to be self-assessed and published by Councils. There is  no 

National Government role in assurance and there has been no specific guidance 
produced to cover the content of a local account. Local Accounts are expected to 
provide a report of the quality and outcome priorities which the council has agreed, in 
consultation with its partners, and the progress it has made in achieving them during the 
past year.  

 
Leeds’ Local Account of Adult Social Care 2012/13 
 
8. A draft of Leeds City Council’s local account of Adult Social Care 2012/13 – Better Lives 

Explained – is appended to this report for the Scrutiny Board’s consideration and 
comment.  It is intended to formally launch the finalised 2012/13 Local Account at the 
‘Better Lives’ event scheduled for 14 December 2012. 

 
9. The current draft has been co-produced with the support of a working group of service 

users and carers groups, with  Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) having also 
provided input into the current draft. 

 
10. At its meeting in February 2012, Executive Board resolved that the areas for 

improvement, as set out within the previous Local Account be referred to the Scrutiny 
Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) for oversight of performance.  
Considering the draft 2012/13 Local Account provides members of the Scrutiny Board 
with an opportunity to review performance, while reflecting on future plans. 

 
Recommendations 
 
11. The Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

a. Note and, where appropriate, comment on the content of ‘Better Lives Explained’ – 
Leeds draft Local Account of Adult Social Care 2012/13; 

b. Identify any specific areas that require further and/or more detailed scrutiny; and,  
c. Consider how and when the Board should consider progress against the plans 

identified in Leeds draft Local Account of Adult Social Care 2012/13. 
 
Background documents1  
 
12. None. 
  

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 
 

Page 120



Better Lives Explained
Our local account of
Adult Social Care 2012/13

October 2012

Page 121



Page 122



Contents

Introduction

Foreword: Sandie Keene

‘Making it Real’ Service Expert Advisory Group

Better Lives for Leeds  citizens - what’s the offer?

Better Lives through integrated services

Better Lives through housing, care and support

Better Lives through enterprise

Who are we helping now, and how will this change?

Better Lives with less money

Are lives getting better? Having the information I need,
when I need it

Are lives getting better? Keeping our friends and family
and having active and supporting communities

Are lives getting better? My support, my care

Are lives getting better? Feeling in control and safe

Are lives getting better? Personal budget - my money

Better Lives - measuring our performance

Abuse of vulnerable adults

Where can I get information and advice?

Case studies

 Susie’s story

 Albert’s story
 
 Margaret’s story
 
 Joan’s story

 Paul’s story

 Doris B’s story

 Ryan’s story

Page number

1

2

3

4

6

11

18

21

23

25

27

29

31

33

35

37

39

8

9

10

13

14

15

18
Page 123



1

Introduction

Welcome to the second ‘Local Account’ of Adult Social Care in Leeds.  

Every Leeds citizen has the right to know how the council provides care, support and protection for 

over the past year and on our priorities for improvement and development over the coming year.

This booklet has been produced by people with social care needs; carers of people who need care 

to build on and which forms a clear foundation for future developments in the city.

With permission, we have included the real-life stories of some Leeds residents whose lives have 
been have been touched by adult social care and who, as a result, have been helped to stay 
independent, have been protected from harm, or have taken control over their care and support 
services. For me, these accounts are compelling evidence that social care services in Leeds are 

we deliver matches the unique circumstances of the individual.

I am grateful to Leeds Involving People for nominating the ‘Making it Real’ Service Expert Advisory 
Group; to the group for their hard work in editing the Local Account, and to the many service users 
and carers who contributed to the contents of the report. In future years we will build upon this 
approach and further extend the opportunities for people and groups to tell it how it really is.

Cllr Lucinda Yeadon
Executive Board Member, Adult Social Care

Page 124



2

We want Leeds to be the best city in the UK:  one which offers it citizens the best support in 
maintaining their health and wellbeing. Over the last year we have started to introduce new 
measures that will help local people with care and support needs enjoy better lives than before. 
The Council has been working with a broad range of organisations to ensure that there are wider 
care and support choices available and better ways for people to gain access to them. Our new 
plans are bearing fruit as innovative services emerge.

New legislation and recently published national policy proposals have endorsed our direction of 
travel. Our focus will remain on ensuring that people with social care needs can access services 
earlier; and that care and support help reconnect people at risk of isolation back with their 
communities and delay the need for institutional care.

In addition to many improvements, this report shows a number of areas where we still have much 
to do to meet citizens’ rightful expectations of their care and support. We are addressing these and 
expect that in future years our efforts will result in all our citizens leading better lives.

During the next 12 months, our priorities for delivering better lives will focus on:

Better lives through integrated services
This will be done through delivering the new city-wide Health and Wellbeing strategy, through 
which we will provide easier access to joined-up health and social care services, which will 
recognise the whole person, not a medical condition or a care and support need.

People with social care needs will receive co-ordinated, effective, personalised support from a 
range of agencies in the health, social care, independent and third sectors, all working together.  
These same services will, where possible, help people with poor physical or mental health to learn 
or re-learn the skills they need for independent daily living. 

Better lives through housing care and support
We will do this by extending the use of personal budgets, which are being used successfully by 
a growing number of people who are improving their own lives through taking control of their 
housing, care and support needs.  

We will improve the range of daytime activities for people with eligible needs, providing them with 
the day-to-day support they need to stay living at home, or close to home, for longer.

People whose circumstances make them vulnerable in living 
safely and independently will be given the safeguarding and 
support they need to stay in control of their lives. 

Better lives through enterprise

matched and directed towards those with the greatest 
need.  Existing and new kinds of enterprise will be 
developed in the Leeds care market which will provide a 
variety of services that are geared to respond to people 
with all levels of support and care need. 

the city will have the health and social care infrastructure 
that will allow us to meet and overcome them. We 
understand what we need to do and are well on the road 

value for money and delivering the best social care and 
support.

Sandie Keene
Director of Adult Social Services

Foreword

Page 125



3

We are some of the people of Leeds who need care and support from others to live our 
lives. We want better lives and we want to have control of our own services. There is a 
quiet revolution taking place here, and many might say “about time too”. The council is 
committed to recognise our role in planning and assessing our social care. During the last 
12 months it has made public this promise to its citizens through signing up to the ‘Making 
it Real’ principles, involving us in judging, ‘what’s working’, ‘what’s not working’ and ‘what’s 
to be done about it’. The Local Account forms part of this commitment. We are partners in its 
contents, producing together what you see here. 

working with us to lead the delivery of better social care giving us greater choice and control 
over our own services. 

Joy Fisher, Paul Landey, Sharon Sears, Amijit Singh, Ken Watson

We are some of the 39,900 people who receive social care and support in Leeds and have 
contributed to the Local Account because we want to provide a real picture of what social 
care is really like in the city. 

Margaret Barnett
Alan Barnett
Mafooz Begum
Anne Bolderson
Anita Broadbent
Neil Broom
Jean Cowling
Marion Crossley
Martin Crossley
Grace Dickenson
Pam Green
Joy Fisher
Gladys Hartley
Rita Heslop
Fay Hooper
Max Hooper
Nargis Hussain
Linda Kirkby

Roobena Khartoun
Paul Landey
Molly Letsford
Tahira Latin
Anita Meakin
Alia Nessa
Donovan Parker
Mavis Pope
Hilda Rushworth
Christine Richardson
Florence Roberts
Diana Sales
Felicity Savage
Elsie Scales
Sharon Sears
Judith Simms
Margaret Verity
Dee Thorne

Amijit Singh Uppal
Ken Watson
Val Watson
Hazel Woodcock
Geoff Yeadon
Linda Yu
Aspergers Carers Support 
Group
Cross Gates Carers
‘Making it Real’ Service 
Expert Advisory Group
Himmat Asian Carers Group
Koshish Asian Carers Group
Morley Town Hall Carers 
Group
Yeadon Carers
Leeds LINk Steering Group
Wetherby Carers

‘Making it Real’ Service Expert Advisory Group

Page 126



4

What is Care & Support?

Many people need social care or support at some point in their lives, and some people need 
social care throughout their lives. These may be frail older people or learning, sensory 
or physically disabled people. They may have mental health problems, or be substance 
misusers or have another social care need altogether. Many people get some or all their 
support from their friends and families. At times these families and friends may also need 
help to enable them to keep on providing care and they too will be looking for social care to 
meet this need. Help can take many forms and support is tailored to meet the needs of each 
individual. However, services that people with social care needs often use include luncheon 
clubs, supportive equipment, home care, personal assistants or care homes.

The council work with health agencies, community groups, voluntary organisations and 
business partners to ensure that everyone in Leeds can access local adult social care services 
which meet their needs in ways which suit their lifestyles. Some adult social care services are 
managed directly by the council but most are provided by other organisations on behalf of 
the council.

record of local people purchasing their social care, it is likely that the number is growing. 

Did you know?

Last year around 15,100 people per week with 
mental health conditions, learning disabilities or 
with physical or sensory impairments received 
services from luncheon clubs, neighbourhood 
networks and voluntary groups. The Council 
provides more support per head of 
population for voluntary and community 
groups than any other city in the country.

There are around 39,900 people 
over 65 in Leeds with some level 
of social care need. Of these 22,100 
are estimated to be in need of some 
formal care services with the 
remainder supported through friends 
and family.

Better Lives for Leeds’ citizens – what’s the offer?

A new Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
for our city

The Council and its key partners are 
committed to a new Joint Health and Well 
Being Strategy. 

Under the leadership of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, Leeds will become a 
healthy and caring city for all ages. We 
will work together to ensure that:

people live longer and have healthier 
lives 
people live full, active and independent 
lives 
people enjoy the best possible quality of 
life 
people are involved in decisions made 
about them 
people live in healthy and sustainable 
communities 

Page 127



5

We want to make Leeds a place where people can be supported to have better lives 
than they have now.

Over the next three years we intend to achieve this through a mixture of enterprise and 
integration, where the council join up with health and other service providers to create an 

We are in the middle of a major programme of changing the way that local services are 
delivered. This is creating and encouraging new options for people with social care needs. 
Many of these are emerging from local communities getting together to support neighbours 
and friends. 

Our actions will move public funding away from directly-provided services and towards 
individuals who will be able to pay for the care they want. In future, people with social care 
needs will be empowered, through their use of personal budgets, to be in control, to have 
choice and to be safe. 

Underlying our vision are the nationally-accepted priorities for social care in the UK, which 
are:

Enhancing the quality of life for people with care and support needs
Delaying and reducing the need for care and support
Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and support
Safeguarding adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable and protecting them 
from avoidable harm.

Our vision is in tune with the recently published draft Care and Support Bill and the national 
government white paper Caring for Our Future (2012) which outlines the coalition’s proposals 
for the future of social care. 

Page 128



6

What are our plans for making lives better? 

Council social care staff are working more closely with doctors and nurses to provide new 
joined up services which will improve the care and support available to people with social 
care needs:

During 2011/12, the council introduced a new reablement service across the city. This
 provides short, intensive periods of support, designed to help people return to independence 

as quickly as is safe and practical. 563 people received this service over the year. 
Reablement will help people to recover their skills after an accident or illness and will reduce 

size of this service so that it can support three or four times this number of people.
The council and health partners are increasing the availability of new ‘assistive technology’ 
which provides support and extra security to disabled or older people who are at risk when 
on their own at home. The Telecare Service can install sensors on ceilings, doors and 
walls, or provides devices that may be worn by the service user on a belt or a pendant. 

wandering alerts. For people who have become forgetful, there are also medication 
dispensers. If a Telecare sensor is activated staff at the council’s 24-hour response centre, 
will make contact with the person to check on his or her safety. 
Joint work is ongoing between the council and health partners to develop new joint short 
term residential services which will help people recover after hospital treatment or prevent 
hospital admission. These will become operational by December 2012. 
Adult social care and health partners are working to develop a One Stop Shop for assistive 
technology in Leeds which will be located at Clarence Dock.
Newly established integrated front line community health and social care teams are 

better service to people with long term health conditions. These integrated teams will be 

Health and social care staff are developing ways to share information where they have the 
permission of the individuals and when it is safe and appropriate to do so. This will allow 

early diagnosis and treatment.

Better Lives through integrated services

Why are we joining up social care and health services?

We’re doing this so that people with health and social care needs can have their treatment, 
care and support combined in a single integrated package, which they will be able to control. 
This will provide more effective coordination of services and give a better experience of 
support.

Organisational changes are taking place in Leeds (and across the country) following the 
implementation of the new Health and Social Care Act 2012. Implementation of new 
legislation has led to:

The establishment of three clinical commissioning groups in the city. These will be 
responsible for designing local health services and will do this by commissioning or buying 
local health and care services. Clinical commissioning groups will work with patients, 
health care professionals, in partnership with local communities and local authorities. 
A new Health and Wellbeing Board has already been established in shadow form before 
assuming its statutory functions in 2013. This group of Councillors and senior council and 
health executives will provide leadership of the development of services across the city.
Responsibility for public health services will transfer from the NHS to local government by 
March 2013.

Page 129



7

Can integrated health and social care teams really make a difference to patient care 
and experience?

We all know how frustrating it is for patients who are seen by lots of different healthcare 

themselves duplicating work. With all the changes to the way healthcare is provided, we asked 
the people on the frontline if integrated health and social care is really the answer to making the 
process much more seamless for everyone involved.   

Isabel Vickers, Practice Matron from Robin Lane Medical Centre, received a call about a patient 
from a separate practice, Mrs Jones*, who was extremely distressed about her husband’s care. 

Mr Jones is registered at Robin Lane Medical Centre but his wife was becoming increasingly 
stressed with the care that was being provided for her husband, so much so that it was affecting 
her blood pressure. Mr Jones suffers with many long-term conditions including severe leg ulcers. 
With the current system, there was no support in place to ease the pressure from Mrs Jones 
which was a direct result of the demands that she was facing from caring for her elderly, frail 
husband. 

Mr Jones regularly attended the Leeds Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust every few weeks 
to see his consultant in relation to his leg ulcers which had been getting severely worse. This 
meant that he needed to change his prescriptions and medication regularly, which in turn meant 
that the district nurses didn’t have the right dressings for his ulcers when they visited him. 

All these changes were adding to both the Jones’ stress levels in addition to the various health 
professionals who were going in and out of their home without notice on most days.  

There were obvious breakdowns in communication between the hospital, district nursing teams, 
the medical centre and the pharmacy. This fragmented care meant that Mrs Jones was becoming 
increasingly distressed and wasn’t able to have any time to herself or plan her days. 

When Isabel heard about these concerns, she contacted social services and in partnership, they 
developed a sustainable care plan that was suitable for both Mr and Mrs Jones. By working 
jointly, they were able to put in place a ‘sitting service’ to give Mrs Jones some time to herself a 
couple of times a week. In addition, an overnight/ respite plan was implemented for one to two 
weeks, between three to four times a year, depending on what they found most suitable. This 
enabled Mrs Jones to have some time to herself and even plan a well-deserved holiday.  

How has this made a difference?

 Mrs Jones now feels less stressed and more importantly, her blood pressure has also settled. 
She also has a bit more time for herself! 

 Mr Jones also feels more reassured and less of a burden on his wife. He was feeling guilty 
seeing his wife upset, knowing that he wasn’t able to offer her much support. 

were reduced as Mr Jones is now getting better care overall, meaning less delay in the wound 
healing process.

* The couple’s name has been changed to protect their privacy.

Page 130



8

Susie is a very unusual young 
woman. Like a lot of people her age 

she likes makeup, music and handbags - 
and she wouldn’t be without her mobile 

therapist and has a BTEC National Diploma 
in Business Administration and Law.

Unlike most people her age Susie has 
coped for the past 14 years with a brain 
tumour. Diagnosed at age 10, Susie is no 
stranger to hospitals and the SkILs team 
became involved after a fall and a bump 
to the head left her with poor mobility and 
a very worried mum. As Susie says, ‘My 
mum wasn’t happy about leaving me on a 
morning.’

Kathy and Elaine from the team helped 

like using the oven and showering. She also 
has various pieces of equipment such as a 
falls bracelet, perching stool, pills dispenser 
and even a talking jug!

The teamwork is obvious, with a holistic 
approach to the support for Susie. ‘We do get 
involved with the family as well,’ says Kathy. 

Wendy, Susie’s mum, is very pleased with 
the speed at which thing happened once the 
SkILs team became involved.

Everyone is pleased with Susie’s progress; 

and needing help in the shower, Susie is back 
to baking and cooking and showering by 
herself.

Kathy says, 
to actually be in the bathroom with Susie 
when she was getting a shower…then we’d 
get to where we were waiting outside, ready 
for her to shout, then got where we didn’t do 
anything.’’

Of the SkILs staff Susie says, ‘They gave me 

still won’t let me climb ladders, though!’

Susie’s story: “They gave me my confidence back, they helped me. 
Mum still won’t let me climb ladders, though!”

Susi
woman.

SSSS
MMMMM

I have a 

better life 

because...

Page 131



9

What is reablement and SkILs?

As the name suggests, reablement is about helping people regain the ability to do some or 
all of the activities they could do prior to an accident or illness. It pulls together a variety 
of different types of support to help people live more independently at home, such as 
equipment, alarms and sensors.

A reablement programme can also include intensive, time-limited support from adult social 
care’s Skills for Independent Living team (SkILs for short). This team supports people 
to develop and practise daily living skills such as washing, bathing, cooking and taking 

issues.

Read what people are saying about reablement at www.leeds.gov.uk/independence. For more 
information about adult social care, contact Customer Services on 0113 222 4401.

Albert is a very independent ex-forces man who had to go to hospital following a fall 
in the shower. He disliked being in the hospital and wanted to get home as soon as 

possible. “I like my independence,” he says, “I’m a bit stubborn!”

With help from Sue and Susan from the SkiLs team (part of Leeds’ reablement service) and 

if necessary. He now has equipment including an intercom and an alarm bracelet which means 
that help is always quickly available.

“He’s made us a cup of tea sometimes,” adds Sue.

Sue and Susan really enjoyed working with Albert. “He’s been a lovely man to work with and 
it’s been nice to see his progress,” is their verdict.

Albert’s Story: “I ‘m really confident now.”

Albe
in the

possible

AAAAI have a 

better life 

because...

Page 132



10

Born in Garforth, Margaret has been a musician for 50 years, both as a church 
organist and as an accompanist.

After collapsing in November with pneumonia Margaret was taken into St James’ Hospital 

completely gone.

‘I couldn’t even make a cup of tea,’ she says, ‘I couldn’t look after myself.’ Margaret also has 
other health issues such as asthma, heart failure and diabetes. 

Sue, Gail and Karen from the SkILs team 
became involved in supporting Margaret when 
she came out of hospital. ‘I owe them so much,’ 
says Margaret, ‘I’ll never be out of their debt!’ 

‘They chivvied me along and got me going,’ she 
adds, ‘they gave me so much encouragement. 
They helped me with meals, made suggestions, 
helped me to wash… they helped me to make 
it. They are so kind, all of them, especially Sue 
and Karen and Gail.’

‘It’s a pleasure, because Margaret is a trier,’ 
explains Sue, and Karen agrees.

Margaret also has equipment to help her 
around her home, such as rail and a perching 
stool. She also has an alarm pendant in case of 
emergencies.

‘I cannot speak highly enough of these lovely 
girls,’ says Margaret. ‘Long may they continue 
to help the community. Thank you to them ALL.’

Margaret’s Story: “I can not speak highly enough of these girls.”

Did you know?

In 2011/12, around 2,250  people contacted 
the council seeking advice on the best way to 
meet their social care needs and making their 
own arrangements. A further 3,000 were 
referred on for help from other agencies.

Bo
orga

MMMI have a 

better life 

because...

Page 133



11

How are we changing care and support in Leeds?

The council is working with private house builders and developers, social housing providers 
and community, voluntary, faith and enterprise organisations to create a variety of housing 
options (including residential and extra care) with support adaptable for people’s changing 
needs. With the new housing options comes care and support to maintain people living at 
home independently, safely and with dignity for as long as possible. Each option is tailored to 
the needs of local areas and communities as well as individuals. 

Better Lives through housing, care and support

Extra Care Housing is a new form of supported housing. It is designed for frailer, older 
people, and varying levels of care and support are available on site. People who live in Extra 
Care Housing have their own self contained homes with a legal right to occupy the property.

Keeping independent

The Neighbourhood Networks in Leeds

The council and its health partners support a network of 37 small community organisations 
across Leeds. The Neighbourhood Networks provide services for older people which:

Reduce loneliness
Help older people to remain involved in their communities
Broaden the range of care and support available
Offer advice about healthy lifestyles

Many also offer additional services including: 

Intensive support at home
Winter warmth information
Hospital discharge support

The work of the Neighbourhood Networks is based upon the continued support of over 1,650 
volunteers. Volunteers of all ages and skills offer varying degrees of support to the schemes 
but undoubtedly are a valuable asset for all the Neighbourhood Networks. Their roles include 
serving refreshments, picking people up for groups and appointments, befriending and 
arranging groups and activities.

The number of older people registered with the Neighbourhood Networks has increased by 
7.4% in the last year to 21,500 as at 31 March 2012. There has also been an increase of 
over 9% in the number of older people from black and minority ethnic communities accessing 
these services in the last year.

In October 2011 two of the Neighbourhood Networks received Royal recognition for their 
work. Both of the schemes received awards under the Duke of York Community Initiative and 
were presented with their accreditation by the Duke of York at a ceremony in Harrogate. 

Page 134



12

What are our plans for making lives better? 

 Leeds City Council has introduced a “quality framework” for residential and nursing home 
care. This will require providers to sign-up to a set of quality standards that are directly 

of independent sector care.

of the transformation programme for services for people with learning disabilities is to 

investment in new, small community bases with day opportunities provided by non-Council 
organisations.

 The council is working with its partners to achieve affordable housing and care options on 
a city-wide basis. “The Older People’s Housing and Care Programme” is reviewing local 
population needs in comparison with the housing and care which is available now in Leeds. 

 The Leeds Dementia Strategy (2012) is being developed to make Leeds a dementia friendly 
city. This will support people with dementia to live their lives to the full as part of the 
community. Living Well With Dementia In Leeds will address the diverse needs of the whole 
community affected by dementia, including families, neighbours and friends of people with 
the condition. 

 New services to assist people with mental health conditions to live independently are being 
developed. A key element is the transitional housing unit which offers eight supported 
accommodation placements to people with enduring and severe mental health problems. 

 We are working with health partners to improve local services for people with Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder. An autism diagnostic service has been established in Leeds. We will 
improve the training for social workers about autism and introduce autism ‘champions’ 
within health and social care agencies.

 ‘Safe Places’ has been launched at Leeds Bus Station. This nationwide project is aimed at 
helping people with learning disabilities to deal with any incident that takes place.

Page 135



13

During 2011/12, three older peoples’ care homes and four day centres closed as part of the 
Better Lives programme. In most cases existing service users were successfully transferred 
to alternative services in the independent and third sector. For some, however, changing 
services caused anxiety and distress. The changes were controversial and have been painful 
for some service users, carers and staff. We continue to work with these groups to help us to 
develop and improve our plans. 

Did you know?

In 2011/12, 9,069  people 
received specialist 
help at home and 2,386 

support from the council to 
live in care homes.

There are 96 care homes for older 
people in Leeds where people receive care 
supported by the council. During 2011/12 

homes to check the quality of care provided. 
At any one time around 6 or 7 homes had 
their admissions suspended until quality 
improved to the required standards.

her new home at Primrose Court, an independent sector residential care home. 

Throughout the process of moving Joan was supported by her son, Paul, who ensured that his 
mother’s dignity, choice and rights were respected. To ensure this is the case, every person 
who moves is given a Care Guarantee which details how they will be supported. 

Paul points out that in the beginning some things did not go smoothly, but believes that

“it has come out positive in the end.” and adds

“it has improved the situation for my mother.” 

Joan is happy where she lives and says; “I know some of the people here and a few people 
from the church come.”

Paul is keen that the lessons they learned, for example, the practicalities of moving       
furniture and belongings are being used to help other people and Joan points out that

“for those who moved after me, it has run smoothly.”

Joan’s Story: “It has come out positive in the end” 

her 

JJJI have a 

better life 

because...

Page 136



14

89-year-old Olive lives in sheltered accommodation in Wetherby just a mile from 

ago. For the last six months Olive has been using a personal budget to employ a team of 

Paul tells us, in his own words, the difference this has made in both their lives.

“The main difference the personal budget has made is that we can dramatically improve 

an agency worker spent just half an hour providing lunch – Mum needs an hour for a meal. 
Mum gets up to all sorts of activities with her daytime personal assistant – reading and looking 
through books together, singing along to the old timers, doing simple jigsaws, even feeding the 
ducks on the Wharfe or visiting the garden centre. Compare that to just sitting staring at the 
TV.

“The personal assistants are hand-picked and really care. And Mum gets to see the same 
friendly faces. In many ways they treat her like their own mum rather than there just being a 
procession of strangers who watch the clock and rush in and out.

the best thing I have ever done for my Mum.”

Dignity Champions check out residential and nursing care homes in Leeds

A group of volunteers have been visiting care homes for older people in Leeds since 2008 
to conduct an audit to ensure that residents are being treated with dignity and respect, that 
their rights and privacy are protected, that they have a say in their care, that there is choice 
and involvement in their care and activities, and they are aware how to complain. 

In the last 18 months over 50 unannounced visits have been carried out. In the vast 
majority of cases homes have been found to meet our dignity standards. Areas 
where there have been problems include the quality of food, lack of activities and hazards 

Having more choice, getting more control

People with social care needs and their carers can choose to receive a cash payment from the 
council to 
services and to sort out the paperwork.

Paul’s Story: “This is the best thing I have ever done for Mum!” 

Over the next year we will work with service users and carers 
of Leeds as co-leaders of a ‘Better Lives’ forum which will 
oversee the development of personal social care in the city. Our 
plans will be informed through the nationally validated Personal 
Budgets Outcomes Evaluation Tool ‘P.O.E.T.’ survey which 
will make sure we know even more about how far we have 
succeeded in ensuring that Leeds is the best city for social care 
and that we truly are helping people to live better lives.

89

ago. For

PPP
Mum &

I have a 

better life 

because...

Page 137



15

Doris B lives in LS8 and is 85. She has mobility 

as well as diabetes, thyroid problems, eczema and 
asthma. Doris uses her personal budget to employ her 
friend Pauline who provides most of her support.

“I decided to try using a personal budget because I was 

hard to please, but I don’t like different people rushing 
in and out all the time. I’ve known Pauline for 25 years. 
She lives just round the corner I’ve been paying her 
to help me with some things, but now I can employ 
her properly - it makes all the difference. Pauline will 
be able to support me with showering, dressing and 
preparing meals. And she will be able to help me get 
away for the weekend, go out to the theatre or visit my 
family. I’m looking forward to getting out and about, 
going to all the places I’d forgotten about. I would 
certainly recommend using a personal budget to other 
people my age!”

Everyone is different, so it follows that people should be able to tailor their care and 
support to suit their life.

 If the council assess you to be eligible for support for your social care and you are living at 
home, you will now receive council support for your care as a personal budget. This is money 
from the council so that you can choose and manage our own support, mixing and matching 
services from the council and other providers. Not everyone wants to manage the money 
themselves, so there are various ways that you can receive and manage your personal budget 
– it’s your choice:

As a payment directly into your bank account
As a payment to a suitable person on your behalf, such as a close relative
As a payment to a Trust, such as a group of family members
Via an Individual Service Fund – this is where a care provider organisation looks after your 
budget on your behalf
Managed by the council (this is limited to services provided or commissioned by the 
council)
As a mixed budget – a combination of the above

 By the end of this year, everyone will be receiving their care through a personal budget. We 
are well on the way to meeting this commitment. In 2011/12, 6,122 people chose to receive 
their social care in this way (52% of all the people receiving specialist care at home). 

Confused? Not sure how you can use your personal budget to arrange your own 
support? Help is available for you.

You can speak to other people in Leeds who already use personal budgets. Contact 
Free to Live, the personal budget peer support network on 0113 214 3594 or email them at: 
info@freetoliveleeds.org or visit www.freetoliveleeds.org

Advice about employing a personal assistant is available from an organisation called ASIST 
(Actively Seeking Independence Support Team). You can contact ASIST on 0113 214 3599.

Doris B’s Story: “I would certainly recommend using a personal 
budget to other people my age!” 
DD

bbbb

I have a 

better life 

because...

Page 138



16

Time For Carers grant scheme

Carers Leeds manages the Leeds City 
Council grant scheme to allow carers to 
take a break.

The Time for Carers grant is available for 
people caring for someone for 35 hours a 
week or more to help them take a break 
(holiday, day trip, alternative therapy, 
course, driving lessons etc).

Support for carers in Leeds

Carers’ support groups in Leeds

There are numerous support groups for carers all across Leeds. Some of these are associated 
with Carers Leeds or the Alzheimer’s Society, some with the Older Carers Support Service 
and some are independent groups of carers.

These groups provide a relaxed, supportive environment where people can get together with 
others in a similar position and talk through the things that are on their minds.

If you would like to know more about support groups for carers in Leeds please contact one 
of the organisations listed on page 41 or see our new A to Z of services directory. 

79% of all adult social care service users 
receive practical help on a regular basis 
from their husband/wife, partner, friends, 
neighbours or family members.

Short Breaks & Respite Breaks

Short breaks can be arranged by Adult 
Social Care, following an assessment, 
either in specialist accommodation or with 
an approved family.

Home based sitter schemes are also 
available. See page 41 for contact details.

Carer’s Emergency Scheme

Carers, have you ever thought what 
would happen if you were unavoidably 
delayed or taken ill or called away in the 
middle of the night?

The Carer’s Emergency Service offers 
both you and the person you care for 
the peace of mind of knowing that a 
plan would be activated should such an 
occasion arise.

Please ring 0845 026 8923 to register 
your interest 

You will then be visited in your own home 

from Housing21.

A carer is…

Someone who looks after a relative, 
partner or friend on an unpaid basis who, 
because of the effects of disability, physical 
or mental illness, old age or substance 
abuse, cannot manage without help. This 
includes parents caring for a child with 
disability or health-related care needs.

Page 139



17

Dementia Cafés in Leeds

Leeds Alzheimer’s Society’s dementia cafés take place on a monthly basis. People with 

information about supports and services.

The cafés are in a relaxed and supportive environment where people can chat openly over a 
cup of tea and slice of cake.

There are cafés in Headingley, Harehills, Yeadon, Otley, Collingham, Boston Spa, Garforth, 
Pudsey, Rothwell, Beeston and Armley as well as Moortown and Chapel Allerton.

0113 231 1727.

This includes: time to talk, either over the phone or in person; information about all kinds 
of help available; support in understanding of how the health and social care system works; 

cope with the impact of their role on their health and their life; carers support groups; 
information about holidays and respite breaks and a bi-monthly newsletter. Carers Leeds is 
based in Leeds city centre but can visit carers at home. They have a specialist worker for 
young adult carers aged 18-30 and another who works with carers and family members 
affected by another’s substance misuse. 

This service has been created to support carers who are themselves over age 65 years, who 

been caring consistently for many decades. It is recognised that these carers have additional 

Mental Health Carers’ Team – Leeds Partnerships Foundation Trust

Telephone and one-to-one advice and support for carers of people with mental health 
problems, primarily those who are using mental health services. Information and training 
about mental health issues. Longer-term support for mental health carers. 

Dementia Carer’s Support Service – Alzheimer’s Leeds  

The Dementia Carers Support service provides information 
and advice to all carers of any person with dementia, 
advocacy and emotional support; they have several carers 
support groups, a newsletter, and social events. They 
work closely with the memory services and jointly provide 
Dementia Cafés and other groups for people who are living 
with dementia.

Willows Young Carers Project (Barnardos) 

This is a special service for children or young people under 
age 18 years of age who care for an adult directly, or are 
affected by a caring situation at home. The service provides 
one-to-one support and groups and activities for the young 
person as well as advice and advocacy for the family. They 
help young carers throughout the Leeds area. 

Details of these and many more services can be found in the 
new A to Z of services, available from GPs, One Stop Centres 
or by calling 0113 222 4401.

Page 140



18

Better Lives through enterprise

How will this help us provide better support?

New ways of providing social care services are appearing in Leeds which complement 
existing services. Some of these new options are already working in local communities and 
providing older and disabled adults with a greater variety of services that are geared to 

such as volunteering and new small social care organisations. Leeds now has many new 
kinds of social care organisations including private enterprises, co-operatives and user-
led services which are contributing to the care and support available in the city. These 
organisations provide alternatives to traditional social care and support services and offer the 
potential to deliver or co-ordinate social care services in the future.

of public money being spent in local areas and communities.

We’ll be doing this in several ways, through:

delivering care and support; 
 encouraging new kinds of social care organisations (for example, social enterprises, co-

operatives and micro businesses) to develop across the city;
 maximising community support for people with care and support needs through volunteering;
 encouraging and supporting the practice of corporate social responsibility;
 nurturing and harnessing the entrepreneurial spirit of staff, the public and existing 

organisations to encourage the development of different kinds of enterprises; and

organisations based on shared values.

You know what you want and how to 
pay for it? – Book it yourself

Leeds City Council is working with other 
local authorities in a regional consortium and 
the private sector to make it possible for 
people to choose and book their social 
care on line – coming to Leeds in 2013.

Building Community Capacity

We are working to ensure that more 
people have the opportunity to 
volunteer, but also that volunteers are 
properly recognised and rewarded and 

communities and individuals is celebrated. 

Ryan approached Touchstone, an organisation that supports people with mental 
health needs and those who care for them in Leeds. The organisation offers access 

to services that aid an individual’s mental health recovery: for example this could include 
attending a social group.

“I’ve had to drop out of the course a couple of times and they’ve been really patient with me 
and let me join back on again” says Ryan.

Ryan is currently on an admin placement and is hoping that this will give him extra experience 
to get back into the workplace. 

Ryan says the Touchstone experience has been really positive for him. He takes every day as 
it comes and feels that he now has a long term aim with something to work towards and look 
forward to.

Ry
health

I have a 

better life 

because...

Ryan’s Story: “Touchstone have been really patient with me.” 

Page 141



19

Paying for your own care?

If you have found your own care and 
support and you are not applying for help 
with the costs you do not need to involve 
the Council. You can look for any support 
that meets your needs. However, the 
Council can still offer advice if you’d like 
them to. Please contact the council and 
say that you’re thinking of self funding 
but would like some advice (see page 39 
for details).

Care charges can be considerable and long 
term planning is essential, fortunately 
there are many organisations that can 

 page 39 for 
contact details).

Developing a more diverse care market

In October 2010 the council established 
a business support and investment 
fund under the banner of ‘Ideas that 
change lives’. The fund provides small 
start-up grants (up to £1K) up to larger 
sustainment grants (up to £9K). 

The 27 investments made to date have 
resulted in the establishment of eight 
brand new person centred services 
in Leeds with a further 13 new ideas 
currently being developed with support 
from the programme. 
Four brand new social enterprises have 
been established in Leeds.
17 existing third sector/social 
enterprise organisations have been 
supported to develop and/or establish 
a new service responding to the 
personalisation agenda.
26 new jobs have been created.

What are our plans for making lives better? 

 In 2012/13 the council will support volunteering by:

 developing a ‘Volunteer Licence’ which will recognise training undertaken by volunteers 
that work with vulnerable adults. 

 ensuring that the appropriate use of volunteering is included in commissioning (buying) 
services.

 expanding the Dignity Volunteer programme that has been running successfully since 
2008. Dignity Volunteers carry out dignity audits of the independent sector residential care 
homes for older people in Leeds.

 exploring a new approach to volunteering through the Ideas that Change Lives (ITCL) 
investment programme – based on the idea of reciprocity. Reciprocity works on the idea 
that all people have something valuable to offer and when you view everyone as an 
asset you move to a model of two-way exchange. Timebanks are an example of such an 
approach and ITCL has recently invested in a group that is exploring the development of a 
Timebank in the Hyde Park area. 

We will develop and support corporate social responsibility in three ways:

 by encouraging long-term relationships and partnerships between private sector companies 
and social enterprises and the wider third sector;

 by identifying and building on shared values between companies and third sector 
organisations; and

 by spreading the message that successful corporate social responsibility is a long-term 

We will encourage new kinds of social care organisation:

 by supporting the increase of the number of social enterprises and user-led organisations, 
and helping them to work across the whole city.

Page 142



20

Some of the new services starting in Leeds

Experience Community

Experience Community is a tourism business which helps disabled people and people 
with mobility issues become more independent. It produces guides of different tourist 
destinations which show how people with different disabilities can experience and enjoy each 
attraction. The business also offers tailored group excursions and short breaks for disabled 
people. 

Craig Grimes is the founder of Experience Community who has used his experience as a 
disabled person to develop the service. 

Get Cooking

Get Cooking is a new social enterprise that teaches basic cooking skills to groups of people 
with particular social care needs and medical conditions, particularly those with acquired 
brain injury. The business aims to use cooking as a means to aid rehabilitation or recovery 

This micro enterprise has been established by Emily Carey, a Multiple Sclerosis-specialist 
social worker.

Connections Health and Social Care
 
Connections Health and Social Care is a new social enterprise, based in south Leeds, which 
provides services to help people and their carers to remain living independently in their own 
home for as long as possible. 

Services include the provision of personal assistants, end of life support, continuing and 
overnight care and supporting/caring for those with a disability. A new and exciting service 
recently started is the enablement service which enables service users to regain skills to do 
as much as they can/want for themselves. It is designed to support service users who wish 
to socialise more i.e. shopping, trips, holidays and visits to places of interest.

Page 143



21

Who are we helping now, and how will this change?

Overall the black and minority ethnic 

disproportionate health inequalities. This is the 

of health services and prevention initiatives; 
culture and lifestyle; racism and discrimination; 
and biological susceptibility.

There were 214,000 hospital 
admissions for Leeds residents in 
2011. On average 42% of these 
admissions were as an emergency. 

this proportion is higher at 49% and 
for the least deprived areas of Leeds 
it is lower at 33%.

People with learning disabilities, particularly 
people with Down’s Syndrome, are at risk 
of dementia, and other conditions linked 
to ageing, at a younger age. As health and 

more people with both learning disability and 
dementia.

The growth in the number of older people 
in Leeds, means that the number of people 
with dementia in Leeds is expected to 
increase by 40%
an estimated 8,400 to over 12,000. 

There is a growing aging population in Leeds which is creating more demand for services and 
support at a time when funding is reducing year on year. 

The main risk factor for dementia is ageing, 
and therefore is more prevalent in areas with 
longer life expectancy. These are generally 
the least deprived and more rural areas 
surrounding the city. This in turn gives rise to 
needs for access to information and access to 
services associated with rural areas.

The Leeds Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment 
(JSNA) 2012 is key to 
understanding the health 
and well being needs and 
inequalities across and 
within Leeds. 

It includes over 80 detailed 
reports on populations, 

conditions, children, wider 
factors, key populations and 
equality groups, service 

Page 144



22

years and women 82.2 years 

On average men living in the least 

live 12.4 years longer than men living 
in the most deprived areas of Leeds. 

There are over 150,000 people living in 
areas of Leeds that rank among the most 
deprived 10% in England

This is what we are doing

smoking with a targeted focus on those areas 
with the highest prevalence.

ages healthy and to prevent the long term 
conditions that arise from obesity 

will address the health, social and economic 
harm caused by alcohol to individuals, 
families and wider society

assessment of dementia in Leeds

care planning including hospital discharge 
arrangement and improving access to a wide 
range of short breaks for carers

utilisation and locality 
information.

Here are some of its key 

The full JSNA can be found 
at the Leeds Observatory 
website in the ‘Resources 
and Documents’ section. 

www.
westyorkshireobservatory.
org/leeds

Leeds Irish, Jewish and some eastern 
European communities are ageing 
groups within the population. Most people 
of Caribbean and south Asian origin came to 
Leeds more recently and the number of older 

have a caring role looking after a relative or 
friend with a long term condition. The 2001 
census suggested there are 70,000 carers 
in Leeds. The 2011 census is likely to show 
this number has increased. It is estimated that 
carers save the economy £119 billion a year. 
In Leeds that would equate to about £12 
million.

The number of people in Leeds aged over 
65 estimated to be living with depression is 
10,111 and severe depression is 3,232.

Page 145



23

Better Lives with less money

Over the last 5 years the council’s Adult Social Care service has delivered savings of over £60m 
savings through changing the way we do things. These savings have enabled the investment in 
new types of service and helped to deal with the growing demand for services. 

In 2012/13 we are projecting to deliver savings of £9m. The main service changes within these 
savings relate to home care, day care and residential care. 

 The home care service has been refocused on helping people to regain and maintain their 
independence through the reablement and telecare services. Alongside this, the amount of 
long-term care provided by the council has reduced as staff have left the service, with the 
independent sector taking on more care. 

 There has been some reduction in the council’s residential and day care for older people 
provided directly by the council alongside a growing role for the independent sector. Within 

opportunities using bases in local communities rather than in large day centres.

Although we have had success in meeting the challenge to deliver better for each pound we 

Where the council got its money for adult social care in 2011/12

Page 146



24

 Like every other city across the country, Leeds needs to ensure that more people get better 
health and social care services at a time when it has less money. 

 We expect that the demand for social care will continue and that there will be increasing 
demands for higher quality social care. This is based on:

 increasing expectations and aspirations of people with social care needs to live safer, 

 an expected increase in number of older people and learning disabled people in Leeds
 a growing demand for easier access and greater choice and control over social care by 

service users.

 Ensuring that there is high quality adult social care available to the people of Leeds is a 
priority for support within the council and the budget for social care and services is expected 

introduced. 

 However, the future remains challenging. The council’s overall budget is expected to fall by 
2.1% in each of the next two years and it faces the challenge of increased demand with less 
money.

How your money is spent on adult social care in 2011/12

Page 147



25

Are lives getting better?  Having the information I need,  when I need it.
Some good things

 This is what we are currently doing

are available in a number of ways. These include:

Leeds Care Services Directory

Council website, the Leeds Directory

and from the council contact centre

 97% of adult social care 
service users report that if they 
telephoned a social worker the 
call was answered promptly and 
professionally (ASC survey April 
2012)

 92% of adult 
social care service 
users report that 
their social worker 
explained things 
clearly (ASC 
survey April 2012)

  A Home Care Provider tells us:

and in control of their support.

With this, we are able to devise much more in depth, personalised 
care plans which in turn better meet the individual needs of the 
client.”

Local Care Force July 12

“I had to go to hell and back before I got help.” 

Yeadon Carers 2012

   
   

   
  
  
H

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n
fo

rm

at
io

n     
      

Page 148



26

Are lives getting better?  Having the information I need,  when I need it.

 So, this is what we are doing to improve 
services:

support provision which will enable people 
to contact someone who understands the 
kind of issues likely to be encountered 
and will offer peer support

improve our systems so that you can get 
easier access to the care and support you 
need, when you need it.

of our information to service users and 
carers

management teams integrated with 
health community teams to make it easier 
for you to access support through GPs 
and nurses

Some areas where we could do better

Our Service Experts Advisory Group told us:

“Information was sometimes not easy to understand, was not always 

wrong, out of date or inadequate.” 

“In some cases it had taken a long time to uncover information and some 
people have simply not known what help is available. This is especially 

Our Service Experts Advisory Group told us:

always get hold of someone who understands 
our services.”   

Cross Gates Carers’ Group told 
us:

from discussions with professionals 

out what the plans are for the 
people we care for.”   

“We would like more contact with the 
council so that they can let us know 
more about the new services that are 
emerging which we could use.”

Koshish & Himmat Carers Groups

our needs about the help that is available.”

Carers’ Groups

About 1/3 of service users who had tried to get information in 2011/12 had 
(PSS Survey 2012)

     
                I need

, w
h
e
n

 I
 n

e
e
d
 it

Page 149



27

In 2011/12 over 
80 learning 
disabled 
people were 
helped into 
employment, an 
increase of 23% 
on the previous 
year.

accessible support than other authorities for 
adults with lower levels of social care need, 
such as luncheon clubs, neighbourhood 
networks and services directly provided by 
voluntary groups. 11,900 people with lower 
levels of social care need directly access these 
services every week.

75% of social care users have ‘as much as they 
want’ or ‘adequate’ social contact.

An increasing proportion of council supported 
social care report that they are able to spend their 
time doing things they value or enjoy (up 3% to 
67% in 2011/12).

This is what we are currently doing:

to disabled and older people

with care and support needs

needs which can be used to keep in touch with family and friends and 
to maintain social contacts

the council and its health partners. Each year around 2500 people 
receive support from the council in this way

health issues to gain employment

year

Our Service Experts Advisory Group 
told us:

“We are still not able to go out without 
having to plan a long way in advance.”   

Our Service Experts Advisory Group told us:

“We put a great deal into the community and this is generally valued.”

“We need 
lifting and 
handling 
training and 
we need it 
where we 
live, not just 
in the centre 
of Leeds”

Koshish 
Asian Carers 
Group

Are lives getting better? Keeping our friends and family  and having active and supportive communities
Some good things

   
  K

e
e
p
in

g
 o

u
r 

fr
ie

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 f
am

ily
 a

nd      
         

Page 150



28

So, this is what we are doing to improve services:

‘Shared Lives’ service, where an individual or family 
is paid to include an isolated or disabled person in their family and community life as an 
alternative to care homes
Local Health and Wellbeing Boards are establishing local plans alongside NHS and Council, 
voluntary and private sector partners to improve the quality of life of people living in Leeds

rinity Shopping Centre and the Leeds 
Arena will be fully accessible to disabled people when they open in the coming year. 

Health and Wellbeing Centres which will promote healthy lifestyles 

barriers to travel, including the use 
of concessionary fares schemes.

training will be extended to carers and other people supporting the public

“Mother is isolated 
because she doesn’t
speak the same 
language as the 
people who provide 
services”

Koshish Asian 
Carers Group

Only 64% of service users feel able to do enough or more of 
the things that they value or enjoy. This is a lower proportion 
than the previous year.

“There is a great deal of 
ignorance about autism and 
training needs to be made 
available to health and social 
work staff, and to all people who 
provide services to the public 

workers etc so that people like 
my daughter can manage.”

A Carer 2012

“If I do go out, its to the White Rose Centre as I can order a 
scooter, but I have to do this in advance.”

A service user

“We need more support 
with transport to help 
people attend Leeds 
Asperger Adults”

A service user

Our Service Experts Advisory Group told us:

“We want better transport facilities. We would like the 
council to provide start up funding and support for groups 
and activities as part of promoting social enterprises.”   

Keeping our friends and family  and having active and supportive communities
Some areas where we could do better

         
                 having activ

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rtiv

e
 c

o
m

m
unities

Page 151



29

As a result of better preventative services and better alternatives, fewer 
people are needing to meet their care needs through support from the Council 
for residential and nursing care. A smaller proportion of Leeds residents 
were admitted to Council supported residential care than the average for 
similar cities and for England as a whole. 

The council 
received a 72% 
increase in 
compliments and 
a 2% decrease in 
complaints over 
the past year.

70% of reablement customers require no further 
care or support after the service is complete.

19% of telecare service users would have 
moved into a care home if the service wasn’t 
available.

Inspections show that all council run residential 
and nursing care homes are fully compliant 
with the Care Quality Commission. 

All home care providers used by the Council 
who were assessed in 2011/12 met our local 
standards of care.

“Telecare is brilliant.”

Yeadon Carers
2012

Our Service Experts Advisory Group told us:

“Having our own personal assistant is the best way to avoid concerns 
regarding the quality and consistency of care services”   

“I asked for 
equipment and 
I got it within 
2 days.”

A service 
user

A Home Care Provider tells us:

“The Council is getting better at working with social care providers and this is 
helping us to provide better care.”  Polkadot Care

This is what we are currently doing:

Council. 

Are lives getting better? My support, my care
Some good things

  
 M

y
 s

u
pp

ort,
     

      

Page 152



30

So, this is what we are doing to improve services:

that it uses in Leeds to pay according to the quality of care provided to service users. It will 
be using this to improve the quality of care provided locally 

 for them.
all people

 re-ablement services can access them
development of new and innovative services so that people have more 

choice about what support would suit them best 

Overall, 14% of 
service users were not 

and support service 
they received.

“We’re worried about 
what’s going to happen 
to our loved ones after 
we’ve died.”

Carers Groups

  A Home Care Provider tells us:

“Where we would like to see improvement is for those clients who need more 
specialised support around mental health issues or learning disabilities, for 

organise a referral or further assessment.”

Local Care Force July 12

Our Service Experts Advisory Group told us:

“In most cases it took a long time to get the 
right care, and there are constraints around the 
planning of care which can sometimes make it 

care.”   

“Nobody takes 
any notice of 
carers needs.”

A Carer 2012

“There is no-one you 
can turn to over the 
weekend.”

Yeadon Carers
2012

“Getting and keeping contact with 
social workers is a problem.”

Asperger Carers Support Group

Some areas where we could do better

     
                 m

y ca
re

Page 153



31

This is what we are currently doing:

of adults in Leeds

social care and support

it uses to support people with social care needs

evenings and bank holidays

95% of adult social care service users 
report that they feel that their social care 
worker/s treated  them with respect.
(ASC Survey April 2012)

92% of people receiving care and support 
in Leeds feel safe and 82% think their 
social care helps them to feel safe.
(PSS survey 2012)

74% of the people completing their 
program of reablement in Leeds between 
January and April  2012 report that they 
now feel they have control over their lives. 

96% of Adult Social Care service users 
said that their views were listened to 
and taken into account by their social 
care worker.
(ASC Survey 2012)

  A Home Care Provider tells us:

“The way in which Leeds citizens are able to 
access support has dramatically improved 
and is much more focussed around choice, 
independence and dignity than it ever has been.”

Local Care Force July 12

“Mother has a high level of trust 

visits on most occasions. Also, 
there is regular informal review and 
discussion with the care supervisor.”

A Carer 2012

Our Service 
Experts Advisory 
Group told us:

“We feel in control 
of  our care and 
support.”   

Are lives getting better? Feeling in control and safe
Some good things

F
e
e
li
n
g
 i
n
 c

on
tr

ol    
      

Page 154



32

So, this is what we are doing to improve services:

understands their responsibilities and knows how they should be undertaken

are undertaken to national and local standards

support to say what they want

8% of people receiving council 
supported care and support don’t 
feel safe.
(PSS survey 2012)

“No-one knows 
how you’re 
feeling inside.”

A Carer 2012

Our Service Experts Advisory Group told us:

should something go wrong. We would like an 
emergency number which we could ring to get 
emergency care.”   

Some carers told us:

“We are sometimes threatened or hit by the people we 
are caring for and this is not always taken seriously by the 
professionals we tell.”   

Some areas where we could do better

     
              and safe

Page 155



33

This is what we are currently doing:

their own care through a council provided cash personal budget

to identify and manage services they have purchased with their 
personal budgets 

personal budget holders to advise and support personal budget 
holders

In 2011/12, Leeds City Council  provided 
52.1% of people receiving specialist 
social care services with their support 
through a personal budget and 17.7% 
of this group chose to take it as a cash 
payment. Leeds is rapidly increasing the 
proportion of people who receive support 
through personal budgets year on year. 
It is performing better than most local 
authorities.

“Asist are great. They came to see me with the social worker and 
helped me sort out employing our personal assistants. I felt included 
and in touch.”

A Carer 2012

Are lives getting better? Personal budget - my money
Some good things

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b

ud
get   

       

Page 156



34

So, this is what we are doing:

able to take up the council’s offer of a cash payment as part of their personal budget 

support when your services are annually reviewed

increase the support available for people. 

31% of all council supported users of social 
care buy additional care to ‘top up their 
support.
(PSS survey 2012)

Although many more people than ever 
are receiving their social care through a 
personal budget, a smaller proportion feel 
that they have control over their daily life 
in 2011/12 (74%) than the previous year 
(79%). Leeds performance is now only 
average in relation to comparable towns 
and cities.

Our Service Experts Advisory Group told us:

“We are concerned about the assessment 
process, which can feel adversarial and 
designed to elicit savings.”   

Our Service Experts Advisory Group 
suggested:

“Establish a ’try before you buy’ arrangement, 
with both companies and personal assistants. 
This would create a trial period for both sides 
to get to know the other and make sure they 
are suited.”   

A Carers’ Group told us:

“We’re worried that if the people 
we care for receive cash from the 
council to buy their support, it will 

  

Personal budget - my money
Some areas where we could do better

     
              - m

y m
o
n
e
y

Page 157



35

Indicator Reference

1A: Social care-related quality of life
This indicator represents an average score for a person based on the responses of those that completed the          Adult Socia

1B: The proportion of people who use services who have control over their daily life
This indicator is the average score of those who responded “I have as much control or adequate control” to           the questi
your daily life?” on the Adult Social Care Survey

1C: Proportion of people using social care who receive self-directed support, and those receiving          direct payments – Pa
directed support
This is a percentage of the service users who are helped to live at home and carers who have chosen the                services

1C: Proportion of people using social care who receive self-directed support, and those receiving          direct payments – Pa
This is a percentage of the service users who are helped to live at home and carers who have chosen the               services 
payment to purchase it

1E: Proportion of adults with learning disabilities in paid employment
This is a percentage of service users with learning disabilities know to be in paid employment

1F: Proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services in paid employment
This indicator measures the percentage of adults receiving mental health services who are know to be in paid        employment

1G: Proportion of adults with learning disabilities who live in their own home or with their family
This indicator measure the proportion of adults with learning disabilities who are know to the council, who are       recorded 

1H: Proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services who live independently,        with or without suppor
This indicator measures the percentage of adults receiving secondary mental health services who are living           independen

2A: Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population, part 1         – 18-64
This measure the number of people aged 18-64 who are permanently admitted to residential or nursing home.

2A: Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population, part 2         – 65+
This measure the number of people aged 65+ who are permanently admitted to residential or nursing home

2B: Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from        hospital into reablemen
This measure the proportion of older people who received a short term package of care after leaving hospital        and were st

2C: Delayed transfers of care from hospital, and those which are attributable to adult social care
This measures the proportion of people who were ready to leave hospital whose discharge was delayed due          to a health or

3A: Overall satisfaction of people who use services with their care and support

with the care and support services you receive?” on the Adult Social Care Survey

4A: The proportion of people who use services who feel safe
This indicator is the average score of those who responded “I feel as safe as I want” to the question “ Which         of the fo
safe you feel?” on the Adult Social Care Survey

4B: The proportion of people who use services who say that those services have made them feel          safe and secure
This indicator is the average score of those who responded “yes” to the question “Do care and support services        help you 
Survey

 Better Lives – measuring our performance

The Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework is a set of outcomes measures which have been 
agreed nationally and are aimed at demonstrating the achievements of adult social care. The 
measures provide a benchmark for comparison of performance between local authorities.

Page 158



36

2010/11 
Score

2011/12 
Score

2011/12 Av. 
for Comparable 
Local Authorities

Improving?

This indicator represents an average score for a person based on the responses of those that completed the          Adult Social Care Survey
18.5 18.4 18.6

This indicator is the average score of those who responded “I have as much control or adequate control” to           the question “How much control do you have over 
78.8 73.5 73.5

1C: Proportion of people using social care who receive self-directed support, and those receiving          direct payments – Part 1, any form of self-

This is a percentage of the service users who are helped to live at home and carers who have chosen the                services they want to receive

29.0% 52.1% 40.1%

1C: Proportion of people using social care who receive self-directed support, and those receiving          direct payments – Part 2, cash payments only
This is a percentage of the service users who are helped to live at home and carers who have chosen the               services they want to receive and received a cash 

11.7% 17.7% 13.6%

6.3% 7.1% 6.5%

This indicator measures the percentage of adults receiving mental health services who are know to be in paid        employment
11.9

1G: Proportion of adults with learning disabilities who live in their own home or with their family
This indicator measure the proportion of adults with learning disabilities who are know to the council, who are       recorded as living in their own home or with their 

71.1% 83.7% 74.1%

1H: Proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services who live independently,        with or without support
This indicator measures the percentage of adults receiving secondary mental health services who are living           independently

59.1

2A: Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population, part 1         – 18-64
This measure the number of people aged 18-64 who are permanently admitted to residential or nursing home.

18.3 11.2 15.5

2A: Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population, part 2         – 65+
This measure the number of people aged 65+ who are permanently admitted to residential or nursing home

816.2 671.9 723.4

2B: Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from        hospital into reablement/rehabilitation services
This measure the proportion of older people who received a short term package of care after leaving hospital        and were still living at home 3 months later

85.4% 85.7% 82.38

2C: Delayed transfers of care from hospital, and those which are attributable to adult social care
This measures the proportion of people who were ready to leave hospital whose discharge was delayed due          to a health or social care related reason

3.28

59.9 63.4 62.6

52.7 53 66.2

This indicator is the average score of those who responded “I feel as safe as I want” to the question “ Which         of the following statements best describes how 
61.9 62.7 62.5

4B: The proportion of people who use services who say that those services have made them feel          safe and secure
This indicator is the average score of those who responded “yes” to the question “Do care and support services        help you in feeling safe” on the Adult Social Care 

84.3 75.8

Leeds is performing better than 
comparable local authorities

Leeds is performing as well as 
comparable local authorities

Leeds is performing worse  than 
comparable local authorities

Leeds performance is 
improving

Leeds performance 
has remained constant

Leeds performance is 
declining

Page 159



37

Abuse of vulnerable adults

What is safeguarding?

Safeguarding adults refers to the 
protection of an ‘adult at risk’ from 
abuse or neglect. Abuse is mistreatment 
by any other person or persons that 
violates a person’s human and civil 
rights. Abuse can happen anywhere - in 
a person’s own home, in a residential 
or nursing home, in a supported living 
setting, a hospital or GP surgery, a prison, 
day centre or educational setting, library, 
sports centre, within the workplace, or 
within the community. 

Abuse may be committed by a 
professional, a paid carer, family member, 
another adult at risk, or anyone else. 

If there are concerns about a person you 
know over 18 years of age, who needs, 
or might need, health and social care 
support and who might be being abused 
or at risk of abuse from another person, 
then they are likely to be an ‘adult at risk’ 
and a safeguarding adult referral should 
be made to the council. 

The council commissions a group 
of independent experts to review 
the quality of its investigations into 
allegations of abuse of vulnerable 
adults and they told us:

“Records indicated that prompt action 
was taken to safeguard the individuals 
concerned, investigations instigated and 
protection plans put in place.” 

CPEA Ltd. Dec 2011

Safeguarding Referrals – 
2011/12

 There were 3,449 referrals for 
safeguarding adults received 
by the council during 2011/12, 
which is 686 more than were 
received in 2010/11

 The largest number of referrals 
are made by social care staff 
followed by health and housing 
staff.

 A safegarding coordinator from 
Adult Social Care or an NHS 
organisation will then arrange 
for an investigation into the 
allegations or concerns. We need 

out the facts about what has 
happened. The decisions about 
the help you need must be based 
on all the information available.

Safeguarding Investigations – 
2011/12

 Most investigations in 2011/12 
followed concerns about 
physical abuse (41%) followed 

abuse (17%).
 More safeguarding 

investigations were undertaken 
in 2011/12 than in any 
previous year (986). 

 The largest number of 
safeguarding investigations 
involve people who are 
categorised as having a 
physical disability or frailty 
(405, or 41%). 265 or 27% 
involve someone with a 
learning disability and 201 or 
20% involve a person with 
dementia.

Page 160



38

The Outcomes of Safeguarding Investigations – 2011/12

 58% of safeguarding investigations concluded within the year were either fully 
or partially substantiated. 

 39% of investigations that were concluded in 2011/12 involved a person with 
a physical disability. 30% of concluded investigations involved a person with a 
learning disability.

Case Conclusion Number %

Fully Substantiated 333 48%

Partly Substantiated 70 10%

Not Substantiated 127 18%

Inconclusive/not determined 168 24%

Total 698 100%

Page 161



39

There are 16 one stop centres across Leeds where you can get advice on a range of services 
face to face. Our centres work with a variety of partners to bring you the services you need 
locally.
     
1. Aireborough One Stop Centre, Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri 8.30am - 4pm. Wed 8.30am - 3pm 

    
2. Armley One Stop Centre, opening hours same as Aireborough
 2 Stocks Hill, Armley, LS12 1UQ
    
3. City Centre One Stop, Mon - Thur 8.30am - 4pm. Fri 9.30am - 4pm
 2 Great George Street, Leeds, LS2 8BA
    
4. Dewsbury Road One Stop Centre, Mon, Tues 8.30am - 4pm. Wed 8.30am - 3pm.  

Thurs, Fri 8.30am - 5pm
 190 Dewsbury Road, LS11 6PF
    
5. Garforth One Stop Centre, Mon, Tues, Thur, Fri 9am - 4.30pm. Wed 9am - 3pm 

Lidgett Lane, Garforth, LS25 1EH
    
6. Morley One Stop Centre, opening hours same as Dewsbury Road
 Morley Town Hall, Morley, LS27 9DY    

7. North Seacroft Joint Services Centre, Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri 9am - 5pm. Wed 9am - 3pm 
Unit 8, Seacroft Shopping Centre, LS14 6LU

    
8. Osmondthorpe One Stop Centre, opening hours same as Aireborough
 81a Wykebeck Mount, LS8 0JE    

9. Otley One Stop Centre, Mon 10am - 6pm. Tues, Wed, Thurs 9am - 4.30pm. Fri 9am - 4pm. 
Sat 10am - 12pm appointment only

 8 Boroughgate, Otley, LS21 3AH    

10. Pudsey One Stop Centre, Mon, Tues 8.30am - 4pm. Wed 8.30 - 3pm. Thurs, Fri 
8.30am - 4.30pm

 Pudsey Town Hall, Robin Lane, Pudsey, LS28 7BL
    
11. Reginald Centre, Mon to Fri 8.30am - 5pm. Sat 11am - 1pm appointment only
 263 Chapeltown Road, Chapeltown, LS7 3EX
    
12. Rothwell One Stop Centre, opening hours same as Aireborough
 Marsh Street, Rothwell,LS26 0AD    

13. South Seacroft One Stop Services, opening hours same as Aireborough
 91-95 Moresdale Lane, Seacroft, LS14 6GG   

14. The Compton Centre, Mon, Tues, Thirs, Fri 8.30am - 4pm. Wed 8.30am - 3pm. Sat 
10am - 1.30pm appointment only

 Junction of Compton Road and Harehills Lane, LS9 7BG   

15. The St. George’s Centre, Mon to Fri 8am - 6pm
 St George’s Road, Middleton, LS10 4UZ    

16. Wetherby One Stop Centre, Mon to Wed 9am - 3pm.  Thurs, Fri 9am - 4pm.
 24 Westgate, Wetherby, LS22 6NL  

Where can I get information & advice?

Page 162



40

 Contact us to tell us about how you think we are doing or about our plans for the future. You 
can do this in the following ways:

 Email: stuart.cameron-strickland@leeds.gov.uk

 Telephone: 0113 224 3342.

 Merrion House, Merrion Way, Leeds LS2 8QB.

 Other useful contacts and telephone numbers if you wish to contact us regarding 
any council service:

1. Online enquiry form - www.leeds.gov.uk

2.  By email - general.enquiries@leeds.gov.uk

3. By telephone – 0113 222 4444 and minicom 0113 222 4410. Opening times Monday - 
Friday 8 am - 6 pm.

4. To make a complaint or a compliment to the council about any council service, please use 
our online complaints form.

Page 163



41

Where can I get information & advice?

What services are available?

Leeds Care Services Directory - www.carechoices.co.uk/region/Leeds

The Leeds Directory, offering independent care home contracts advice and information
 – tel 0800 389 2077

First Stop Advice – 0800 389 2077

Financial Advice  

residential and nursing care -  tel 0845 303 2909 

Age UK – www.ageuk.org - tel 0800 169 6565

Self Directed Support

Free to Live - the personal budget peer support network on 0113 214 3594 or email them 
at: infotoliveleeds.org or, visit www.freetoliveleeds.org

ASIST - Advice about employing a personal assistant  0113 214 3599

Carers

info@carersleeds

Alzheimer’s Society - support for carers of dementia suffers - 0113 231 1727

Older Carers Support Service - support for people over 65 caring for an adult with a learning 
disability – 0113 272 0377

Mental Health Carers - Support for carers looking after someone with a mental health 
problem other than dementia - 0113 295 4445

Carers Emergency Service - 0845 026 8923

Page 164



42

Do you want to know more?

If you would like more information about local social care needs and how the Council is 

 City Priority Plan 2011/2015  This document describes what the Council and its 
partners are doing to make Leeds the best city in the UK – http://www.leeds.gov.uk/
Council_Publications/Vision_for_Leeds/City_Priority_Plan.aspx

 Leeds City Council Business Plan 2011/2015  This document outlines what the 
Council want to change and improve over the next four years and how they intend to go 
about it) 
plan%20lraw.pdf

 State of the City Report  This sets out key facts about Leeds, the challenges it faces 
and how we, along with the NHS and other public and third sector partners, will be 
working to secure the best possible prospects for the city. It provides a high level account 
of what is going on in the city and is for anyone wanting to know more about Leeds - 

 Joint Strategic Needs Analysis
future health, social care and wellbeing needs of the local population. It provides a 

wellbeing of the population – http://www.westyorkshireobservatory.org/
 Market Position Statement 2010/11  This document presents our best intelligence 

on current and forecast supply and demand for adult social care services in Leeds and 
provides a guide to the likely level of future resourcing. - tel 0113 247 8630

 The Leeds Safeguarding Adult Partnership Board Annual Report 2011/12  This 
report details the improvements in safeguards for vulnerable citizens in Leeds that the 
Board have achieved over the last 12 months - http://www.leedssafeguardingadults.org.
uk/documents/annual_reports/lsap_annual_report_2011-12.pdf

 A to Z directory of services  This new directory contains health and social care services 
that cover the whole of Leeds - tel 0113 222 4401. It will be published late 2012.

Page 165



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 24 October 2012 

Subject: Work Schedule 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
1 Purpose of this report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the 
forthcoming municipal year. 

 

2 Main issues 
 

2.1 An outline work schedule is attached as Appendix 1, which incorporates the areas 
previously discussed and identified for inclusion by the Scrutiny Board.  The work 
schedule is likely to be subject to change throughout the municipal year, to reflect 
any emerging issues and/or any changes in the Scrutiny Board’s priorities. 

 
2.2 Attached at Appendix 2 are the minutes from the Executive Board meetings held on 

18 July 2012 and 5 September 2012, respectively.   
 

3 Recommendations 
 

3.1 Members are asked to: 
 

a) Note the information presented; and, 
b) Consider the current outline work schedule and agree any amendments if/ where 

appropriate.  
 

4. Background papers1 

None used 

                                            
1
The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  247 4707 

Agenda Item 10

Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: October 2012 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review June July August 
 

Dementia in Leeds  Draft Strategy 
 

SB 25 July 2012 @ 10 am 

 

Mental Health Services in 
Leeds 

   

Loneliness and Social 
Isolation 

 Initial briefing around issues 
 

SB 25 July 2012 @ 10 am 

 

Balancing planning 
authority duties with future 
public health 
responsibilities 

   

Review of Partnership 
effectiveness and associated 
arrangements 

   

Other (details defined)  • Review of Children’s Congenital 
Cardiac Services 

• Review of Services for Adults with 
Congenital Heart Disease 

 

SB 25 July 2012 @ 10 am  

Call-in – Decision around the 
replacement Adult Social Care 
Records System. 
SB 9 August 2012 @ 2:30 pm 

Briefings 
 
 

• Potential work areas/ topics 

• Equality Improvement Priorities 
 

SB 27 June 2012 @ 10 am 
 

  

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
  

   

Recommendation Tracking    

Performance Monitoring 
 

2011/12 Quarter 4 performance report 
SB 27 June 2012 @ 10 am 
 

  

P
age 169



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: October 2012 

 
 
 
 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review September October November 
 

Dementia in Leeds    

Mental Health Services in 
Leeds 

• Mental Health Needs Assessment 

• Current Provision  

• Leeds Suicide Audit  
 

SB 26 September 2012 @ 10 am 

  

Loneliness and Social 
Isolation 

   

Balancing planning 
authority duties with future 
public health 
responsibilities 

 Report to SB  
 

SB 24 October 2012 @ 10 am 

 

Review of Partnership 
effectiveness and associated 
arrangements 

   

P
age 170



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: October 2012 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review September October November 
 

Transformation of Health and 
Social Care 

  Update reports from previous 
Scrutiny Inquiry, relating to:  
(a) Recommendation 7 – risk 

stratification 
(b) Recommendation 8 – integrated 

health and social care teams 
(including lessons from 
demonstrator sites) 

(c) Recommendation 9 – 
partnership arrangements ASC 
/ LYPFT 

(d) Recommendation 10 –  update 
on general governance 
arrangements associated with 
service integration 

(e) Recommendation 11 – Harry 
Booth House progress 

 

SB 21 November 2012 @ 10 am 

Other (details defined) Update on Services for the Blind and 
Visually Impaired 
 
SB 26 September 2012 @ 10 am 

Consideration of the draft Adult Social 
Care Local Account 
 

SB 24 October 2012 @ 10 am 

Health Service Developments 
Working Group – update on the 
work of Clinical Commissioning 
Groups  
 

WG date to be determined 

Briefings 
 
 

  Transformation of Health and 
Social Care – overview of the work 
of the Transformation Board 
 

WG date to be determined 

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
  

   

P
age 171



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: October 2012 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review September October November 
 

Recommendation Tracking 
 
 

   

Performance Monitoring 
 

• 2012/13 Quarter 1 performance report 

• NHS Airedale Bradford and Leeds 
Cluster – performance report  

SB 26 September 2012 @ 10 am 

• 2012/13 Quarter 1 performance 
report (Pubic Health) 

 
SB 24 October 2012 @ 10 am 

 

P
age 172



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: October 2012 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review December January  February 
 

Dementia in Leeds  Update on Strategy and Action Plan 
 

SB 23 January 2013  @ 10 am 
 

 

Mental Health Services in 
Leeds 

WG – date to be determined  WG – date to be determined 

Loneliness and Social 
Isolation 

WG – date to be determined  WG – date to be determined 

Balancing planning 
authority duties with future 
public health 
responsibilities 

   

Review of Partnership 
effectiveness and associated 
arrangements 

   

Other (details defined) Care Quality Commission – local activity 
report 
 

SB 19 December 2012 @ 10 am 
 

Quality Accounts: Updates on progress/ 
priorities identified in 2012 from: 

• LTHT 

• LYPFT 

• LCH 

• YAS (particularly focus on Patient 
Transport Service performance/ 
progress) 

To include commissioner assurance – NHS 
ABL/ CCGs. 
 

SB 19 December 2012 @ 10 am 

Update on progress against the Leeds 
Tobacco Action Plan and previous 
Scrutiny Board recommendations. 
 

SB 23 January 2013  @ 10 am 
 
 
Health Service Developments Working 
Group  
 

WG date to be determined 

Update on Services for the Blind 
and Visually Impaired 
 

SB 20 February 2013  @ 10 am 
 
Draft Quality Accounts for 2012/13 
from: 

• LTHT 

• LYPFT 

• LCH 

• YAS 
To include commissioner 
assurance – NHS ABL/ CCGs. 
 
SB 20 February 2013  @ 10 am 
 

P
age 173



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: October 2012 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review December January  February 
 

Briefings 
 

   

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
  

   

Recommendation Tracking 
 
 

   

Performance Monitoring 
 

• 2012/13 Quarter 2 performance report 

• NHS Airedale Bradford and Leeds 
Cluster – performance report  

 
SB 19 December 2012 @ 10 am 
 

  

P
age 174



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: October 2012 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review March  April May 
 

Dementia in Leeds    

Mental Health Services in 
Leeds 

   

Loneliness and Social 
Isolation 

   

Balancing planning 
authority duties with future 
public health 
responsibilities 

   

Review of Partnership 
effectiveness and associated 
arrangements 

Annual Assessment by the SB 
 

SB 27 March 2013 @ 10 am 

  

Other (details defined) Health Service Developments Working 
Group  
 

WG date to be determined 

Health Service Developments Working 
Group  
 

WG date to be determined 

 

Briefings 
 
 

Equality Improvement Priorities 
SB 27 June 2012 @ 10 am 
 

  

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
  

   

Recommendation Tracking 
 
 

   

Performance Monitoring 
 

• 2012/13 Quarter 3 performance report 

• NHS Airedale Bradford and Leeds 
Cluster – performance report  

SB 27 March 2013 @ 10 am  

  

 

P
age 175



P
age 176

T
his page is intentionally left blank



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

����������	
���
�

�������������������������
�

���������
�

���� ������!���"
#�
������	�
�������

� ���� �������$�%��"
������	
�����&�������
��'��	����(�'��
���)�*
+����*�����
�����
�,�����
�����*�-
�����

�
�

��� ���� !��"#$%�&!'$"�(��$))'*+����,+-)'$"�$#�!.���%�))�&"/��-*+',��
���
����0�.��	�	�
������ ��
�
/ ���
��#����	�
��

	�����������	�
�
 �����
��	�����#�	�
�#����+�������	���#�	�
���
�����
�����	
�����
/
��	����
	�
���������	��	��	������"
���������
+��#�	�
���	��
��#�	�
������
���	���
�
	����� 	
�����	�
���	��
��#�	�
���� 

�������	��	��#��
��
����#�	�
������ �
+
�
���
�
�	�	�
�
�+������
���� �����
�	��	�
���#�
/
��	���#����	�������
�
�����	
�����#����+�0��

1�2� ��
���/��	��	�
��
���	��
#
��
��	���������	
�3�4�5�����
��	�
�	
����
�#�  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��������	�
���������
	��	�	�
����
���/� ��	����� ���
� �������
���	��
���#����	�������	�
�
���� ��8�������� ��	����� ��
�
�	�����
��1�� ����������9
 	�
�##��������	������	���2����� ���
� �������
���	��
���#����	��������
��	����
	��	�
�(�
#
��
��%���
�4����� ���	�
��
�
#�	��#�"

�����	�
���#����	����

/
��	���� �����
�
����
�	
��	����	��	��#�����+��������� ��  
���	��	�
�
��#����	���4�

1�2� ��
���/���	��	�
��
���	��
#
��
��	���������	
�3�4�5�����
��	�
�	
�����#�
  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��������	�
���������	��	�
	�
����
���/� ��	�����	�
��
	���
����� 
�������		
�����	�
� ��	�� 	���
#���	�
�������������
�4�6	�����	�
�
#��
�� �����
�
��	��	�	�
������ �
��	
�
�	��������	�������	�
� ��	
�	��#����
���/������
/
��	���	+
�����
	�
������ ���	
�
�	������� �������	�
���#����	���� ��	���
�������
���/�
��������� �����
�+�������
9��� 
�	�
� ���
� ������	
�
�	���#�	�
�
 ��	�� 	�������	�
���� 
�������		
���
��	
��	��	�
�#���� ���:�����
���
�##������#������	� ����� ������4�

1 2� ��
���/���	��	�
��
���	��
#
��
��	���������	
�3�4�5�����
��	�
�	
�����#�
  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��������	�
���������	��	�
	�
� ���
���/�  ��	����� ��#����	���� +�� �� �#� ��� ���
�� 	�� 	�
� ����� �
+������ ���+������
� ��"
��� 	����
9��� 
� 	�
� ���
� ���� ��	
�
�	���#� 	�
�
���� ��� ���:��� ������
�����	�
�4� 6	� ��� 	�
�
#��
� �

�
�� ��� 	�
� ����� �
��	
�
�	���	�	����� ���
��� ����#����	���4�

1�2� ��
���/��	��	�
��
���	��
#
��
��	���������	
�3�4��7����
��	�
�	
����
�#�  
��� 	�� 6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172�������� 	�
���������
	��	� 	�
������ � ��	
�
�	� �������	������� 	�
�
/
��	���� ��� �
��	���� 	�� 	����
 ��#��
�	���� ���
���/� ��	+
����� 	�
� ����� � ��	
�
�	� ��� ��� ������� 	�
�
��#����	����� ��� �
����� �#� 	�
� #� 	� 	��	� �	�  ��	����� ��#����	���� ����

Page 177



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

#���� �����
	�����+�� ����#���� ���
���+��������
��
����##
 	�	�
������
���
�#�	�
����� �������������������
��
����##
 	�	�
������
����##������#�	�
�
�	�
�����	�
�� �� 
��
�4�

1
2� ��
��� 
��%�	����	��	�
��
���	��
#
��
��	���������	
�3�4��5����
��	�
�
	
�����#�  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��������	�
�
��������	��	�	�
����
��� 
�� ��	������#����	�����
��	����	��	�
�
#���� ������������
����##������#�	��������	�
�������#�	�
����� ��������	�
�
�
�
��
��#��� ����#����	����+������
���"
���	����
9��� 
�	�
���	
�
�	���#�
�������	�
�� �� 
��
�4�������	�	�
�
�����
�������� ���	
�
�	����
��� �����
���������	�
� �� ���	�� 
���#�	�
���		
�������	�������	�
�

/
��	������� �����
�
��	����	+
����	�
������ ���	
�
�	������� �������
	������#����	�����	�	����	��
4���

�
1#2� .�
���
���/�	��	�
��
���	��
#
��
��	���������	
�3�4��;����
��	�
�	
����

�#�  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��������	�
���������
	��	�	���������#����	�����
��	����	��	�
�#���� ������������
����##������#�
����� "�����	�
����� ��������	��	��������	�
� �� ���	�� 
���#�	�
� ��
��
	�
������ ���	
�
�	��������	�������	�
�
/
��	������	+
�����	�
������ �
��	
�
�	������� �����
4�

�
1�2� ��
���/���	��
	�
��+�	��(����������%�	��	�
��
���	��
#
��
��	�����

����	
�3�4�<�����
��	�
�	
�����#�  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�
)��
���45172��������	�
���������	��	�	�
�� ��	������#����	�����
��	����
	��	�
�#���� ������������
����##������#��������	� ������
�����1�� �������
	�
���	����	����������	��	���#����	���24�.�
������ ���	
�
�	����
����	�������	�
�
/
��	��������
��	����	��	������ ��
�	�	������	+
�����
	�
������ ���	
�
�	������� �������	�
���#����	��������
������#�	�
�#� 	�
	��	�	�
�� ��	������#����	��������#���� �����
	�����+�� ����#���� ���
���
+��������
��
����##
 	�	�
������
����#�	�
����� ����������������
���
��
����##
 	�	�
������
����##������#�	�
��	�
�����	�
�� �� 
��
�4�

�
�1� �&!���!��)��

.�
�
�+
�
������	
��	
�������� �����+
�
����	�+�����	
��	��	�
/
��	�
��
���/��	����
�����	
��=��
�	�	�
���>*�		�
�*�������%

�	���?��������
?���
 "0�?�������(�6�@���	
��##��������	��(���	���8������

�� �� ���	
��	��
A/
 �	��
�%������
��
���#���	�
��� �����
��	�����#����+����	�
������ �	�����#�
	�
���
����1����	
�3�4�5���
#
��24��
�

�2� �,+&%&!'$"�$#�'),+$)&*+����,-"'&%3�&"/�
!.�%��"!�%�)!)��
.�
�
�+
�
�����
 ����	������#���	
�
�	����
��	�	��������	����	�
��

	�����
��+
�
����
 ����	������#���	
�
�	�+
�
����
���	
�����	�
��

	����1����	
�3�4�
�5��
#
��24�
�

�4� 5'"-!�)��
���
����0�.��	�	�
�����	
���#�	�
��

	�����
��������	��$��
��������
�
������
������� ���
 	��
 ���4�
�
�
�

Page 178



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

���6�	
���

����������6��������
������������
�

�7� 6&�*+'"8��,!����2��!&!���"!�$#��',�")'"8��$+',3��
.�
�?
����#�*� 
����������)
���	��	���������		
�����
���	����	�
�	��
������
�
��
+��#�	�
�'�������� 	�������	�	
�
�	��#�*� 
������(��� ���+�	��	�
�
�
 ���
���	����	��	�	�
���		
���
��
#
��
��	��� ��	����%�����1)
���� 
��
�������� ����
��� 
�2�#��� �����
��	���������  ����� 
�+�	��	�
����� ��8��
%���
	�����(��� ������
+��"4��
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
� ���
�	�'�������� 	�������	�	
�
�	��#�*� 
������(��� ��

�����������
���	
�4�
�
1�2� .��	�	�
� ��	
�	���#�	�
������		
���
���	��	��
	�
��+�	��	�
��
		
��

���
��
��	��	�
��
���	���
���	
�4�
�
1 2� .��	�	�
����� ���
��
#
��
��	��� ��	����%�����1)
���� 
���������� ���

�
��� 
�2�#����	�� �����
��	���4�
�
1.�
���		
����
#
��
��	��+�	����	��������	
�+
�
���	�
������
�#��������6������	�
�
�
�
����
�	��#���(��� �����
��	�
�'�������� 	������+�������		
��#���#����
���� �������#����+��	�
����� ��8��%���
	��������(��� ������
+��"���� 
��2�
�

��� �,%-!'"3��"9-'%3�'"!$��##$%/&*+���$-)'"8�*3��%':&!���:�+$ �%)��
.�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	�	��
	�
��+�	��	�
�&��
 	����#�A�������
�	�
����3
������������������		
����9���	��
���	��������������
�����
�	��	�
����
�
�
 ���
���	������#�	�
�#���
��� ��	����%�����1)
�
�
��	���2��#����+�����	��
��B�������	��##������
�?����������(����	
�&
�
���
��4�
�
���� ������$�(�� 	
���		
��
��	�
��

	��������������#�	�
�� ��	����%�����
1)
�
�
��	���2�+�� ���������
�	�"
��	�
���B����4�
��
���
����0�.��	� �����
��	�����#�	�
��
�����
��	��	�
�� ��	����%����8��
�
 ���
���	����������
	���	�+�	�����
 	����7��#�	�
������		
���
���	���
�
�
#
��
���������
��	��
����
������
�
���	����	�
��	����� ������ ����		
���
#��	�
���+�	���������	
���
���	��
���������		
��	��	�
��
�	
��
�������
�

	�����#�A/
 �	��
�%�����#��� �����
��	���4�
�

�;� �%�+',!�&"/��-')&",���'!���%$8%&�����
.�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	������		
�����
���	���
�
�	����	�
�
�
������
�
�
�� 	����������� 
���	
���������
��+����	���������������������
���
+��#�	�
�

�����+��"�+�� �������

�����
�	�"
�����	����#�
��4�
�
��
��
������
�� �� 
��������
��
 	��#�	�
��
��	
�� �����	�	����
/
� ��
�
+�� �������

�����
�	�"
��+�	���
��
�������	�
�
/	
�	�	��+�� ��	�
�
��������
������

�� �����
�
������
�������		

�4�6���
�����
���� ��
 �� 
����+
�
�� "��+�
��
�������	�+�����	
��	��	��� ���������
��
���
+������
� �����	
�����
 	������	�
���������
4�����	����������	�+�����	
��	��	�
�#�������
��
���+���
��	������
�	�#��	�
����	
��#����� �������+�	����	�
�

Page 179



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

��������
��	�
���� ������
�	�����+������
�+
� ��
������ �����
�
�����
���
�+�	��	�
���������
8����� 
��
�4�
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
������
������
����	�
����9
 	�	���
���+�	���
�
�� 	�����

������ 
���	
���
���	
�4�
�
1�2� .��	�	�
�#���	�	��� �
��#�����
�	�
��	���
�	� "�
���
����

�������	��	���

#��	�
���
���	��
������		
��	��	�
�%��������$��
����7� ��
�����	�
�
�����
������
������������:�74�

�
1�� �'!!+���$"/$"��	��)!$"��'++�<��$+*�,=���$-)'"8��>��� /&!�/�

�##$%/&*'+'!3��$)'!'$"��
���	�
��	������	
�3�4���;��;	����� ��������	�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	�
�����		
�����
���	� ��#�������	�
���	 ��
���
���������	�#���	�
�*�		�
�
*�������%

�	���?��������?���
 "�(����	
������ 
�6��	��	��
�(��9
 	�����
��������������	
���
	������#�	�
�#���� ��������	������������� 
��#�	�
������ ����
����
4�
�
��
���/��	��	�
������		
���
���	��+�� ��+����
�����	
�����
/
��	����
��
  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172�+��� �� ���	
��	��%�����
�
��
���#���	�
��� �����
��	�����#����+����	�
������ �	�����#�	�
���
����
���
��4�
�
)
���������	�����
�B������	�
�%������
 
��
��������� 
������
��
 	��#�	�
�
��� 
��
��+�� �������

��#����+
���
������������� ���� ��
�
�	��
����	����4�
�
.�
����
#�A/
 �	��
������
��	��	��������
� ��	���
��+�	�� 
�	����'��
���
�	�
+�	��	�
������#�
��������	��	�+�
�
�
���������
��	�
��� 
��#������
���#����� ��
���	��	��
��+�����/����
�4���
�
�����+���� �����
��	�����#���
���/��	��	�
������		
���
���	���
�����	
�����

/
��	����
��  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��+�� ��+���
 �����
�
����������	
��	�	�
� �� ��������#�	�
��

	������	�+���
�
���
����0�.��	�1+�	���	��##
 	����	�
���	����	��	����� 

��	��#���� ����
 ���
��#�	�
����9
 	�������������������
��	����	�
�
�	���
����
���	���
������
�

	������#�	����%�����C����������	� �����A/
 �	��
�%������
����	�����D5�1�2�E�
192��� �����
����
����=���� ������F20����
�����
1�2� .�
������
������
������	�
���	
�	����	���
	�	�
� ��	�� 	����	�
�
����#�

$�������������������������������
��#	
��	��	��	������+����	��	������	
����
3��
��
��������+�	����������	����������
��������
��������	��	������	
��
�
���	
�4�

��
1�2� .�
���� 
��������� 
�	��� ��
�
�#���� ���� ���
��
���	
����������

���	� ������	�
�� 	����	�"
�����	�
�&��
 	����#�A�������
�	�����
3
�������������	���

"��
���
���
 	�����;�?������� 	��=D��
 ���
�	�����������	��#�	�
����9
 	��
���	
������
�����
�4�

�

Page 180



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

1 2� .�
�"
���
 ������	���
����#��
�	�
����� ��8���##��������	�� ��	����	����	��
	�
����9
 	������
	���	�+�	����
/
��	���
���/��	��	�
������		
��
�
���	��
�������
�������	�
�&��
 	����#�A�������
�	�����
3
��������������
���	�����
��	��������
�	�
�#��������#�������#�	�
�
 ��	����	����4�

�
1�2� .�
�����	
��#���� ��������� �	����������##��������	�������
	
��������
	�

��	�+�	����
/
��	���
���/��	��	�
������		
���
���	���
�������
�4�
�
1@��
��	�
�������������#����� ���(�� 
���
�)��
��<4������� ����������	
��
�
B���
���	�	���
��
 ���
��	��	��
����	���
��#������	�������	�
��
 �������
�
#
��
��	��+�	����	��������	
2�
�
1.�
���		
����
#
��
��	��+�	����	��������	
�+
�
���	�
������
�#��������6�������	�
+��� �����
�
��	��	������
����	���� ����		
���+������
����������
9��� 
�	�
�
���� ��8�����	�
������ 8����	
�
�	�2�
�
�������?�����������
�

1�� �)'8"�&"/��$)!��� $%!����-8.�6&'!)=�++��%'�&%3��,.$$+���//'!'$"&+�
�,,$��$/&!'$"��
.�
�&��
 	����#�������
�8���
��� 
�������		
�����
���	��

"�������������	��
������
�����	�������  ������	�����	�?����'��	�"
���(�������� �����#���
�
�	
��
��������+����	�������

"����	�
��
 
��������	����	��	���� ���	�
�
���� ��	
��
/�
���	��
4�
�
)
���������	���� �� 
�������
����##� 
���������
��������� 
������
��
 	��#�
	�
�����
	��������� �	�������������#����	�
�������
�������������#�����	������
�  ������	����+�	����� ������������������
�	��"�	�������	����
���	�	��	�
�
�
�	
��
�������A/
 �	��
�%������

	�����
���������	������
�������
B�
�	�
��
 �#� ������
��������%��"���
�(�������� ����4��
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�����������
����
��	����� 

��+�	��+��"��	��������
�����	������

�  ������	�����	�?����'��	�"
���(�������� �������	����
�	���	
��	�	���
 ��	��#�G��5�<=�4�

�
1�2� .��	�����������
����
��	���� ���
/�
���	��
��#�G��5�<=��#���� ���	���

� �
�
�����
����D��H?@'H���4�
�

1�� 	&)',����/� %$8%&����(���%�'))'$"�!$�,$")-+!�$"��,.$$+��+&,��
�� &")'$")�#$%����1��
.�
�&��
 	����#�������
�8���
��� 
�������		
�����
���	�+�� �������	�
�
���������	�� �����	�����������������
��	����#������������� �����
/����������
� �
���
��	��	�"
�
##
 	�#�����
�	
��
�����5��+�� ��+�����#�������	��#�	�
�
���� ��8��%��� �3

����������
4��
�
?�������
���	
���� �� 
���+�� �������

���
 
��
��#������� ��������
�����
�
��������#��	��
�� �	�����	�
�A/
 �	��
��
��
��#���������
�8���
��� 
��

Page 181



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

�����
��	�
�%�����	��	��� ����		
���+������
�����
��
��������	��#�	�
�
���� ��	
�� �����	�	����
/
� ��
4���
�
�����+���� �����
��	�����#���
���/���	��	�
������		
���
���	���
�����	
�����

/
��	����
��  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��+�� ��+���
 �����
�
����������	
��	�	�
� �� ��������#�	�
��

	������	�+���
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
��
�
����
�	��#�	�
�*�		�
�*������ ������	���������9
 	��
�

��	
�4�
�
1�2� .��	�����������
����
��	��	�
�#����+���� �����	�	����
/
� ��
���
����

���
�	�"
�0��

•� 	��
/�����*�		�
�*������(�������� ����� #������ ��� �	���#�����
������� 	�� <7���������+�	�� ��� �� �
��
� ��� 	�
���������������
��
#����7��	��=��+�	��
##
 	�#�����
�	
��
�����5I�

•� 	��
/�����.����
�
�(��"�(�������� �����#������ ��� �	���#�7���
������� 	�� 5����������+�	�� ��� �� �
��
� ��� 	�
���������������
��
#����5��	��<��+�	��
##
 	�#�����
�	
��
�����5I�

•� 	��
/�����)�##����(��"�(�������� ����� #������ ��� �	���#�����
������� 	�� 7����������+�	�� ��� �� �
��
� ��� 	�
���������������
��
#����7��	��5��+�	��
##
 	�#�����
�	
��
�����5I�

•� 	�� 
/����� ������ *��
� (������� � ����� #���� ��  ��� �	�� �#� 5���
������� 	�� <7���������+�	�� ��� �� �
��
� ��� 	�
���������������
��
#����<��	��=��+�	��
##
 	�#�����
�	
��
�����54�

�
������������@�����
�

1�� �)!&*+').��"!�$#�!.�����/)��  %�"!',�).' ��%&'"'"8��8�",3�A���B��
.�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	������		
�����
���	�+�� �������	����������
#���*

�����	������ ���	��
�	�������	�
�*

������
�	� 
�����.���������
� ��
1.2�������	�
������+�	��*

�����	������
�
��+�� ��+�������
��	
������9���	���
�+�
�������
����	
� �����������	
�����������	

4�
�
.�
�%�����
�������
��	�
� �� �������
�+�� �������������
�����A�	
�����
��
1��A�2�+�������������	�
��
���
����#�	�������	��	��
������
 
��
���������	
����
	�
�+��"� ���
�	�����������	��
����
�+�	���� ��
�	
�����
�4�6������	�����
�
��
���+
�
�������
��+�	��������� 
��	��	�	�
����	��	��
�+������
���"
��
 �����
�	��#�*

����
 ��������3AA.�13�	����A�� �	�����A������
�	����
.�������2�#�

� �	�������	��	��	�+�����������
���	��
B�����������
���
�+�	��	�
�
�
 
�������"�����	�
���
B���
��#���
������
�	4�
�
6�� �� ��������	�
�������
�������
��	�
�����	�������	��
��#�	�������	��	��
�����
	���"
��	�
�%�����#���	�
� ��������	��������	��	������
 
��
�4�
�
���
����0�
1�2� .��	�*

�����	������ ��8��������
�
�	����	�
�
�	�������
�	��#�	�
�

*

������
�	� 
�����.���������
� ���
�������
�4�
�

Page 182



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

1�2� .��	�����������#�	�
��
	���
��	
�����#�	�
��	� �
���#���� ��	��������
	�
��
��
����

�
�	��
��
�
��	
��	��	�
�&��
 	����#���	��
&
�
����
�	4�

�
1 2� .��	�	�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	���������������	
���
��
�
�	�	��
��

�
�������	
�������&��
 	����#�	�
�*

������
�	� 
������.��������
�
� �4�

�
1�2� .��	�	�
�%����8��
�����
�
�	��
����
��	��	�
��
+� ��������
����

�
���	
�
��+�	���������
��?���
4�
�
������
����������
�

11� � /&!��$"�!.���C&%/�$#�!.���$"!%&,!)�#$%���'8*$-%.$$/���!C$%=�
��%:',�)�#$%�!.���&)!�$#����/)�&"/�$"��'/�%���'8.*$-%.$$/���!C$%=�
�:�+$ ��"!)��
���	�
��	������	
�3�4���������$��
�������	�
�&��
 	����#����	��� �����
��� 
��
�����		
�����
���	�+�� ��������
���
	������#�	�
�������������
�����	�
�&��
 	���
	���+����	�
� ��	�� 	��#���	�
�3
������������3
	+��"��
��� 
�����������#���
	�
�A��	��#�*

��4�6������	�����	�
��
���	��
	���
���� "���������#����	����	��
	�
� ���
�	��
��� 
���������������	�
��
 ������	����� ��
�	�
��
��� 
���
	���
��
+�	����	�
������		
���
���	��+����	��������	�������	�
���� ��
�
�	���� 
�������
	�
���	 ��
��#����	�
�
�����	�����	��
��	�"�����  ���	��#�	�
�
�
 ���
���	����������
�������
���
��#����	�
����=� �	�+��
�3
������������
3
	+��"����� ��
�
�	�
/
� ��
�����	�
�6��
�
��
�	�)
��
+��������4���
�
.�
�%�����+
� ��
��	�
���	 ��
����������#����	�
���� ��
�
�	���� 
����
+����	�	�
�������	���"
��	�
�&��
 	����#����	��� �����
��� 
�������
��	
���#���
�����#�	�
�+��"�+�� ��	�
���������
�	�"
�����	������		
�4���
�
���
����0�
1�2� .��	�	�
��+�����#�	�
� ��	�� 	��#���	�
�3
������������3
	+��"�

�
��� 
��#���	�
�A��	��#�*

���	��	�
�#����+������������	������
���	
�0�

•� %�����	�#	����
��E�%�����	�#	���
����� 	����

•� ���	���
� ��#	���
�������	���
� ��#	����
��������3
���������
� �
�
�

•� )� ������?������)� ������?����A��
���� 	����*���	
��

•� �+�� ��##
���
�����+�� ��##
�'����3
���������� �
�
�

•� �������	
�����������	
��J�&��	�� 	�'����3
��������4�
�
1�2� .��	�	�
���� ��
�
�	���� 
������
�	�"
�������	�
�����
�
�	�	�����#�

�
�������
���
��#����	�
������6��
�
��
�	�)
��
+���
���	
�4�
�
1 2� .��	�	�
� ��	���
�������	�� 
�������	
�	�����#�	�
�3
������������

3
	+��"��
��� 
������
���
�����	�
�������	�
������ ��	
��+�	��	�
����	�
�� �������
�>%
		
��*��
��#���(
���
����*

��>���������
���
���	
�4�

�
�
�

Page 183



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

12� �.&%�/���%:',���&%!"�%).' �C'!.��&+/�%/&+��5�!%$ $+'!&"�	$%$-8.�
�$-",'+�!$����!��/-+!��$,'&+��&%����,."$+$83���9-'%���"!)��
.�
�&��
 	����#����	��� �����
��� 
�������		
�����
���	���	�������	�
���	�����
��������
�#����
��� ����	�
� ���
�	�A�
 	���� ��� �������
�)
 ����1A��)2�����
A��)�#���� �������	
����+����	�������
	�������	�
� ��
�#�������	����������
��
�
��� 
����	�
������������
�
�	�+�	�����	�
���� �����	����	�4�6������	�����	�
�
�
���	���	���
��	�
�������	����	
 �������� �����
�	����� �������A�
 	���� �
&� ��
�	�)
 ���������
�
�	�����)
���	�����	���
�����
�
�	
����������
�
	�
� ��
������
�
�	�����	���4�.�
��
���	�����������	����������	��
�	
����	��
�����	�
���������

�
�	�+�	������
����
����� �����
�
��
�	�
��
��	
��#�������
������ ���	�
��
 
������
/�
���	��
4�
�
.�
��
���	���	
��	��	�������
���#���	�����#���	�
��
��� 
�
�	��#�	�
�
/��	����
A��)������A��)�#���� �������	
��������

�����
�	���	
�4�.�
���	�����
 �����
�
���
��	
��	�0�

•� @���������	�
�
/��	�������	
�I�

•� .�
���
��#��
��	�����	
��I�

•� .�
���� ��
�
�	��#���	��������	�����	
�I�����

•� � ��	
�	���� >����
�� �
��� 
8� ������
�
�	� +�	�� ���	�
�� �� ��� ��	����	���
+�
�
�*

�������	
��	�
��� ��
������
�
�	��
 ����������	
�4�

�
)
���������	����
 �#� � �� 
��������
�����	��+�
	�
��	�
����	��� �������
�
���
�	�6�#����	�������	
����
���������
����
����� ���+������
�#�	�#���*

��8�
������
���	�+����
B�
�	
��	��	��
��	
����		
���+
�
��
#
��
��	��	�
��������	
�
'��
���� 
��������	������		

�����	��	�	�
�� B����	�����#�	�
����	
�� �����
�
�����	��
�4�
�
�����+�������
��
�8��
�B������
��������	�
� ��	������ ��	
��+�	��	����
� �
�
��	��
	�
��+�	��	�
�
B�����
�	����	
����
�����������
�8���
��� 
���	�
�
�
��
�����B�
�	����+���������
��+�	��#��	�
���
	������+�	���##� 
���
���
�	�"����	��������
����
��
	���
����#����	������������	�����
��
B���
�4�
�
?��������	
��	�
� ���
�	��+�� �������

�����
���	�+������

��	��	�#��	�
��
	��	�
��
��	
����		
����
�����
#
��
��	��	�
��������	
�'��
���� 
��������	�
�����		

��A/
 �	��
�%������
 
��
��������	
��
���	�
�
���<����	���������
��
	������	���	�
������
����#�	�
����	��	��
4��
�
�����+���� �����
��	�����#���
���/���	��	�
������		
���
���	���
�����	
�����

/
��	����
��  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��+�� ��+���
 �����
�
����������	
��	�	�
� �� ��������#�	�
��

	������	�+���
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�����������
����
��	��
�	
����	�������	�
���������

�
�	�+�	��

����
����
��
	������	���%����������� ���#���	�
���� ���
��#�������	����
��K�����
��#�	�
������	��� �������
����
�	�6�#����	�������	
��1�6�2��
+�	����	�����	���� �
��
�	��������
�����
� ���
������
 	����74���#�	�
�
�����		
���
���	4�

�
1�2� .��	�	�
��
 
������
/�
���	��
��
���	�����
�������
#��
��+�	����


/
��	���
���/���	��	�
������		
���
���	��	�����
�	�"
�	�
�#����+���0��

Page 184



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

•� ��� ���
� �� ����
� ��� 	�
� ���	
������ ����
�
�	�	���� ������	� #����
����
����
��
	������	���%����������� ��I�

•� ����
�
�	�	�
����
������
�
�	����	
���	
��#���� �������� ��	�� 	�
�����
�
�	� �����
�� �#� ����
����
8�� �6�� ��� ���	�
������ +�	��
����
����
� �
	������	��� %������� ���� ��� 	�� �

	�� *

���
�
B���
�
�	�I�

•� ����
�
�	����� ��	
���	
�*

�����	������ ��8�� ������	
�A�
 	���� �
&� ��
�	�����)
 ����������
�
�	����	
��1A&)��2� ���������
��
+�	��	�
����
������
�
�	����	
�I�

•� ������ ���� �
�
���� �� �
���	���� ���� %����
��� 6�	
����
� 
� � 1%62�
����	���� �	�������� 
/��	����  ������	
� �
���	���� ���� %����
���
6�	
����
� 
�	
 �������4��

�
1 2� .��	�	�
���		
�������
������
��	����	��	�
����	��� �������
����
�	�

6�#����	�������	
���
��
#
��
��	��	�
��������	
�'��
���� 
��������	�
�����		

�����	��	�	�
�� B����	�����#�	�
����	
�� ����
�����	��
�4�

�
1�2� .��	�A/
 �	��
�%������
 
��
����
���	�
�
���<����	���+�� ��������
��

�������	
�����
��
 	��#�	�
����9
 	8�������
��4��
�

14� �$")-+!&!'$"�$"�!.���.&%8�)�#$%��$"(��)'/�"!'&+��/-+!��$,'&+��&%��
��%:',�)��
.�
�&��
 	����#����	��� �����
��� 
�������		
�����
���	��
		������	�����������
#����� �����	�	������� 
������������
�� ����
��	�� ����
��#��������
���
�	����
���	��� �������
��
��� 
��#����+�������������#�����#��	�
�� ���������
��
+����
A/
 �	��
�%���������;	��$���������1����	
�3�4�7<��
#
��
�24��6������	�����	�
�
�
���	���	���
��	�
��
������#���	�
���������������	�
���"
�������� �	�����#���
 ��	��
��������� ��
��
�
��4�.�
��
���	�������
	���
��	�
�+������+�� ��	�
�
����� � �����	�	�������	�
����� 	��#�	�
�
�����������+������
� ���� 	
�4�
�
�
��
�����������	
��	�
��

��	��
����
�	��	�	�
�������
�� �����	�	����

/
� ��
�+��������
������
���	��
�������������
4�
�
���
�����(�
1�2� .��	�	�
������ � �����	�	�������	�
�������
���
+� ����
��	��	���
��
	�

��	�+�	�����
 	����54D��#�	�
������		
���
���	���
�������
�4��
�
1�2� .��	�	�
����� 	��#�	�
�������
�� ����
����� ���������
���
��� 
���

�����	���
��+�	�����
 	�����54�;�����54�D��#�	�
������		
���
���	���
�
��	
�4�

�
1 2� .��	�	�
����� 	��#�	�
�������
�� ����
������	�
������ ����
��� 
������

�
	���	�+�	�����
 	�����54�=�����54����#�	�
������		
���
���	���
���	
�4�
�
1�2� .��	�	�
������ � �����	�	�������	�
�������
�� ����
��	��	�
�#���� ����

���
���
�	��
	���������	��	���
��
	���	�+�	�����
 	�����54�������54���
�#�	�
������		
���
���	���
�������
�4�

�

Page 185



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

1
2� .��	���#��	�
���
���	��
�������	�	��A/
 �	��
�%�������	
��	����#���� ����
�
����+�	��#����� ������������������#����+���������
��
	���
������������#�
	�
����� 	�����	�
���	 ��
��#�	�
� �����	�	���4�

�
17� ���/)��&#�8-&%/'"8��/-+!)��&%!"�%).' ��""-&+��� $%!�����D������

.�
�&��
 	����#����	��� �����
��� 
�������		
�����
���	���	���� ����	�
�#�#	��
��������
���	��#�	�
�*

�����#
������������	��(��	�
������%���������
�����������������	
����	�
�+��"��#�	�
�*

�����#
������������	��
(��	�
�����4�
�
(��#
�����(����!����	����6��
�
��
�	��������#�	�
����	���#
���������
(��	�
������%������������
�������	���� 	����	��	�
�"
������	������
��+�	����	�
�
��������
���	��	��
	�
��+�	�������������#�	�
�+��"����
�	�"
�����	�
�
(��	�
�����4�
�
)
���������	�����
�B������	�
�%�����+���������
��+�	���
	������
��������	�
�
�
�
���������� 
��#���#
����������
#
���������*

��4�?��������	
��	�
�
�����#� ��	��� �
��
����	�
�����
���#���#
����������
#
������+�� �������

��
�
���	
����
��	�
����	��
�����
��
������ ���
��	�
��
������#����� �������
�
����	�
��  ���������� ��� �	������
�4��
�
.�
�%�������������	
��	�
������	�� 
�#���A�
 	
���
��
���	���
��+��
��#�	�
�
��#
������������ 
�������+
� ��
��	�
�#� 	�	��	���#��	�
���
��
��8��
������
����� ����		
���+���������
��#�����	
�����	�
��
��4�6������	������	�+���
�
B�
�	
��	��	�A/
 �	��
�%������
��
���+
�
�������
��+�	����#��	�
������
�
�
	���
����
�"��+���#���	���
��	����	��	�
����� 
������
�
����#���#
���������
�
#
�������+�� ���� ���
�������	�� 	�����
	+

��	���
��
#
���������
�����
��
 	�
�#������ ����������	
��
��� 
��������������������3?�����������4��
�
6�� �� ���������
��
���+
� ��
��	�
���������
���	�����	�
��
	���
��
��� �������+�� ������	�"
����� 
�������	��+������

��	��	�	�
������		
��
�
���	��������� ��	
���� ��
�	�	�����
��
#
��
��	��� ��	����%�����1?
��	��
�����
���
�����������	��� �������
2�#���#��	�
�� �����
��	���4�
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
� ��	
�	���#�	�
�����:���*

�����#
������������	��

(��	�
������������)
���	��������
��
��	��	�
������		
���
���	��
�
��	
�������	��	�	�
�+��"���������
��#�	�
����	���#
���������
(��	�
������%�����#�������:�7��
�
�����
�4�

�
1�2� .��	�	�
������		
���
���	��������� ��	
���� ��
�	�	�����
��
#
��
��	��

� ��	����%�����1?
��	�������
���
�����������	��� �������
2�#���#��	�
��
 �����
��	���4�

�
���
����������
��
�����>�����
���
�

1�� �%�&)-%3�5&"&8���"!��""-&+�
-!!-%"��� $%!�����D����
.�
�&��
 	����#�)
���� 
�������		
�����
���	�������������#���������	
����	�
�
���� ��8��.�
�����������
�
�	��	��	
���������
��	�����#�������:����4�
�

Page 186



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

.�
�������	���"
�������#�	�
��##� 
���+��������

��������
�����	�
����� ���
� ��
������	�� ���
�	�.�
�����������
�
�	�����	���4��
�
���
����0��.��	�	�
�	�
�����������
�
�	���		��������	����#���	�
��
���
����:�������
���	
�4�
�

1;� �""-&+��')=�5&"&8���"!��� $%!��
.�
�&��
 	����#�)
���� 
�������		
�����
���	������������������ 
�������	�
�
�	�
��	���#�	�
����� ��8�����"������
�
�	�������
�
�	���+����	����
�
�	����
�����
���
+��#�	�
���	����	�8���	��	
�� ����"�4�
�
.�
�A/
 �	��
��
��
��#���&
�
����
�	�����	�
�A ������������
��	�
�
%�����+�	���������	
�����
��
 	��#�	�
� ���
�	�����	�����
�������� �	��#�������4��
?������ �����
�
��	������		
����
��
���
�������
��	�
��

��#����������	�
��
	�� ��	���
�	�������� 
�	����'��
���
�	�+�	���
������	���  
������	�
�#�������
�	�
�����
B���
��	��
�	�������	�
��
�
���#�#������
#
� 
���
 
������	�����	
 	�
	�
� �	������
��	�
�����	��	����
 ����� ����� ���
� �������� 	�	��	�#��������
	��*

��� �	�� 
�	�
�+��������
������	�
�+���
��#�	�
� �	���
����4�
�
���
����0�.��	�	�
� ��	
�	���#�	�
�����������"������
�
�	��
���	��
�
�
 
��
�������	�
��
��	
��������� 
��������
��+�	����	�
������		
���
���	��
�
��	
�4�
�

2�� >'"&",'&+���&+!.�5$"'!$%'"8�����D�����(�>'%)!�E-&%!�%��� $%!��
.�
�&��
 	����#�)
���� 
�������		
�����
���	���
�
�	����	�
����� ��8��
���9
 	
��#���� �����
��	������	����#�������:���7��#	
��	��

����	����#�	�
�
#���� �����
��������
��
 	��#�	�
��
�
��
�����
	�����	�
�?�������)
�
��
�
  ���	4�
�
)
���������	�����
��
�8�� �� 
�����	�
�%�������� ���
��	�
����9
 	
��
��
���
���+�	�����
#��
� ���
 	��������������	
�	�������� 	�	��	�	�����������
�
�����	�
��������	��#�#��	�
���
��� 
��������������	������
�4���
�
���
����0�.��	�	�
����9
 	
��#���� ��������	�����#�	�
���	����	����#	
��	��

�
���	����#�	�
�#���� �����
�����
���	
�4�
�

2�� �& '!&+��%$8%&����� /&!��#$%������(����2��
.�
�&��
 	����#�)
���� 
�������		
�����
���	������������������	
������	�
�
#���� ��������	����#�������:�7�����	�$��
��������� ��������������	
���� ���	���
�
���� 
��������������#�� �
�
��������
��#����>��
�8�	��>'�

�8��	�	���
��� 
��
����������������������#������
���+�� �������

�����
�������
�
��9���� �
�
�4�6������	�����	�
��
���	�������� ���
��*�,� ���	������
�	�
�	�
�������������������	���
 �#� �����������������
��	������+����
�� �
�
��	��
�����
��4�
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
���	
�	�����	�������	�
��
�
����#��������?�������)
�
��
�

  ���	� ���	�����������
����
���	
�4��

Page 187



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

1�2� .��	�	�
�	����#
���#�� �
�
��#����	�
���
��	��	�
�'�

��
��������
�������
	���	�+�	�����
 	����747��#�	�
������		
���
���	���
�
��	
�4�

1 2� .��	�	�
�#����+�������� �	�����#����	�
�A ����� �6��	��	��
���������������
	�
� ���	�����������
��
�������
�0��

§� GDD������#���	�
�A��	��	
��
�
����
�	�

§� G��������#���%����+� "�.
��� 
�

§� G��������#���.�+������&��	�� 	�)
�
�
��	����� �
�
�

§� G7�75������	��������	�	�
��
���
����#����
�#��	���������������
	�
��
������

1�2� .��	�	�
���9
 	������	��	�
� ���	�����������
��#�G����;7������#���
��
������
���
�	�����	�	��
����
�	�
������������#�����	��������������
� �������� 
����
�������
�4�

1
2� .��	�	�
�
 ����� ����� 	��#�	�
����� ��8�� ���	�����������
�����
�
	���
��+�	�����
 	������������
���/�&��#�	�
������		
���
���	��
�
��	
�4�

2�� �$-",'+�	-)'"�))��+&"���#%�).�����(������
.�
�����	��	����
#�A/
 �	��
�1���	��
��  
�������(
�#����� 
2�
�����		
�����
���	���	�������������
���#�������
����
���
�	����������	
��
	��	�
����� ���%����
���(�����+�� ��+�����
����
�	��	�	�
�(�����
����
�����
	����	
�� ��	���
��	���
#�
 	�	�
����� ��8������� ����
��
�������� ���
��
	���
	��+�� ��+
�
���	�� ����
���������	�������
����	� 4�
�
)
���������	�����
��
�8��
�B������	�
�%������
 
��
���
������� 
����
�
��
 	��#�	�
�������
��	���
	�#�������:���7��
��������	�
�����	
��� 
��#�
��������������4�
�
���
����0�.��	�	�
� ����
��	��	�
����� ���%����
���(����#�����������7��
����
	���
��+�	����	�
������		
���
���	���
�������
�4�
�

2�� �.&)�����.&"8'"8�!.���$%= +&,����'!3���"!%��
##',���,,$��$/&!'$"��
���	�
��	������	
�3�4��7;������3��
��
��������	�
�&��
 	����#�)
���� 
���
	�
�����	��	����
#�A/
 �	��
�1���	��
��  
�������(
�#����� 
2�����	�
�
&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	������		
����9���	��
���	��
	�������	�
������
���
+�� �������

�����
�	����	
�����
��	����	��	�
����������	�
����"��� 
�
��������
��+����	��������������	����	�
��
�
#�	���
�����
���
�
��������
���	4��
��
 �#� ������	�
��
���	������	����

�
�	�	���������	��
+�+�����#�+��"����
+�	����	�
� �	�� 
�	�
��+�� ��+������
���	�����
�� 	�������	�
�����
���#�	�
�
���� ��8�� �	�� 
�	�
��##� 
�����
�	�
�4�
�
�
��
�����������	
��	�
������	�� 
��#�	�
�� �
�
�����	�
��

��	��
����
�
	��	�	�
������
����#��	�+�������	��
�����	
�����#� ��	�������������������
�#���

Page 188



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

���
�4�.�
�������� "��+�
��
��	�
� ���
�	�����
�����
�������
��	�
�
��	������
�	��	�#� 
�	��#� 
� ��	� 	�����
�����	�
��
���
����#����� ����
��� 
�4�
�
�����+���� �����
��	�����#���
���/��	��	�
������		
���
���	���
�����	
�����

/
��	����
��  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��+�� ��+���
 �����
�
����������	
��	�	�
� �� ��������#�	�
��

	������	�+���
�
���
����0�.��	�	�
�������������	���
��+�	����	�
������		
���
���	��
�
�������� �	�� 
�	�
��##� 
��  ������	�����	��
	�
��+�	��	�
���
 �#� �
�
 ���
���	����� ��	���
��+�	�����
 	����<4���#�	�
�
/
��	����
���/�	��	�
�
�����		
���
���	�1+�� ���� ���
��	�
�������������#������������
���	�	��
A/
 �	��
�%����������������������	
�����	�����#���
������	�
���������
�
������	���	 ��
���
���
�
�2���
�������
�4�
�

21� �$&"�C'!.��$%=).'%���$-"!3��%',=�!��+-*�(��&%'&!'$"�$#��8%����"!�&"/�
6%&"!'"8�$#��$")�"!)��
���	�
��	������	
�3�4��D5���5	��$����������=��	�
�&��
 	����#�)
���� 
��
�����		
�����
���	�������������#����	����������
B�
�	��
 
��
�����	�
����� ���
#����-��"����
�����	����� "
	�������
���������������������
�����	�
����� ���
	��	�
�������������4�.�
�����8���
B�
�	��
��	
��	����
�������	�
� ���
�	�
� �
���
��#��
����
�	��#���	�
����������
/	
������	�
��
����
�	��
����4�6��
����	�����	�
��
���	���	
��	��	�	�
������+���������

"����	�
����� ��8��
 ���
�	�	����
����	��	
��������+�	���	�����"�����	��
�	
����	����#���� ����
�������	�4�
�
,���
���#��#�	�
�%������	�
�������	���"
�������##� 
���+��������

��������
��
���	�
��
��	��	������� 
���+�	��	�
����������
��
 	��#�	������		
�4�
�
�����+���� �����
��	�����#���
��� 
��%�	����	��	�
������		
���
���	��
�
�����	
�����
/
��	����
��  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��
+�� ��+
�
� �����
�
����������	
��	�	�
� �� ��������#�	�
��

	������	�+���
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
������	����	��	�
����� ��8����������

�
�	�+�	��-��"����
�

����	����� "
	�������
����

��������	���
��+�	����	�
������		
���
���	4�
�
1�2� .��	�	�
��
 
������ ���
�	���
�����	
��	��#� ���	�	
�-��"����
�����	��

��� "
	������
�	
�������	���������	��������
��
 	�	��	�
�����������

�
�	�
+�	��	�
������"����������	��
����
�	�
������	���  
�	�	�
������#�����	��
��������4�

�
1���� ������-
������
 ���
�����,	�
�������#� ��	�6�	
�
�	�����
��
 	��#�	����
��		
���������
��
���#�-��"����
�&�����
����� "
	�����4�.�
�&��
 	����#���	��
&
�
����
�	��
 ���
�������	
�
�	�����
��
 	��#�	������		
������	�
����� ��8��
������	
��&��
 	������	�
�%������#�-��"����
�����	����� "
	�����2�
�

22� �$��'))'$"�$"�!.��>-!-%��$#��$,&+�6$:�%"��"!�(��%$8%�))�� /&!���
���	�
��	������	
�3�4��7�����	�������������	�
�����	��	����
#�A/
 �	��
�
1���	��
��  
�������(
�#����� 
2������		
�����
���	������������������	
�
���	�
���	 ��
��#�	�
�+��"����
�	�"
�����	�
���������������	�
���	��
��#�

Page 189



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

*� ���'��
���
�	�+�� ��
/����
��	�
� �� 
�	��#����� �A�	
�����
�������
����
	���
������	��	�
� ����
������ ����
��
��+�� ��#� 
���� ������
���
�	4�
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
�#���������#�	�
�������������������	� �����	�
�#��
�(������	������

������+�	��	�
������	�
�	������������	�� 	������
���	
�4�
�
1�2� .��	� 	�
� +��"� +�� �� ��� ���
�+��� 	�� 
����
� *

��� 	�� �
 ��
� ���


�	
��������� ��� ����
�������	
�4�
�
����
�5�������������
�
5��
�

24� �)'8"�&"/��$)!��� $%!�#$%�	%$&/*&"/��%$F�,!)��
.�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	������		
�����
���	��
��������	�
���������
�������������	��	��
��+�� ��+
�
����
�+������	�
� �	���+����	�������

"����
������������� ����	�
�	�	����*

�����	������ ��� ��	����	����	��	�
��
���
���
�#��� �����9
 	�4�
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
�%���������&
���
���@!�1%&@!2�*� ���%���������(����

��� 
����
���	�#�
������������	
�4�
�
1�2� .��	�	�
� ���	���#������� ��	����	����	��	�
�%&@!��������
�� ���
 	
��

 �	�
�����9
 	�������	���
��+�	�����
 	����5454���#�	�
������		
���
���	��
�
������
�4��

�
27� E-&%%3��'++�����/)�������

���	�
��	������	
�3�4�;����	��$��
����D��	�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	�
�����		
�����
���	�����������#�	�
��
���
��	
���������+�� ��	�
����� ��8����	
�
�	�L������?�������	�
� �	�� 
�	�
� ������
������	������� "�&
�
����
�	��
*���	
�4���
�
)
���������	�����
�B�������
��
����
 
��
�� ����#� �	��������
��
 	��#�
����������#���	�
��
�
����
�	��
������������� � ������"�������������4��
�
�����+���� �����
��	�����#���
���/���	��	�
������		
���
���	���
�����	
�����

/
��	����
��  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
���45172��+�� ��+���
 �����
�
����������	
��	�	�
� �� ��������#�	�
��

	������	�+���
�
���
����(�.��	�	�
�	
���������
	���
��+�	����	�
�
/
��	����
���/�	��	�
�
�����		
���
���	���
�������
�4�
�

2�� �$��-"'!3��))�!��%&")#�%�$#��$+*�,=��$-!.���"!%��!$���&+!.�#$%��++�
A���/)B��!/��
.�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	������		
�����
���	����	�
�������
��
�������	����
	�.����#
���#�?���
 "�-��	���
�	�
�	��?
��	��#������1*

��2�
*	�4����+����#�������
����
��
� �����#�����
����������������������
��
4�
�

Page 190



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

���
����0�.��	�	�
��������	����
	�.����#
���#�?���
 "�-��	���
�	�
�
	��?
��	��#����������+����#�������
����
��
� �����
��
�+�	��#�����
������������
����������������	�
����
�������
�4�
�

2;� �$��-"'!3��))�!��%&")#�%�$#�!.��#$%��%�	%&�+�3��&C"�&3���"!%��!$�
	%&�+�3��+/�%+3��,!'$"��
.�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	������		
�����
���	��
��������	�
�������
��
�������	����
	�.����#
���#�%����
��*�+��&����
�	�
�	��%����
��A��
����
 	�������+����#�������
����
��
� ����#�����
����������������������
��
4�
�
���
����0�.��	�	�
��������	����
	�.����#
���#�%����
��*�+��&���
�
�	�
�	��%����
��A��
���� 	��������+����#�������
����
��
� �����
��
�+�	��
#�����
����������������������������	�
����
�������
�4�
�

4�� �&"/��%$ $)&+)�#$%��&)!8&!���
���	�
��	������	
�3�4���5��;	����� ��������	�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	�
�����		
�����
���	�+�� �������	�	����	����	�
��
 
��������	����	��#���#��	�
��
������ B����	����+�� ���
��	
��	��	�
��
���
����#�	�
�A��	��	
��
�
�
����
�	�
� �
�
4�6������	�����	�
��
���	�������
	���
��	�
� ���
�	�����	�����
��������	�
�
�
���
����#�	�
�$����*
+���(��	�
�������	��
�������	��#�	�
��
�
����
�	�����
+�� �������	�	�
��
 
����������������	��
����
�	�
��
���
����#��� ������"����
	�
��������
�
�	����
������	�
��
�	�-��"����
�(��� 
��	����	�4���
�
�����+���� �����
��	�����#���
���/������(����������%�	��	�
������		
��
�
���	���
�����	
�����
/
��	����
��  
���	��6�#����	����(�� 
���
�)��
�
��45172��+�� ��+
�
� �����
�
����������	
��	�	�
� �� ��������#�	�
��

	������	�
+���
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�����������
����
��	��	�
� ���	�����9
 	�����#�#���������	�
�

��	����	��	����
���1��
�	�#�
�����	�
�
/
��	����
���/�	��	�
������		
��
�
���	2���	��	�
� ���	�����������
�#���	�
����� ���	��� B���
�	�
��
�	�
-��"����
�(��� 
���������������������+�����
/
��	�������������	��	�
���������������
����
��	������ �	����	�
�������
�	�#�
��+�	����	�
�

/
��	����
���/�#���	�
��
����	�����#�	�
��������	������������+�� ��+����
�
��
��	�+�	�������&
�����J����	��
���	�	����#�	��
�A/
 �	��
�%����4���

�
1�2� .��	����9
 	�	��	�
����

�
�	��#�#�����	
���������������
����
��	��	�
�

���� ����
�
������	��?���
��������	��#�	�
�� B���
����	
��
 
������	��
����+�#���	�
� ���	�� 	�����#�	�
�$����*
+������������1�����
�	�#�
�������

/
��	�������	��	�
������		
���
���	24��

�
1 2� .��	�	�
����� ���
�	��	�	�
����� ���
�	
�����	��������

�
�	�����9
 	�	��

	�
����

�
�	��#�#�����	
�����+�	��
�	�
�������	��$����*
+�������
?���
����������
��
 	�	��	�
��
���
������:�����
��	�����#�	�
� ������"��
�
�������
�4�

�
1�2� .��	�	�
����� ���
�	��	��������	�
����� ����
������
�	�����

�

�  
�	���
�?
�����#�.
����+�	��?���
�����	���
���
��	�
� ������"��
����������
����
��	��	�
����� ����
���
������� ������"��	�
��
	������#�

Page 191



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

+�� ��+������
����9
 	�	����#��	�
��&
�����J����	��
���	�	��A/
 �	��
�
%����4�

�
1
2� .��	�	�
��
 
��������	����	���
�������
��	��	�
�&��
 	����#���	��

&
�
����
�	��+�	��	�
� �� ���
� 
��#�	�
�A/
 �	��
��
��
��#���
&
�
����
�	�����	�
�A ����������	�
�&��
 	����#�)
���� 
���#���	�
�
 ����
	�����#������
 
������?
�����#�.
���������
������ ��
�	�	�����
#���	�
�������������
�	��	����� 	�����1����
	���	�+�	����	�
������		
��
�
���	�����
/
��	����
���/�2�����	��	��� ����		
��� ����
��
��	�+�	��
���
��	�
����������	
�� �
�
��#��
�
��	���4�

�
1.�
���		
����
#
��
��	��+�	����	��������	
�+
�
���	�
������
�#��������6������	�
+��� �����
�
��	��	������
��������� ����		
���+������
����������
9��� 
�	�
�
���� ��8�����	�
������ ���	
�
�	4����
������� ����
	����	�
�?
�����#�.
����
�����
������ ��
�	�	������������������ 	� ������������
��������
�������� 	�
�����	�
� ��	� �����	���#�����������+�� ��+
�
��
���������	���	��#����
?���
���������$����*
+���%�����2�
�
�����
�5����
�

4�� ���/)��+'�&!���.&"8���!%&!�83�����(���2�A�'8.!��$-,.���:'�CB��
.�
�&��
 	����#�A�������
�	�����3
������������������		
�����
���	��

"����
	�
�
�����
�
�	��#���������������	����������	�
�����	
��*

��������	
�
�����
��	��	
������������4��6������	�����	�
��
���	��������	���
��	�
�������	�
��������
�#����	�
�A����
���*� ���A�
��������	�� 
�1A*A32��
 �������
���������	�#���������������	��9����	�
�A@����
���	��#��������������#���	��	
��
	�+����������		�������A*A3����4�
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
�*

��������	
������
��	��	
��������������
�������
������

	��	��	��
��������
������	�
�*

���6��	��	��
� ����
����	��
	�
��+�	����
����	�����	
 ��� ����������4�

�
1�2� .��	�	�
����� ��8�����
�����
���
�����	�
�������	��� 	����� ��	���
��+�	����
	�
��	��	
����
�������	
������ �������
�4�
�
1 2� .��	�	�
��
�
����
�	��#����
/��
�������#���	
�
�	�����#���������
���

 ��
�	��A*A3�	���
#��
����� ���
� �����
����
��
���#��	��	
�� ���+�
 ������
�
������#���	�� 	��
�����
�
����
##� �
� �����9
 	���������
��	��
�
���
��	�
���9
 	��
���#�	�
�*

��������	
������
��	��	
��������
�������
�������	
�4�

�
1�2� .��	�����������
����
��	��*

����
 �������������	����	��	�
�A@�

���
���	��#������������	��	�
�������������#�	�
�*

��������	
�
�����
��	��	
�����������������*

��8����	������
�A�
���� 	����
(�����������
��	��������	����A*A3����4�

�
�

Page 192



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

4�� >-"/'"8��  +',&!'$"�!$�� &%!��"!�#$%��$��-"'!'�)�&"/��$,&+�
6$:�%"��"!�#$%����=+3�>$$/��&)!���$++�,!'$")�&"/��))$,'&!�/�
�"#%&)!%-,!-%���
���	�
��	������	
�3�4��55���5	��&
 
��
��������	�
�&��
 	����#�A�������
�	�
����3
������������������		
�����
���	��
��������	�
�������������#���#�����
����#���#�������#����	�
��

"�������
 	����������	������1����2������
�����
	�
�&
���	�
�	�#����������	�
������*� ���'��
���
�	�1&�*'24�
�
)
���������	�� �� 
��������
���	�
�%�����+��������
��	��	�	�
�������
������
+����
����	� �����	��	�	�
�������������	���
��+�	����	�
������		
���
���	�+�����
��	��
���	����	+��	�
�����	
��� �����	�
� �	�4�6������	������������ 
��+
�
������
������
������
��
 	��#����
��
�8����
 �#� � �� 
�����
��������	�
�#�	��
�
�
���
����#�#����+��	
� ���
 	��������*

��4�
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
� ��	
�	���#�	�
������		
���
���	��
���	
�������	��	�	�
�

������������#���#���������	��	�
�������������	��;	��������	��#����	�
�
�������	��#�+

"���#����+��	
� ���
 	�����	��D�K��#��
���
�	�����	�
���	��
�
�������
�4�

�
1�2� .��	�	�
� ��	���
�������������#�	�
�
�+

"���#����+��	
� ���
 	�����#���

�	��
��	�	+���
�����
�����	�
�
����#�	�
�&�*'�#��������
�����1�4
4�
����:�<��������<:�;2�����
B���
�����&�*'���
����

�4�

�
1 2� .��	�����	������#��������#������/���	
���G5����������
��������	��

�
���
��	�����
��� 
��������	�
�#���� �����
��������:�<�	�����<:�;��
�
������
�����	��	��
���	
��	��	�	�
��������������������� ��	��1 �����
��
	������#���2��
���
��#����	�
��
�
����
�	��#�	�
�)
����������	
�
.�
�	�
�	�(�6�#� ���	��+����������#� ��	����##�
	�	�
�
� ��	�4����������#�
���
�	���	
��G�����������
��������#����	�
�#��	����	��� ���
 	�����#�
�
�������+��	
������
 � �����	��	�+������  �������+

"���#����+��	
�
 ���
 	�����+������������	���	
�	�
� ��	���#�#����+��	
� ���
 	��������	�
���5:���1����
 	����545��#�	�
������		
���
���	��
	����24�

�
1�2� .��	���	����	���
��
�
��	
��	��	�
�&��
 	����#�A�������
�	�����

3
�������������	����
���	�
�����	������
���#

��� "�#����&�*'��
������
��	��	�	�
������������
�����+�	����	�
��
�
���#�#�����������
���

���	��
����	����1 2�����
4�

�
1
2� .��	��#�	�
����������  
��#��������������
����
��	����#�����#���
��

��9
 	������	��	�
�����	���(�������
��#�	�
� ���	��� ��	���� ���
��+�	����
	�
�#�����������
������1 ���
�	��� �� ���	
���	�GD��������2������	��	�
�	����	��	����
������	��	���������	�������
�������
�4�

�
1#2� .��	��##� 
��8���	
�	�����	���

"�#��	�
���
��
�������������
��������

	�
���
 �#� �+

"���#����+��	
� ���
 	�����
��� 
��������	��������
�
��	
����� �������	�
�������
���
������� �����
���#����� �������+�	����
(���
�����������	�
�
�
�	�	��	�	�
�&�*'������������  
��#����#���	�
�
����	�����
��#�#��	����	����
�������+��	
������
 � ����� ���
 	�����
���

�����A/
 �	��
�%��������&
 
��
������4�

Page 193



����������	
���������
���	�	�
��

	�����
�
�������
��
�������	���
�	
��
��������

�

�
1@��
��	�
�������������#����� ���(�� 
���
�)��
��<4������� ����������	
��
�
B���
���	�	���
��
 ���
��	��	��
����	���
��#������	�������	�
��
 �������
�
#
��
��	��+�	����	��������	
2�
�

4�� ���>����.&)�����
���	�
��	������	
�3�4���;���	��$�������������	�
�&��
 	����#���	��&
�
����
�	�
����	�
�&��
 	����#�)
���� 
�������		
����9���	��
���	�+�� �������	�	�
�
������	��#�A/
 �	��
�%�����	�����	� ���	
��������
����#�	�
�)A0�6.�
��������
4�6������	�����	�
��
���	�����������	����

�
�	�	��	�
�� ��
��#�	�
�
��� ��
�
�	4�
�
���
����0��
1�2� .��	�	�
����9
 	�����������#���)A0�6.�����
������ �������	�
����� ��	
��

���	#������#�������������
�������
�4�
�
1�2� .��	�	�
���9
 	�����#�G������������	��	�
� ���	�����������
��	���
�#�����

#���
�������������	
�������+������
�������
�4�
�
1 2� .��	�	�
�
/�
���	��
��#����	��G�������������	�������9
 	��
�������
�4�
�
1�2� .��	� ��	����	�� �
� �
�
��	
�� 	�� 	�
� &��
 	��� �#� ��	�� &
�
����
�	� ���

���
��	��������
����� ����
��	��	�
����	#������#�����������#����������
��
	�
�)A0�6.�����
�����������������	
�����#�����	���������
������4�

�
1
2� .��	� ��	����	�� �
� �
�
��	
�� 	�� 	�
� &��
 	��� �#� ��	�� &
�
����
�	� ���

���
��	��������
�	�
��+�����#�	�
� ��	�� 	4�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
����
>���	������
���� � ��.?�$@*-������
�
���������>
����������

>����6�	��������
���� � �;.?�$@*-�������1�4���(4�42�
�
1� ��	����������	�+������	�#��&��
 	�����#������	
��� ���
����������4����4�4����
7�	��$��������2�
�
�
�

Page 194



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

����������	
���
�

�������������������	���������
�

���������
�

�
	���������� ��������	�����������

� �
	�������!�"�� ���#���������$����	��
%�&��	��'�&�
�	��(�)�*����)�$
�����	��
#����������	��)�+���	�

�
�

��� ���� !��"#$%�&!'$"�(��$))'*+����,+-)'$"�$#�!.���%�))�&"/��-*+',��
���
0���1�,���������
���������-��
�����������������	���
��	������
�	��������	����������*�	�����������������	��������	���������-�����	�
������
	���������������� ������	����*�������	��
����������
��	���������
���	�������������	��
����������������	���������������������������
�����
*���������	��������*
������������
�������������-������	������	���
�����	�����������*�./�
�
0�1� #���	��-�2�������������������������	�$�	
���34����
	����������������

#��������5	������	�'����
���(
�����46021��	��	�������
	��������
��������	��-��	���	���	������	�������	����������	�	��������
��	����
����������������
��������4�,����	������	����������������������������
���	���������������	��������	������	
�������������
	������	���	�
�����	���	������
����������������������
�7����������������	��
����������������4�,����������	�������������
����	�������������������
�������������������������	���	��������������	������
������	�������	����
��������������	������	4���

�
��� 0&!���!��)��

,�����*����	����������������
�����*���������*���	����������
������	�����
�	������	��������	�����
��������"����$����������*�	�����������������
�������	����	�����������������	��	������������	��������������$�����
"�
���5	����	��	��&�
���	��&���	�&�
����������������*�������������
�����	�����
����������	����	��������&�
����	�����������������������
���������*����	������������	��������8&������	��,����������%��������	�94�0$�	
���
34�:;���������14��
�

��� �'"-!�)��
���
0���1�,����������	
���������������	�������	��<���!
������������
�������������������������4�
�
���0���2�����������
�

�3� �%&")#�%�$#��$-",'+�
4"�/�0&"/�&"/�	-'+/'"5)�!$��%-)!��,.$$+)��
,��������������������	9��%���������
����������������*������
������������
������������	������	���������������������������������������������	���	��
�
����	������������	�����	�����*�����������	����������,�
�������
����	�
������	���*��������=�
����	��	��5	������	��#������:��	��,���%�����

Page 195



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

����	�����	�0'����������#�������	����$��	���	���%����10=	���	�1�
(��
����	������4�
�
>���	���� 	*���������$�����9������	�������*�������������������
�����������������������	������
����������������
�������������������
��������*��������	����������
���������	������������������������������
���
�������������	����
��	�������	���������	�
�����*��������������	��=-��
�����
$�����4����
�
$���������������	���	���������	���������	��������,�
�������	������
	���
���������������������)������������
���
����������	��������������
����	���
�������*����������������
����������������4�5	�����	����������������

	���� ����	�����,�
���9���������	�������������������������	��������*���
������������,�
��������������
����������	������
����
	����	������������
��
����	�����������������
��������)������$�������������������
������������������	����	����������������%�����������%��������=�
����	4�
�
���
0���1��
0�1� ,���������	��	����������
�����������������	���4�
�
0�1� ,�������������������������������	������
����������������
��������

���������	��	�
�����	�*��������������	��=-��
�����$����������
�
����������	������������������������������������	�������������������
��	���	���
����	�������
��������������������	�������	��������	4��

�
0�1� ,��������������	������������,�
�������������	����������
����������	�����

�
	������������������������)������������
���
����������	������������
��
����	����������*����������������
�����������������������������
�������	����	�����������������	��������������	��������������"����
������%�����������%��������=�
����	4�

�
�6� 	&"7)'/���%'�&%8��,.$$+��& '!&+��%$9�,!��

?
��������$�	
���34�6����<���!
������������������������������	9��%��������
�
����������������*���������������������������������	��*���������
��
�����	�����"�	 �����'�������%���������������������
�����
���������
���	��@��A;2������
���	������� ������
��������������7���������	�
	������
�	��*����������������
��	����	�������������	���*������������	������
�������	������/��
���	������������
���*���������������������	��	���	��
��������������7���4��
�
,���"�������������������	�������	�
������������	�������������	��*����
����	��������������
���	����������*����	������
�������������4�5	�������	�����
*���������������������������������������������*��	�������������*���
��B
������	���	������������
�
��������	��	������(������������	������������
��������	�������*���	����������
����������*
���	������
����������
=-��
�����"����
	���������	�����C���	�������*����
	���������������
$�������*�����	��������	�������������	��������*��	��������	�	���
���
�������4�
�

Page 196



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

>���	����������������	������	�����	���	����
�����	�����������������*���
�
��������������	��������	�*�������	��������
�
����������	���	����
�����	�
������	����
�����7����4��
�
���
0���1��
0�1� ,���������	��	���������
���������������*���������������������������

���
���������	����
����������������	����@��A;2���������	���4�
�
0�1� ,�����
������������	��@��A;2���������������4�
�
���:�	
���

����0�����:��������
������������
�

�;� :8 )8�&"/��%&<�++�%)��'!��
 !'$")��
?
��������$�	
���34��6:���6��������������������������������=	���	��	��
�	��3�����
������
�����������������������	��������	��	�������������
�	�������	�������������	�����
	����*	���������������	�����
������&�����
�	��,������������������	�������	���	��*�������������	������	������
��
��	�*������	�����������-��	��	��������
���	��������	��������
����	�����%���	�������4��
�
5��*���	���������������	��	����������	�����������	������
��������"����
$�����������������������	��	��������������$�����"�
���5	����	��	��
&�
���	������&���	�&�
����������������*������	�����������&�
��9�
�	�����
��������	��	����������������������*����	������
�������������4�,���
"��������	�����������������	����	�����������������	����������	��
��������
���$�������������&���	�&�
������������������	�4��
�
$�������������������
�������������������	������������������	���������
*������������	�
	����� �	�	��
	����*	�������������	��������������������	�
��������������	���������
�������������&������	��,������������������	�
�	��*�������������������������	����	�����������*����	������
��������
�����4�
�
,���"������ 	*������������	���	��*������������	������
������������	�
������������������	�����%���	����������*���������*���������������������
���
��������������-��	����������	���������������������	��������	�����
�����
��*
����	��	
��*��������������	�����������*�����*
������
������	����������������������/�����	��	������	�����	�������������
��������*�����������*��������������������������������	�����	���������	�
���
�����������	�����*�������4��
�
>���	��	���������		���������
	����*	������������������*����	�����
�
���������������������	���������
����������
������&������	��,���������
���������	�������	�����*����
������������������
��*���
	����� �	�
*��������������	��*	������	���������������	��*����������	��������	��
����������*	����������
������
�����������������
����4�
�
�
�
�

Page 197



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

���
0���1��
0�1� ,����������	���������		���������
	����*	����������������������*����	�

���� ������ �	�#���	��-�#� �� �����
�������� ������������
���	�����
�������
���
������&������	��,������������������	�������	4�

�
0�1� ,�����������������B
�����������	������*�����	�����%���	�����	����

�-��	����*����������������	�����*�����	�*��������4��
�
0�1� ,����	��������
����	�����������-��	��	�������	�����%���	���

�������./�
0�1� ,�����
����	��-��	��	�����������	��������������������

����	�����	���������������������������
��	��������������
�-����	����	�	��4��

�
0��1�,�������
�������
	��	��������������������>�#����������	�	���

��������	�����	���������4��
�
0�1� ,��������	�����%���	�������	��
����*����	�����>
��	��(���	
��

#��
	��0>(#1�"
��	����'��	��������>(#��
	��	����	����
������
8�������
	�9��	���
������>�#��*�����	������	�	����	���������
�	������	���������	�����%���	��4��

�
0�1� ,����*� �*������������	�����%���	�9��������	����	�������

�
	���D��
	������������������������������������������������������
�������������	����*�����������*��������������������������

	����� �	��	�����	��
���>�������#�
���%�����������	���������	9��
%�������4��

�
0�1� ,����������������	������&������	��,���������)����	���'��������

�
���������*�����*�������������������������������)�����������
	����
)����	���'����4��

�
0�����������=�00��
�

3�� �") '%'"5�&�:�"�%&!'$"����� $%!'"5�0�5&,8�#$%�0��/)��
,��������������������������	���	�����������������������	9��%��������
�
����������7�	��������
���	�	��������������������	����	��)��������
����

�	������
��������������)	�	��������������&������	��'����������
&�������	���	�������
���������
����������������	������	������������	��4�5	�
������	������������
���	�������������������	��
�������:��	�����	���*�����
�����������������	��	
�	���������������&��������������������)����4�
�
,���"����*�������������������
������	���������������	������������������
	�������	�
���������������	�
�������	��������������������	��
'�����������*����
����
�	���	���������	�
��������)����9����	�������	��
�������	��	��	
��4�
�
(���	��	������$�����9������	�������*���	����������
������*� �*
������

	����� �	��	�����������������������)������?
	���	���*��
����
	��	��
*
����������������*�����*
����	��
��������	�*����)�����%�����?�������	4�

Page 198



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�
,���"�����	�
�����*������������	���������������	������	�������	�
���
������	���	�������������������������	����������	��
��������	���������
������	������������
���	����������������	������������	��*�����������������
�	��������
����������������������������4�
�
$�����������������	
��������-����������*�����&�����������������
����������������������
�	����
	������������)�������	�����*���	����
�������������������������	����	�����)�����'���������	��*������	��
�����
���4�
�
5	��	��
��	���������������	 ����������������������*���������	��	�������	�
�
������
������������	�����������������	������
��
��)������������������	��
���*�	������&���������*���������������������	���*������������	������
�
��	����������
���	��	��������������������
����������������
������������
�
�
��������	����	����������������	�
������	�������������*������������	�
�����	����������������	�����������	������������)����4�
�
���
0���1��
0�1� ,���������	��	����������
�����������������	�������	��*��������

���*�	���������./�
0�1� ,�����
������*� �*�������
	����� �	����-�����������	�������	��

�������)������	���
��	����E"�#�����F���������������4�,���
�����������������������	��������������������	9��%��������
�	������������'
��������������������	�����������
�����4�

0��1� ,��������������	��%�����	��#������)����������������������	����
�	������������	����������E�������������������F��
������4�

0���1� �	�
���*��������)�����'
�����	��*����������������������
���������	�����
���������	���	��'���������	����	�����	�
�����������	���������)������?
	����@���������		
������*����
�������������*4�

0��1� %
������
�
����	���	���	������������	����	�)������	����
���
��������	��������	�*���	�����	������������	��4�

0�1� ,����������������������
����	�����������������������
�
����	��	������������������	��������
������)����������
����������	��������4��

0��1� =������������	������	������	��3���	���3	���������(����
�����������������
����	�)����4�

0���1� %�� ����������	�����������	����
�����������������	��
�
��	�����	����������������	����)�����%����	��%
�������
���	���	��	���
��������������������	�)����4�

0����1� ,��
����	� ����&�����$� �����	����
	�����	��*�������������
�-����� �	� ���� ������ ��� *�� ���� ��*���� *���� ���� ����� ��7��
���	������		��4�

Page 199



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�
0�1� ,�������
����������������
�������������
�
��������	��������"����

*��������������	�
������	�������������*������������	������	�
���������������	�����������	������������)����4�

�
���
����������
��
�����>�����
���
�

3�� >'"&",'&+���&+!.��$"'!$%'"5�����?�@�(��$"!.����� $%!��
,�������������(��
������
����������������*�������������������
	���9��
��7��������	�	�����������������	��������D���2��������
���	����������
��	�	���������4�
�
���������������
	����*	����������������������	��	������$�����9��
����	�������*����� 	*�������������
�������	��������	�	���������������	�
�������
�
������
�������������	�����������������������������
�������	���������
���������������������*���������	����������������	��	�����	��	�	�����
����4�
�
5	�����	�������$�����9���	B
���������"��������������	�
������	�����
��������������������	����������	�������	������
����������	��
���4�
�
���
0���1�,����������7��������	�	����������	��������
���������������
��
�	������������	�	��������������	���4�
�

3�� �$")-+!&!'$"�$"�0$,&+')�/��$-",'+��&���-  $%!��,.�����
?
��������$�	
���34�2��������!
	����������������������(��
������
��������
��������*���������������������������
�����������	�����������	�
�����	�

	����� �	�*�������������+� ������'�����#
��������	�������+� ������?����
�	��(���
��%�������	���������
	����,�-�%
�����������4��
�
$�������	�����������������
���������
�����������
����	�
�����	������
�������
���������������	�
���
�	��	������	���������������������
��	��������������	������������*�����*�������������������"�����������
�
���������	�
�����	��	�!
	������4���
�
?��*�	���	��������	���#���	��-�2��������
��������������������	��������
�-�����
	����#��������5	������	�'����
���(
�����46021��*�����*���
�	���������	�����������������	��
��	������������	������*���
�
���
0���1�,����������	�����������*�����*
����������������������
���	����&���	��	���
	��	�����������������������������
��������
�	�
�����	���	�������������	��������������������=-��
�����"���4��
�

3@� �'5.��$)!�0�5&+��$"�8�0�"/'"5�'"�0��/)��
?
��������$�	
���34��2;�������#��������������������������������������	��
�
����������������������	�����������������
���	�����
������������������*�����
������������������������	�����	��	���	��������	��	�����������������	��
���������������
	�����	����������	��������������	�������	���
����������4�
5	�������	����������������
���	������������
�
����	����������*�����*����
�
���	�������	���	����������4�

Page 200



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�
,���"����*�����������*� �*�����*������	��
	����� �	�������������*����
����	������
������)������������G	�	��	�����
	������������	��?�	�	���
5	����
��	��0��?5�1���	������������������	�������	�
���������
���������������
�	���*���	�������
������	�����	��*�����-������4�
�
$�����������������������������	���������*� ����	��
	����� �	�����������
�������
�������������*��������������������	�����	��	���	�)������	��
���������������������
	������
����� ���	���	�����	��������
��������
�����
�������� ����
������
��4��
�
5	��	��
��	�����*�����������������	�� �	�����
���������������
�����������
�	������
�
�����	��������	���
��������������	�������*�����	�*���������
�
	�����
������������������������������	���������	��������������	���
��	������	������������*������
	�����
��������������������*��������������	��
�����	����������������	�����	��	����
�����������������
�	��	�����
���9�
��	�����	��������������������	��������	��
�������
	����� �	���	��������
�������	��*��������
	���������������������*���������������������
���
�������4�5��*������	���B
�����������������������
�������������
�
��������	���
*�������
�������������
����	������	���������������������
������
�����������
�����4��
�
���
0���1��
0�1� ,���������-��	�������������������	��	����� ���	���	������	������

������
�����������������	���	�)�������������
��*����	������
��������
�������	���	��
��	�������	������	�	�������������������*����	�
#���	��-�������	���4��

�
0�1� ,������������������
���	���*����	�����8�	��
��	�9���������
��*����	�

�����	�A��������
������������������	�����	��*������4�
�
0�1� ,�����	��	
�	���
������	�������	���)�����������������G	�	����

��������������
�������	������������*������������	�����������������
����)����������'�������'��	�4�

�
0�1� ,��������	��	��*� ��������	���/������������������
	�	��� �	��

&�
����	��������	��������������
�
�����������	�����������
��
*����	�����������24����������
������������������	�����	��*������4�

�
0�1� ,����������������
�������������
�
��������	��������"����*�����

���������	�
������	�������������������	���������������*� ����	��

	����� �	���������������*��������������	��������������	���
��	��	���	�)�������������
������
��	�����������	����	���������	���*�
����������������������*��������������������	�����	��	���
������
�����������
�����4��

�
�
�
�
�

Page 201



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�����
������
�

3�� ��) $")��!$�!.��� -!&!'$"�!$��$-",'+�#%$���� &%%$4��&%7��,!'$"�:%$- �
$"���!.�A-+8�������
,�������������=	���	��	���	��3�����
������
����������������
����	��	�����������
����	������	�������%����*�'�� �#���	�&�
��������
�����	�����
	����	������!
��������*����������������������
����������	������
�
�
���*	����������������	��	����	�����	����������	��������	�
>����	������ 	*	�����������E%����*�'�� F4�
�
���
0���1�,���������	��	����������
�����������������	������	�������
�������������
��
�	�������
�����'
�������������
	����������	���*����
����	��������
�7���������������������	�����	�������*����	�����������24�4�����
�����
�������������4�
�

3�� ����<'�4�$#��'!8���"!%���&%��&%7'"5�'"�0��/)��
,�������������(��
������
����������������������	�����
�����������*���
�������	����������� �	���	�)������	��*������������������������
���*�����*
���
�	�����
�
���������� �	�������4��,��������*��	�������������
	���9���
���	��
���������*������������	������� �	����	���*��
����	�������������������
�����
	���9���������7�������4�5	�������	�����������*��	���������
���	���	��
�
�
��������������������� �	���������*����	������������	��������������	�
�	��������������������� �
������	���-���	�������	���	�������	�������
�
	����������� �4�5	�������	�������������������������������
���*�����	������
������� �	��	�����
	��*��	������	�����
�
���������� �	������������	�������
������	����	��*�����*�����	�����	��*���������
	���9���7�������4���
�
,���"������ 	*�����������������������	������������������	����	�)������
�	���	�����	�������$�����9���	���	���������	������������������������*�	��
�
���	�����������	������������������	�������	�	���	��%
	������� �	������*���
	��������������
�����������*�*�����������
���������	����	����
�	�
�����	��-�������*�����*
������
	����� �	�*����������	����� ��������
�	����������������
	���9��������� �	������������*��������
�����������	��
���������	�
�����	����	������������� �������"���4��
�
,���"������ 	*�����������������
	���9���
���	��������� �	������������	��
*��������	������������7���������������	�����	������������������
�������	��������	��������������*
�������������	�����	�)�������	��*�����
������������	����
������	������	������4�#��������*�����$���������B
������
����� �	��	���	��������	�*��	�
	����� �	���
������*� �	������������	����
������� �	�������*4�
�
���
0���1��
0�1� ,���������	��	����������
�����������������	���4��

0�1� ,�������������������	������������*��	����	�����	�
�����	�*����
������	����� ���������������	�������
	���9��������� �	������������*����
�������	�����	������	����������*�	�./�

Page 202



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�1� �	��������	���
����������	��������*�	���
���	�����������	�
�������������	�	���	��%
	����������� �	�4����

�
��1� ���
��	��� ������� ��� ���
��� )�	�� �
���/������ ���� ��� �

��
��� ��� �����*��� ���*�	�� ���� �������	� �� ����
���
�������	��*� ���*���������*�����/�������	���������	�����
��
�� ������������	����	������/��������������� �	�� �	�����
	��
����	����������#��	�4������

�
���1� �	����������� �	������������
����	��	
������������*���

�		
�����	�����������������������������	�
��������������������
��������	����������	�����	�����	�4����

�
��1� #���
��������
	������
��������*������������� �	�����������

�����������������
��������� ���������������*����������������
���������	�������������� �	������������������
��������	����4�����

��
�1� ,����
	������
����	��	
���������������'�� ��	��(����

���������	���	��������������� �	���������������
��������	��
��	�������-��	���
���	��������	������	������
��
����*����
������	����	������	�������������� �	���������������/�	�������
�	��������	���������	������	������
��
�����	��
��	��'�� ��	��
(�����������4��

�
��1� #� ��� �	�� ����
�� ������ ��
��� ����
�������� ��� ���� �����	�	��

������� ���	������������	�������*�	��*��������������������� ��
�	�� ��	 ��� ������	�� �� �*��
��� ����� ������4� #� �������	��
���	������	���*������
	������/�	����������������� �	���	����
��
�����������
����������	����������4���

�
0G	��������������	�����
	����'����
���(
����:4A���
	������#��������
��B
��������������������������������������	�������������	�������������*����	�
�������	
��1�
�
���0
���������������
�
���
�

3�� :%��"�� &,���%$ $)&+)�#$%�!.���$<�%�'5"��!%��!�)'!���
?
��������$�	
���34�6<�������!
������������������������������������	��
�
����������������������	����������������������	���������������
��������	��������%������	�%����������	���������������	��*������
����
�������	��������	�-����������	��
��	������������	�������������������H�
�	����������
�����������������	�������
������	����������		�	�����������	4��
5	�������	�����������������	��
�������
�������������	�
�����	�
������
��
����������	���������������	����������������	�������������������
��������	�4�
�
,���"�����������������
�����������������������������*����	������
��������
�������	�����*�����B
������������
	��������*�����	������������	�������	�
������7���9�������	��	����������	�4�
�

Page 203



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

���
0���1��
0�1� ,����������������������	�������������������	�����������������

��������	���4�
�
0�1� ,���������	����������	���������������	�*�����	����������%������	�

%������ ��� �������� �	�� ����� ���� �	��������� �
����� ���������� ���	��

����������
���������������	�*� ����	���4�

�
0�1� ,���������
������	��������		�	�����������	������������	����������

%������	�%����������������4�
�
0�1� ,���������	7����	���@��A��������	������%������	�%����������	�������

���������
	����������������������	��	���������������������	�����������
����%������	�%��������������	�������������4�

�
0�1� ,��������
������������	�
�����	�
	����� �	�����������	������	��

����������	�
�����	���������*���� ������ �������������
���������
���������		�	�����������	��������	���	�����������4�

�
33� �$��-"'!8��))�!��%&")#�%��

?
��������$�	
���34����0"1������$������������������������������
��������	���
�����������������
�������	���������
�����������	�
�����	�
�-�������
	����� �	��	������������������
	����#�����,��	�����'������	��
�����	��	������	������
	����#�����,��	�����'���������������4��
�
(���	��	�����	��	B
�������������
	���� ��������������$�������	�
B
����	�*�������������������	�������
���	�������	�������	��	�����
	����
#�����,��	���������
��
����������4�
�
$�������*���������������������������������	���� �	���������
	�����	�
�������������
	����#�����,��	��������	�����*����� 	*�������������
������
*� �*
������
	����� �	��	���������	�
���������������������	��	
�����
�����������4��
�
���
0���1�,�����������
	����#�����,��	�����'������	��?����*� �
��
��	�����������	�������#���	��-����	��#���	��-����������
��������
���������������������
����	��������	���	���	������	�����
	����#�����
,��	�����4�
�

36� �!'�-+&!'"5�:%$4!.�'"��##$%/&*+���$-)'"5��
,��������������������������	���	����������������=	���	��	���	��
3�����
������
����������7�	��������*�����
���	��������������������
�*������
��	���	������	�������	�	������	������
	��	���
������	��
�	������	�������4�?
�������������������������
������	
����������������
��������"�����	�������������������������������	�����
����	��������4�
�
,���"�����������������
������������������������
��*����	������
��������
�����4�
�
�

Page 204



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

���
0���1��
0�1� ,����������������	�����	��	������	������������������
��������

*����	������
������������������������������
������	����
��	���
@;�6�������������������������������>
��	��(���	
��#��
	�����
�	����
��	���@��A���������������3�*�>����"	
���	������
�����
(�����,�"
�������������
���	�������������������@��;�����������������
�����4�

�
0�1� ,�����	��	7����	����@��A��������	��@<��������	��������������

�������������3�*�>����"	
���	��(�����,�"
�����������
������������������������4�

�
0�1� ,����������������	���������	������	��������������������������

����������������������������	���	��=	���	��	���	��
3�����
�������	��	�
�����	�*��������=-��
�����$���������
��������	���	������=�	��4��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
����
>���	0�����
���� � � �,>�%=',=$"=(������
�
0��������>
����00����

>��0�:�	0�������
���� � � �6,>�%=',=$"=(��������
0A4���'4$41�
�
0%��
��	��%
�����*����	�����������������	����������������	������4����4�4�	�
�����%�������������1�
�
�
�

Page 205



Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 2012/13 Performance Report - Quarter 1
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 Balancing the Council's duties as a planning authority with its future public health responsibilities
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	9 Better Lives Explained - Leeds draft Local Account of Adult Social Care 2012/13
	Appendix

	10 Work Schedule
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


